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Agenda Item 1b
NORTH EAST OF SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP
Minute of Meeting of the North East Scotland Transport Partnership Board
Aberdeen, Wednesday, 19 June 2019

Present:

Councillor Peter Argyle (Chairperson); Councillor Sandra Macdonald
and Dr Margaret Bochel (Vice Chairs); and Councillors David
Aitchison, Phillip Bell, John Cox, Ross Grant (as substitute for
Councillor Jennifer Stewart), Ian Mollison (as substitute for Colin
Pike) and Alex Nicoll; Mr Colin Allanach and Mr Ian Ross.

In Attendance:

Anne MacDonald (Audit Scotland); Jenny Anderson, Louise Calder,
Kirsty Chalmers, Rab Dickson and Nicky Laird (Nestrans); Stephen
Archer, Andrew Leil, Ruth Taylor and Ewan Wallace (Aberdeenshire
Council); and Gale Beattie, Lisa Christie and Mark Masson
(Aberdeen City Council),

Apologies:

Councillors Colin Pike and Jennifer Stewart; Mr Gerry Donald, Mr
George Mair and Mr Derick Murray.

Please note that if any changes are made to this minute at the point of approval,
these will be outlined in the subsequent minute and this document will not be
retrospectively altered.
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
1.

There were no declarations of interest intimated.

MINUTE OF BOARD MEETING, 17 APRIL 2019
2.
The Board had before it the minute of its previous meeting of 17 April 2019, for
approval.
The Chairperson welcomed Colin Allanach to his first meeting as an external member of
the Board.
The Board resolved:(i)
to approve the minute as a correct record; and
(ii)
to welcome Colin Allanach to the Board.
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NON COUNCILLOR MEMBERS
3.
The Board had before it a report which outlined the process to appoint a
replacement non-Councillor Board member and sought authorisation to extend the
appointments of the other non-Councillor Board members.
The report recommended:that the Board –
(a)
approve the appointment of Mr Colin Allanach as a non-Councillor member on the
Board through to October 2024; and
(b)
endorse the extension of the appointments of Dr Margaret Bochel, Mr Gerry
Donald and Mr Ian Ross for the period to October 2024.
The Board resolved:to approve the recommendations.
DIRECTOR'S REPORT
4.
The Board had before it a report by the Acting Director of Nestrans, which provided
an update on liaison activity with other RTP’s with the Scottish Government and other
organisations.
The report recommended:that the Board note the progress on liaison arrangements with other RTP’s, the Scottish
Government and others and the arrangements for future meetings.
The Acting Director highlighted amongst other items, the following areas for members’
attention: A96 Dualling, Aberdeen, 29 May 2019;
 Bus Alliance Board, Aberdeen, 30 May 2019; and
 Strategic Transport Projects Review 2 Regional Grouping, Aberdeen, 29 May
2019.
The Board resolved:to approve the recommendation.
REGIONAL TRANSPORT STRATEGY PROGRESS AND UPDATE
5.
With reference to article 5 of the minute of the previous meeting of 17 April 2019,
the Board had before it a report which updated members in relation to the recent meeting
of the North East Transport Consultative Forum, the timescales for development of the
Regional Transport Strategy (RTS) and progress in the Strategic Environmental
Assessment of the RTS.
The report recommended:that the Board –
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(a)
(b)

note the contents of the report; and
agree the amended timescales for production of the RTS.

The Board resolved:to approve the recommendations.
ANNUAL MONITORING REPORT
6.
The Board had before them a report which provided details of the Annual
Monitoring Report in support of the Regional Transport Strategy.
The report recommended:that the Board –
(a)
note the contents of this report and the trends emerging against many of the RTS
targets;
(b)
approve the Nestrans Monitoring report 2019, which will be uploaded to the
Nestrans’ website; and
(c)
instruct officers to develop a suite of suitable indicators and targets to reflect the
developing Regional Transport Strategy to 2040 and report these to a future Board
meeting.
Nicky Laird provided an overview of the content of the report and answered questions
from members. She also advised that there was an amendment to the Monitoring Report
relating to section 11 (Cycling). An updated version of this section of the report was
circulated to members at the meeting.
The Board resolved:(i)
to approve the recommendations; and
(ii)
to note the amendment to the report at section 11 (Cycling).
ANNUAL NESTRANS PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
7.
The Committee had before it a report which provided details of the Nestrans
Annual Report which outlined performance against a number of agreed indicators.
The report recommended:that the Board note the contents of the report.
The Board resolved:to approve the recommendation.
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CUMULATIVE TRANSPORT APPRAISAL
8.
The Board had before it a report which provided information on the results of the
Cumulative Transport Appraisal Option Testing Report and sought approval for its
publication.
The report recommended:that the Board –
(a)
note the findings of this work; and
(b)
approve the final report for publication on the Nestrans website.
The Board resolved:to approve the recommendations.
FRASERBURGH AND PETERHEAD TO ABERDEEN STRATEGIC TRANSPORT
STUDY - FURTHER RAIL WORK
9.
The Board had before it a report which provided an update on the progress of the
Fraserburgh and Peterhead to Aberdeen Strategic Transport Study (FPASTS); and
which outlined the results of the further study which considered aspects of rail
development.
The report recommended:that the Board –
(a)
note the contents of the report and the outcomes of the report regarding the further
rail studies in support of the FPASTS study;
(b)
agree to the publication of the consultants’ reports to be published on the Nestrans’
website; and
(c)
progress the options for further stations in the context of a potential crossAberdeen rail service, including consideration of new stations south of the City.
The Board resolved:(i)
to approve the recommendations; and
(ii)
to note that the Acting Director would liaise with colleagues at Aberdeen
International Airport and P&J Live regarding joint future work to develop options
to improve access between the two locations, and that a report be brought back
to the Board in this regard in due course.
A96 DUALLING
10.
The Board had before it a report which provided an update in relation to the
Scottish Government’s proposals to dual the A96 between Inverness and the AWPR to
the west of Aberdeen.
The report recommended:-
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that the Board note the content of the report and the progress towards the dualling of the
A96 East of Huntly section.
The Board resolved:to approve the recommendation.
ROADS HIERARCHY STUDY
11.
The Board had before it a report which presented the findings of the investigation
into options to update the roads hierarchy within the boundary of the Aberdeen Western
Peripheral Route along with varying levels of intervention to support a new hierarchy.
The report recommended:that the Board –
(a)
note the findings of the North East Roads Hierarchy Study; and
(b)
agree that the full study report and appendices be published on the Nestrans
website.
The Board resolved:to approve the recommendations.
CROSS CITY CONNECTIONS
12.
The Board had before it a report which presented the findings of a report
considered by Aberdeen City Council into various public transport and active travel
options in and around the city.
The report recommended:that the Board –
(a)
note the findings of the Cross-City Connections Report; and
(b)
agree that the full study report and appendices be published on the Nestrans
website.
Councillor Mollison pointed out that Chapelton of Elsick was now named Chapelton.
The Board resolved:to approve the recommendations.
BUS ACTION PLAN (STATE OF NETWORK)
13.
The Board had before it a report which provided details on the work of the North
East Bus Alliance and which presented the findings of the recent work to assess the State
of the Bus Network in Aberdeen and Aberdeenshire.
The report recommended:-
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that the Board –
(a)
note the findings of the State of the Bus Network Report; and
(b)
note the continuing work and next steps identified by the North East Bus Alliance
Group.
The Board resolved:to approve the recommendations.
PROGRESS REPORT
14.
The Board had before it a progress report which outlined the status of various
activities in support of the Regional Transport Strategy.
The Board resolved:to note the content of the progress report.
PUBLICATIONS AND CONSULTATIONS
15.
The Board had before it a report which provided information on the recent
publications and consultation papers of interest and sought to agree a response where
appropriate.
The report recommended:that the Board –
(a)
approve the attached Appendix B as Nestrans’ response to the Fraserburgh
Harbour Masterplan;
(b)
approve the comments contained in the report as Nestrans’ response to NHS
Grampian’s consultation on a healthier and more active future for the North East
of Scotland;
(c)
approve the comments contained in the report as Nestrans’ response to the
consultation on Aberdeen Adapts;
(d)
instruct officers to submit a Nestrans response to the consultation on Aberdeen
City Council’s Sustainable Urban Mobility Plan, following approval by Chair and
Vice Chairs; and
(e)
note the publication of the Scottish Government’s National Islands Plan.
The Board resolved:to approve the recommendations.
ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 2018-2019
16.
The Board had before it a report which provided details of the 2018/19 Annual
Audit Plan by Audit Scotland which outlined the audit work to be undertaken to provide
an opinion on the Partnership’s financial statements.
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The report recommended:that the Board note the audit plan provided by Audit Scotland.
Anne MacDonald provided an overview of the report which had been prepared in
accordance with Audit Scotland’s Code of Audit Practice.
The Board resolved:to approve the recommendation.
UNAUDITED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR 2018/19
17.
The Board had before it a report which provided details of the Unaudited Annual
Accounts for 2018/19 and sought approval of the final delay in drawdown.
The report recommended:that the Board –
(a)
consider the Unaudited Annual Accounts for 2018/19 and approves their issue to
the external Auditor and the Controller of Audit as per Appendix 1;
(b)
approve the final virements as per Appendix 3; and
(c)
approve the final delay in drawdown for 2018/19 as per Appendix 4.
Ruth Taylor highlighted the main issues contained in the report.
The Board resolved:to approve the recommendations.
2019/20 BUDGET MATTERS
18.
The Board had before it a report which provided an update on the Partnership’s
2019/20 monitoring and forecast outturn position.
The report recommended:that the Board –
(a)
note the monitoring position and forecast presented in Appendix 1 of the report;
and
(b)
approve the virements presented in Appendix 2 of the report.
The Board resolved:to approve the recommendations.
INFORMATION BULLETIN
19.
The Board had before it a report which provided information and updates on a
number of matters not requiring a decision.
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The report recommended:that the Board note the contents of the report.
Rab Dickson highlighted the following items for members’ information: Getabout Update, including Active Ellon Day on 16 June, Clean Air Day on 20
June and In Town Without my Car Day on 15 September 2019;
 Railway Station Travel Plans (Inverurie, Dyce and Stonehaven);
 Grampian Cycle Partnership; and
 Hands Up Scotland Survey 2018.
The Board resolved:to approve the recommendation.
CONFERENCES AND PRESENTATIONS
20.
The Board had before it a list of recent and forthcoming conferences of interest to
Nestrans.
Rab Dickson advised that he would be willing to provide feedback in relation to any of
the conferences on request from members.
The Board resolved:to note the content of the list.
PENDING BUSINESS AND REPORTS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS
21.
The Board had before it a report which (1) provided information on the progress
on pending business and major reports scheduled for forthcoming Board meetings; and
(2) provided the opportunity for the Board to add to or amend the schedule.
The report recommended:that the Board note the report on pending business and agree the provisional scheduling
of major reports to future Board meetings.
The Board resolved:to approve the recommendation.
As described in paragraph 50A of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, the
following item contained personal or sensitive personal information about a
particular person(s), therefore the press and public were excluded from the
meeting.
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STAFFING MATTERS
22.
With reference to article 16 of the minute of meeting of 13 February 2019, the
Board had before it a report which sought approval of the extension of the temporary
delegation of the powers granted to the Nestrans Director to the Transport Strategy
Manager for ‘housekeeping’ purposes during an ongoing period of absence.
The report recommended:that the Board approve that due to the prolonged absence of the Director, that the
Director may sub-delegate the following powers and appointment temporarily to the
Transport Strategy Manager:(a)
the delegation of powers granted to the Director as set out in Appendix 1 of the
report; and
(b)
the appointment as Nestrans’ proper officer;
all subject to the following conditions:(1) the period of planned absence of the Director is greater than 3 weeks;
(2) the date of commencement and planned end of that absence is notified to
the Board; and
(3) that where an extension of the sub-delegations contained in
recommendation (a) and (b) is required for a period greater than that so
notified, that the extension is approved by the Board.
The Board resolved:(i)
to approve the recommendation; and
(ii)
to convey thanks to the staff at Nestrans for the additional work they have
undertaken to date.
COUNCILLOR PETER ARGYLE, Chairperson
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Agenda Item 1c
NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 18 SEPTEMBER 2019

1c - Board Meeting dates - 2020



Purpose of Report

The purpose of this report is to agree new dates for the Board meetings in 2020.


Background

The Committee Clerk has reviewed the Aberdeen City Council diary and liaised with the
Committee Team in Aberdeenshire Council to find new proposed dates for Board meetings
that do not clash with known Council meetings in 2020.
It is worth noting that Aberdeenshire Council’s schedule of meetings will not be considered
until either September or November 2019 Council meeting, therefore at present they only have
confirmed meeting dates to the end of March 2020.


Proposal

The Board is asked to consider the following dates for the Board meetings in 2020:All Wednesday’s at 2pm •
•
•
•
•
•

12 February;
15 April;
24 June;
16 September;
4 November; and
9 December.

All meetings will start at 2pm and will be held in Woodhill House. Meeting rooms have been
provisionally booked and electronic appointments will be issued following approval of the dates
above.


Recommendation

It is recommended that the Board:1. Considers the above and agrees the proposed dates; and
2. Requests that appointments be sent out to members following this meeting.

Mark Masson,
Clerk of NESTRANS Board
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Agenda Item 3a
NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 18 September 2019

Strategy - 3a Director’s report on liaison between RTPs, and with the
Scottish Government and Others

Purpose of Report



The purpose of this report is to update the Board on liaison with other RTPs, with the Scottish
Government and other organisations.
Background



This report details meetings with other RTPs across Scotland, Transport Scotland and other
national transport bodies highlighting issues of interest across Scotland. It also notes the
minutes from Steering Group meetings covering both the Health and Transport Action Plan
(HTAP) and the Bus Alliance (previously LABOF).
Recent Developments



The last full Board meeting was held on Wednesday 19 June 2019.
The following meetings took place after the issue of papers for the last Board meeting, but
are reported here for Members’ information.
❖

Rail Quarterly Meeting with Transport Scotland, Network Rail and ScotRail,
Aberdeen and site visit, 12 June 2019

The group met in Aberdeen and discussion was focussed around the following topics:
•
•
•
•
•

•

Aberdeen to Inverness enhancement project;
Consideration of possible timetable adjustments which might be possible to enhance
service provision within the region, subject to the overall needs of the network;
The Nestrans Board consideration of Aecom’s FPASTS report on Airport spur and NW
stations;
Nestrans2040: discussion around Nestrans’ strategy review and the rail paper which
was circulated;
First 172 Bus service to provide a link to Dyce Station, to ensure that Aberdeen
City/First are communicating with ScotRail etc - a) publicity b) issues in regard to
turning circle (ensuring awareness of current replacement bus services);
Portlethen Plaque: Nestrans had facilitated the production of a replacement plaque,
which subsequent to the meeting has now been implemented on-site at Portlethen.

Rab Dickson and Kelly Wiltshire then took Jacqueline Macdonald of Transport Scotland
around the region to see at first hand some of the projects which had been discussed.

❖

City Region Deal Transport Working Group Meeting, Aberdeen, 18 June 2019

The City Region Deal Transport Working Group consists of officers from Aberdeen City and
Aberdeenshire Councils along with Nestrans and Transport Scotland.

Page 15

The group met on 18 June and discussed:
1. NTS/STPR Regional Groups and Scottish Government Future Working
Arrangements – Update
2. Aberdeen City Region Deal – Updates

a. Overall Programme
b. Joint Committee / Programme Board Feedback
c. Equalities
d. Scottish Gov - UK Gov Liaison
e. Other Work Streams
3. Strategic Transport Appraisal

a. ASAM Upgrade
b. Cumulative Traffic Assessment (CTA)
c. Options Development and Sieving
d. Wider policy linkages
e. Project Status Report
4. External Links to Aberdeen South Harbour

a. STAG Part 2 Appraisal
b. Project Status Report
5. Associated CRD Projects – Laurencekirk grade-separated junction
6. Associated CRD Projects – Aberdeen to Central Belt Rail
7. Communications
8. Spend Profile

Meetings of relevance held since the last Board meeting include:
❖

Road Safety North East, Elgin, 26 June 2019

The Road Safety North East Scotland Lead Officers Group met at Moray’s HQ in Elgin - Rab
Dickson dialled in. The Agenda included discussion on:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Road Casualty Statistical Update and Trends;
North Safety Camera Unit Update, incl. new site meetings;
AWPR Update;
Police Scotland Update (Road Policing / North East Div.);
Rider Refinement North 2019 (motorcycle training);
Regional Transport Strategy Development;
Collision Data Related Issues;
Road Safety Scotland Update;
Road Safety Framework Annual Report 2018;
Older Driver Related Work;
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•
•
•
•
•

20 MPH Bill - Parliamentary Update;
Road Casualty Reduction Strategy - Action Plan update;
Local Road Safety Plans / Annual Priorities;
Leaders Group for Public Protection; and
Road Safety Media Summary.

❖

Aberdeen Prospers, Aberdeen, 26 June 2019

The Aberdeen Prospers Group is the Economic Outcome Improvement Group, under
Community Planning Aberdeen. Rab Dickson attended the meeting at Elevator, Bridge of
Don. The meeting considered:
1. Feedback from management group;
2. A Focus on:
a. Digital skills projects,
b. Start-up business project;
3. Delivery risks / forward plan of improvement charters;
4. Business engagement across the community planning partnership – suggestions for
the Board.

❖

Public Meeting on Rail Matters, Laurencekirk, 28 June 2019

Kelly Wiltshire attended a public meeting in Laurencekirk, which had been called by Mairi
Gougeon MSP to address local concerns regarding timetable changes, reliability and other
issues regarding rail services in the Mearns.
The meeting was attended by Scott Prentice of ScotRail, Mairi Gougeon MSP, Andrew Bowie
MP, Aberdeenshire Provost Bill Howatson and other local Councillors, local media and a large
turnout of members of the public.
The main concerns were around the number of cancellations. There was also a lot of
unhappiness around services going South no longer stopping at Portlethen or Laurencekirk
and much reduced services stopping at Stonehaven going direct to central belt. There were
also lots of concerns about interchanging at Montrose to go South.
Scott Prentice from ScotRail agreed to return to Laurencekirk in six months, to give an update
and what if anything could be done to the timetable, to allow some services to go direct to the
central belt and return without interchanging at Montrose.

❖

Strategic Park & Ride, Aberdeen, 30 July 2019

Rab Dickson and Kirsty Chalmers met with Ewan Wallace of Aberdeenshire Council and
Transport Scotland’s officers responsible for Park & Ride.
The meeting discussed the development of Park & Ride in the north east, including the varying
success between different sites, the potential for a further site at Portlethen and the possible
role of Transport Scotland in helping to deliver that.
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❖

Infrastructure Commission, Aberdeen, 6 August 2019

Kirsty Chalmers attended an Infrastructure Commission Regional Forum at Jury’s Inn,
Aberdeen Airport. The Infrastructure Commission is hearing evidence regarding Scotland’s
future infrastructure needs and is collating evidence.

❖

RTP Lead Officers, Perth, 7 August 2019

Rab Dickson and Nicky Laird attended the meeting of RTP Lead Officers, representing
Nestrans. The meeting received a presentation from Cubic Transportation Systems on in-car
Variable Messaging and also heard from Karen Furey from Transport Scotland’s Active Travel
team, to discuss the RTP active travel funding grant and progress reports from 2018/19.
Other agenda items included:
• An update on the National Transport Strategy and Strategic Transport Projects Review
(STPR2), following the publication of the draft NTS consultation;
• East Coast Mainline Authorities (ECMA);
• West Coast Rail 250;
• An update on developments from the CoSLA Environment & Economy Committee;
• The Thistle Card scheme;
• Scotland’s Low Emission Zones;
• The future of Liftshare;
• An opportunity to collate information on journey times to access services; and
• A proposal for the RTPs to jointly contribute towards a future Holyrood Magazine
article.

❖

City Region Deal Programme Board, Aberdeen, 15 August 2019

Rab Dickson attended the Programme Board for the City Region Deal.
included:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Agenda items

•

Annual Conversation;
Change Request – Strategic Links to Aberdeen South Harbour;
Committee Papers (subject to approval at Programme Board);
Minute of the last meeting;
Programme Updates;
IBI Group Presentation: The Regional Data Exchange;
Project Proposal for Visualisation Centre to move to Business Case;
Progress of Strategic Transport Appraisals;
Update Report on Transport;
Draft City Deal Annual Report; and
Standing Items on Communications, Risk Log and Implementation Plan.

❖

Scottish Policy Conference, Glasgow, 28 August 2019

Councillor Sandra Macdonald had been asked to speak at the Scotland Policy Conference on
Delivering the National Transport Strategy as Vice-Chair of Nestrans, but representing
Regional Transport Partnerships generally. Rab Dickson was also in attendance.
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Conference speakers included Transport Scotland’s Director of Transport, Strategy and
Analysis, Alison Irvine, as well as presentations on Glasgow Connectivity Commission and
Scottish Rural Action.
Other sessions included speakers covering:
• Improving health and wellbeing and promoting social inclusion through transport:
access, urban design and reducing pollution in Scotland’s towns and cities; and
• Delivering key infrastructure projects, planning, and supporting sustainable economic
growth.

❖

Bus Alliance Board, Aberdeen, 29 August 2019

The latest meeting of the Bus Alliance Board was held at the Aberdeen Town House and was
chaired by George Mair. Nestrans was represented by Rab Dickson, Kirsty Chalmers and
Nicky Laird.
A draft minute of the meeting is attached as Appendix 1 to this report for members’
information.

❖

RTP Chairs meeting, Glasgow, 4 September 2019

Nicky Laird attended this meeting along with the Vice Chair, Councillor Macdonald.
Chairs were joined by Cabinet Secretary Michael Matheson to discuss the role of RTPs, the
draft NTS and the recently published Programme for Government. The meeting also received
presentations from SPT on their Subway Modernisation project and from Scott Prentice of
ScotRail on the progress of Revolution in Rail.
Other agenda items included:
• National Transport Strategy & STPR2:
o NTS Consultation Response;
• RTP Chairs Work Programme:
o Future invitees to Chairs meetings;
• Stakeholder & Modal Updates:
o East Coast Mainline Authorities;
o West Coast Rail;
o Low Emission Zones;
o Scottish Islands Passport Update;
• MaaS Investment Fund; and
• Holyrood Magazine Proposal.

❖

Civitas Portis Annual Meeting, Klaipeda, 3-5 September 2019

The Steering Group and Annual Meeting of the Civitas Portis project was held in Klaipeda in
Lithuania. Nestrans was represented by Rab Dickson, with Councillor Bell and Gale Beattie
also attending for Aberdeen City Council.
The project is now moving into its final year and next year’s Annual Meeting is scheduled to
take place in Aberdeen in June.
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Recent Meetings

A number of meetings have taken place between the preparation of papers and the date of
the Board. These are listed below and an oral update can be provided if required:



❖

Aberdeen-Central Belt Rail Enhancement Reference Group Meeting, Dundee, 12
September 2019

❖

Meeting with Transport Scotland and Aberdeenshire Council regarding
Laurencekirk grade-separated junction, by Skype, 12 September 2019

❖

Rail Quarterly Meeting with Transport Scotland and Network Rail, Aberdeen, 17
September 2019

❖

Regional Economic Strategy, Aberdeen, 18 September 2019

Future Programme of Meetings

The following meetings are scheduled between now and the next full meeting of Board in
November:
❖

Aberdeenshire Community Planning Board, Fraserburgh, 20 September 2019

❖

Road Safety Lead Officers Meeting, Aberdeen, 24 September 2019

❖

Health & Transport Action Plan Steering Group, Aberdeen, 27 September 2019

❖

City Region Deal Transport Officers Working Group, Aberdeen, 1 October 2019

❖

National Planning Framework 4, Stirling, 2 October 2019

❖

Civitas Forum Meeting, Graz, 2-4 October 2019

❖

Aberdeen City Community Plan Management Group, Aberdeen, 28 October 2019

Recommendation
The Board is recommended to note progress on liaison arrangements with other RTPs, the
Scottish Government and others and arrangements for future meetings.

RD/ 9 September 2019

Page 20

3a

APPENDIX 1

North East of Scotland Bus Alliance
Minute of Meeting of the Bus Alliance Board
Committee Room 5, Aberdeen Town House, Thursday 29th August 2019

Present

George Mair, Chair (GAM)
Rab Dickson, Nestrans (RD)
Greig Mackay, Bus Users Scotland (GM)
Ewan Wallace, Aberdeenshire Council (EW)
David Liston, Stagecoach (DL)
Gale Beattie, Aberdeen City Council (GB)
Andrew Stevenson, Transport Scotland (AS)

In Attendance

Kirsty Chalmers, Nestrans (KC)
Nicola Laird, Nestrans (NL)

Apologies

Andrew Jarvis, First Bus
Douglas Bain, Bains Coaches

Item
1

2

Action
Welcome & Apologies
GM welcomed and noted apologies.
Minute of the Bus Alliance Board 30 May 2019
The minute of the meeting on 30th May 2019 was approved subject to
amendment on page 2 regarding funding.
a) Matters Arising
All actions have been completed or are on agenda. The State of the
Network (SON) report is now available on Nestrans website.
EW noted that Aberdeenshire Council considered SON report at
Infrastructure Services Cttee last Thursday (22/08). It was well received
and there is a key interest in what is happening moving forward.
ACC are aiming to report SON to their November committee meeting.

3

There is an intention for city centre issues and congestion around Guild
Street and Market Street to be taken forward as part of the first priority
corridor study. It was noted that Ian Bell of Stagecoach has also spoken
to Sandra Macdonald regarding the issues.
Discussion with Transport Scotland on NTS, Transport Bill and
Funding
GM welcomed AS to the group.
AS provided an update on NTS, the Transport Bill and bus funding.

1
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NTS consultation published 31st July. To close end of October and look
to publish NTS end of year.
STPR2 will be informed by the NTS. To deliver a 20-year plan of
investment to complement the NTS.
Transport Bill completed Stage 2 in June. Two amendments put forward
around Local Authority run bus services. Both have been passed by
Parliament. They conflict with each other so require more work to clarify
and agree at Stage 3.
Advised to look at the Programme for Government (PfG) when it is
published Tuesday 3 September for further information relating to
buses.
Written version of verbal update to be distributed to group by AS for
information.
Regarding the STPR2 workshop on buses, it was asked whether there
will be an output or minute from the meeting that could be shared? AS
to check and share anything appropriate. Will also find out whether
there are due to be more workshops.

NL/AS

AS

The importance of the trunk road network and collaboration with TS was
highlighted. It was agreed that there needs to be consistency between
both local and trunk road networks as this can be difficult given that
they are covered under different frameworks and bodies.
Investment versus service levels were discussed, in particular with
regards to the complexity of decisions for local government and
commercial companies.
Key question is why people don’t use the bus to travel and what is
stopping them? What can the group do collectively to resolve this?
There is a lot of investment on all sides but bus operators report that
they have not seen patronage increases on the back of this. AWPR was
discussed in the context of bus patronage change. Need a level playing
field to be successful, but this can be difficult to achieve.
Noted relationships between operators and local government and
discussed communication challenges with regards to service changes
and consultation/communication regarding challenges on the network.
The communication Aberdeenshire Council has with Stagecoach was
highlighted as a potential example of good practice of a platform where
potential service updates and any issues can be discussed prior to any
action being taken. Noted that this is done regularly to try and consider
issues before they get to a point of no return. Can be challenging at
times but builds trust between the two organisations and they better
understand the context behind challenges. The engagement with local
area forums and the associated benefit was also discussed, despite it
being a challenging environment at times. Allows for more
transparency.
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4

It was noted Transport Bill Stage 3 debate is likely to take place in early
October 2019. If the Bill passes, then Royal Assent will complete the Bill
process thereafter.
Bus Alliance Action Plan
KC provided a summary of the report and the progress in developing an
action plan.
It was noted that any corridor studies would be in both directions.
Corridor will be end-to-end along a wide route. It was noted any study
needs to also consider the opportunities for key locations along the
route, as well as looking at the pinch points to free up the capacity and
improve reliability/journey times.
Purpose of studies are to clearly define what is necessary to include in
a formal agreement.
Regarding the region wide action plan, the intention will be to focus on
one or two shorter term interventions under each of the headings.
It was noted that, whilst the park and ride website will be a positive step,
we need to be moving forward to an app-based platform.
Could also consider integrating park and ride into the Traveline
Scotland app, as it currently has similar sections on other key locations
such as GPs.
There was a question around what actions would be priorities for
passengers? Punctuality and reliability were noted as being the main
topic for complaints to Bus Users Scotland. Information provision is also
a key consideration as the quality of information and the availability of
infrastructure varies across the board. Consistent and high-quality
information is key for occasional or non-bus users. Potential barriers for
non-users include whether information is available, accurate and
readable.
Information on proposals and service or fare changes are also
important. Are proposals or changes being made widely available,
allowing people enough time to feed-back and in a way that is not
restricted to being purely digital?
Ticket information should also be available off bus as well as on bus,
particularly regarding any promotions, for those who are not regular
users.
KC would welcome any input from TS and any guidance and support on
Bus Service Improvement Partnership (BSIP) for moving forward. It was
identified that robust guidance on BSIPs will follow Stage 3.
Recommendations were agreed.
As an aside there was a question over whether the new hydrogen
buses going to First Bus would be used on a single route, and whether
this route should also be considered as a future quality corridor?
3
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5

It was noted that DfT are very interested in Hydrogen opportunities for
large vehicles generally. Transport Systems Catapult are also very
interested as well.
Funding Letter to Cabinet Secretary
KC summarised the contents of a draft letter from the Chair of Bus
Alliance to Cabinet Secretary setting out our priorities.
Noted may need to reconsider the contents of the letter following PfG
next Tuesday.
To get a second draft out by the end of next week, following the
publication of the PfG. To be distributed to the BA Board by email for
comment.

KC

It was agreed letter should be from the Bus Alliance Chair. It was also
agreed to amend the letterhead to be ‘North East Bus Alliance’ rather
than Nestrans. To also include all partners’ logos. AS noted this would
be useful as it will impress upon the Cabinet Secretary who is involved
in the Alliance.
To forward revised copy of letter to AS by email for information.
6

KC

Low Emission Zone, City Centre Masterplan and Roads Hierarchy
GB provided an update.
LEZ got funding through for consultancy work to start. Tender has been
awarded to Systra. Currently looking at Sepa figures. Figures need to
be considered in context of AWPR as this has been making an impact.
Extra work is also being done on analysing any effects from the
harbour.
For output, ACC are looking at targeted measures. How these can be
most effective and tie in with other measures.
Roads Hierarchy was approved in May. Consultation has recently
closed on the SUMP. 160+ responses received from the consultation,
which are currently being analysed. ACC intend to bring a presentation
back to Bus Alliance before committee in November. It was agreed for
this to go to next Executive meeting.
Funding for LEZ was discussed. Will require additional funding for
retrofitting. It was noted there is a need to consider what the objectives
are for a LEZ as this will help to steer any decisions. It was agreed that
draft objectives will be presented at the next Executive meeting for
discussion.

GB

GB

Regarding City Centre Masterplan, ACC are in discussion with Sustrans
regarding proposals for making the city centre more accessible to
sustainable travel. Phase 2 of Schoolhill is under consideration. It was
noted that the meeting with bus operators on Union Terrace Gardens
was positive. Confirmed that road closure of Union Terrace has been
pushed back to January so as to minimise disruption from closing Broad
Street for the Christmas market.
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7

8

Dates of Future Meetings
It was identified that the next meeting of the Bus Alliance Board on 28
November now clashes with ISC. It was agreed to move this meeting to
the afternoon of the same day.
Dates were confirmed for 2020. Invites to be sent out by email.
AOCB
There was discussion over involving youth MSPs with the Bus Alliance.
It was agreed to invite a representative to a future meeting. EW to
supply contacts.

NL
NL

EW

RD noted that Nestrans are currently reviewing their RTS, which will
follow behind the NTS.

9

Following a previous presentation by Scotrail, it was asked whether
there had been any actions following that meeting? It was noted that rail
work has been progressing well. Three station travel plans have been
produced for Inverurie, Dyce and Stonehaven, which all include
integration with bus as part of the travel plan.
Date of Next Meeting – 14:00, 28th November 2019 at Woodhill House

5
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Agenda Item 3b
NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 18 September 2019

3b - National Transport Strategy: Consultative Draft


Purpose of Report

The purpose of this report is to inform Members of the recent publication of a Consultative
Draft of the new National Transport Strategy and to provide some key bullet points regarding
its content. This provides an opportunity for Members to discuss the main outcomes and
also to understand the impact on the developing Nestrans’ Regional Transport Strategy.


Consultative Draft

On 31 July 2019, Transport Scotland issued National Transport Strategy 2: Draft for
Consultation. https://www.transport.gov.scot/our-approach/national-transport-strategy/
The draft has been developed through a collaborative process, involving stakeholders in
various thematic groups and represents a significant change from previous documentation
which would have been done “in-house” and represent the views of Transport Scotland
alone. This approach has involved local authorities and Regional Transport Partnerships,
and has enabled Nestrans to develop thinking on its Regional Transport Strategy in parallel
rather than awaiting production of the NTS Draft.
❖

Summary of Key Points

•

Generally, the draft is factual, identifies and discusses key issues. However, it lacks
commitment to change, and doesn’t identify targets or make policy statements.

It is suggested that Nestrans should:
• Welcome the development of a National Transport Strategy 2, which provides
national guidance and direction for developing regional frameworks appropriate for
specific areas of Scotland;
• Welcome the recognition of the importance of, and commitment to, regional working
through “develop(ing) new transport governance arrangements on the basis of some
form of regional model…”;
• Welcome the suggestion for “a better alignment between transport, spatial planning
and economic development…”;
• Agree the importance of a robust Monitoring and Evaluation framework, but there is a
need to emphasise that national indicators must be capable of being meaningful at a
regional and local level;
• Note that the draft confirms the four key elements, which Nestrans has followed to
develop its RTS - Economic Prosperity, Environmental Challenges, Equalities &
Equity, and Health & Wellbeing;
• Agree that the NTS2 will provide a sound foundation for developing a Regional
Transport Strategy and provides some high-level direction, which Nestrans should
support and articulate in a regional context;
• Welcome the intention to review STAG, the application of which can place too great a
focus on peak-hour journey times and the most congested areas, limiting its value in
understanding the importance of basic infrastructure in less busy parts of Scotland,
and which can place less emphasis on assessing the role of Active Travel, Demand
Management or other innovative transport schemes.
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❖ Supporting Documents
In conjunction with the Draft Strategy, Transport Scotland has produced a number of
supporting documents. A separate report to the Board considers the implications of one of
these, relating to Roles and Responsibilities. The other reports published by Transport
Scotland alongside the draft strategy provide background and detail in regard to specific
elements of the strategy, Strategic Environmental Appraisal, other impacts assessments and
supporting information such as engagement so far.
Nestrans does not intend to formally respond to the consultation on the Strategic
Environmental Appraisal but plans to use the report to help inform the Regional Transport
Strategy, Strategic Environmental Assessment, Environment Report.
A link to the full report can be found here.
❖ Responding to the Consultation
Submissions are required by Wednesday 23rd October 2019.
At the workshop held for Board members on 29 August, Members provided comments on
the draft NTS2 and the draft response. These have been included in the updated draft
response attached as Appendix A to this report, highlighted as Track Changes.
Individual local authorities will be submitting separate responses, although this draft has
been shared with officers (and with partner bodies) in the hope that a consistency of
approach can be garnered from public bodies and partners across the North East of
Scotland. Similarly, Nestrans officers will contribute comment to an all-RTPs’ response, if
agreed by the Chairs of the seven Regional Partnerships.



Recommendations

It is recommended that the Board:
1. Note the publication of the Consultative Draft of the National Transport Strategy 2;
2. Consider the key points from the draft and the implications for developing Nestrans’
Regional Transport Strategy; and
3. Approve the response in Appendix A as Nestrans’ response and instruct officers to
submit the response to Transport Scotland by the deadline of 23 October.
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APPENDIX A
1. Is the Vision that is set out for the National Transport Strategy the right Vision for
transport policy over the next 20 years?
Yes, the Vision (“…a sustainable, inclusive and accessible transport system, helping deliver
a healthier, fairer and more prosperous Scotland for communities, businesses and visitors”)
is generally supported.
Please explain your answer. Nestrans supports the elements of the vision and is
developing its Regional Transport Strategy Review along similar lines.
2a. Are the Priorities and Outcomes that the Strategy is trying to achieve the right
Priorities and Outcomes for transport policy over the next 20 years?
Yes, the four priorities are generally supported. However, the Outcomes should be clearer
(for example a Vision Zero target for eradicating deaths in Road Traffic Collisions, a clear
commitment to achieving mode shift and a policy statement regarding managing demand
rather than following a strict policy of “Predict and Provide”). The statement “we will not be
building infrastructure to support forecast demand – we will reduce the need to travel by
unsustainable modes…” is supported in principle, although it should not be taken as a
moratorium on infrastructure, where there is a need which can be demonstrated against the
priorities and outcomes. It is also surprising that the statement on “phasing out the need for
new petrol and diesel cars and vans by 2032” is referred to as an “ambition” rather than a
commitment.
Please explain your answer. Nestrans’ developing RTS will echo the four priorities in our
key themes. It is our intention to develop a suite of indicators and high-level targets to
measure success against.
2b. Are some of these Priorities and Outcomes more important than others or are they
equally important? Please explain your answer.
There is a need to balance the priorities and outcomes, recognising that there may be
competing demands, but that some interventions can help achieve multiple outcomes.
There is also a need to recognise that a change in emphasis is required to ensure that
Health & Wellbeing, Environmental responsibilities and mode shift are shown to be serious
outcomes. These will require substance, commitment and long-term policy tracking to
ensure they are delivered.
3. Are the Challenges the Strategy highlights in Chapter 3 the key Challenges for
transport, or are there others the Strategy should focus on? Please explain your
answer.
-

-

-

Active Travel Delivery: cannot be measured solely by “Funding has doubled…”.
Indicators and outcomes to measure the success need to demonstrate that this
funding has secured benefits and in particular that this is achieving more people
walking and cycling.
Increase in rail travel: indicator should be passenger kilometres. The number of
passenger journeys is of less relevance, since ten short trips may not always be as
significant as one longer journey.
Electrification “…between Edinburgh, Glasgow and Stirling” does not fit well with
earlier statements that the NTS is for all of Scotland. A target of net zero carbon
emissions will likely require a solution to replace diesel trains, yet the roll-out of
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-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

electrification of the rail network will likely not reach Aberdeen/Inverness and other
key centres within the lifetime of this strategy. Alternative fuels for trains should also
be considered within the lifetime of this strategy, as this may be more relevant for
areas of Scotland where electrification is less viable.
“Scotland’s roads are getting safer” could be construed as complacent. The NTS
should reaffirm commitment to Vision Zero and aspire to the lowest casualty rate and
safest transport system in the world.
Poverty and child poverty: “The strategy will ensure there is fair and affordable
access to the services people need…” is a laudable aim, but is not backed up with
any proposals or indication of what is intended to achieve it.
Scotland’s regional differences: the section on Cities and Towns is contradictory,
indicating that population is moving out of cities, but “…if past trends continue, our
cities will see increases in housing and population.” The statement “populations of
many towns are growing, particularly those within the central belt…” is inaccurate
and misleading. Economic and population growth in the north east of Scotland over
the past fifty years has been the most significant in any part of Scotland.
Aviation: acknowledges a role for aviation, but does not recognise that some regions
of Scotland are also remote from key markets and flying may be a requirement to do
business. Misses the opportunity to indicate that changes are needed to Air
Passenger Duty, which currently unfairly supports some airports to the detriment of
others and although indicates that “…airports can take measures to reduce
emissions on the ground…” stops short of requiring Surface Access Strategies with
agreed targets.
Air Quality: indicates levels and shows improving situation, but without indicating
legal limits or targets does not get across the need for further intervention. Inclusion
of a reference to the proposed LEZs and the potential for active and sustainable
transport as a solution to air quality issues would be welcome.
Climate: As above, climate has been discussed but without indicating how issues will
be tackled. Important to ensure that there is consideration given to this in light of
‘climate emergency’.
Decline in Bus Use: lacks evidence and clear direction of what is intended to
address the decline. Again, passenger kilometres may be more relevant than
passenger journeys, particularly if comparing against road traffic, which is measured
in vehicle kilometres. Need to emphasise that local authorities’ role in supporting
socially-necessary bus services is increasing and causing strains on already
stretched budgets.
Freight: HGV impact is described as “particularly problematic at peak times when
commuters are travelling to work and children are on their way to school…” which
does not seem to support the statement that “freight is a key part of the transport
system…” and ensuring that it will be “managed and delivered efficiently to support
business performance and contribute to a successful economy.”
Digital and energy: there is no data or information to support the statement that “we
are seeing significant increases in people working from home and more flexible
working patterns.” Also claim that “75% of daily commutes in Scotland now made on
electric trains” – unclear what is definition and how that would look in passenger
kilometre terms. Need to also reference Transport Scotland work into future rolling
stock beyond diesel trains (hydrogen powered trains for example).
Spatial planning: agree that “Planning and development have a major influence on
our transport system….” and that “planning decisions need to have consideration of
the impacts on transport as a priority”. There is a need to be clear that development
should be directed to appropriate locations with good travel choices (limits on out-oftown developments) and a clear direction that Travel Plans, which are monitored and
enforced over time, should accompany large developments.
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-

-

Reliability and Demand Management: Claim that “Traffic increase in 2017 exceeding
10%” appears unlikely and is contradicted by the graph on page 40.
Safety and Security: this section is very light and non-committal. It needs to be
strengthened and supported by a commitment towards a Vision Zero of no fatalities
in Road Traffic Collisions and aspirational targets to reduce injuries.
There is a need to improve integration in transport systems and consider more
forward planning.
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Section B: The Policies to Deliver the NTS

Through the process to develop the National Transport Strategy, 14 policies have
been identified that will deliver its Vision and Outcomes and address the Challenges.
These are listed below:
1. Plan our transport system to cope with the effects of climate change
2. Continue to improve the reliability, safety and resilience of our transport
system
3. Embed the implications for transport in spatial planning and land-use decision
making
4. Integrate policies and infrastructure investment across the transport, energy
and digital system
5. Provide a transport system which enables businesses to be competitive
domestically, within the UK and internationally
6. Provide a high-quality transport system that integrates Scotland and
recognises our different geographic needs
7. Improve the quality and availability of information to enable better transport
choices
8. Embrace transport innovation that positively impacts on our society,
environment and economy
9. Improve and enable the efficient movement of people and goods on our
transport system
10. Provide a transport system that is equally accessible for all
11. Improve access to healthcare, employment, education and training
opportunities to generate inclusive sustainable economic growth
12. Support the transport industry in meeting current and future employment and
skills needs
13. Provide a transport system which promotes and facilitates travel choices
which help to improve people’s health and wellbeing
14. Reduce the transport sector’s emissions to support our national objectives on
air quality and climate change

4a. Are these the right policies to deliver Priorities and Outcomes of the National
Transport Strategy? Please explain your answer.
Yes, we support the fourteen policies and will reflect these in developing a Regional
Transport Strategy for the north east of Scotland.

4b. Are some of these policies more important than others or are they equally
important? Please provide details.
The fourteen policies should be seen as complementary and working in tandem towards
achieving the outcomes and objectives. Therefore none should be given more weight than
others.
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Section C: Transport governance – democracy, decision-making and delivery

5a. Are there specific decisions about transport in Scotland that are best taken at the
national level (e.g. by Transport Scotland or the Scottish Government), at a regional
(e.g. by Regional Transport Partnerships), or at a local level (e.g. by Local
Authorities)?
Yes, there are appropriate levels at which considerations and decisions should be made.
National Government and Transport Scotland should set overarching policy direction through
the National Transport Strategy and ensure guidelines and high level direction are clear and
are supported.
Please explain your answer, by providing examples of where you believe transport
related decisions should be taken.
In the north east of Scotland, the RTP and local authorities work in a collaborative manner,
avoiding duplication. Nestrans tends to focus on strategic transport, liaison with national
bodies such as Transport Scotland, Network Rail and train operating companies, whereas
local authorities focus on delivery at a local level such as bus operations, road maintenance,
etc. We believe that the introduction of third-party gatekeepers such as Sustrans distributing
Active Travel funding through a competitive bidding process has led to inefficiencies,
unfairness and lack of transparency. Such organisations are therefore seen by some as a
blockage rather than a facilitator to enable delivery of schemes. Funding should be
distributed to all areas of Scotland and be include a direct award between Transport
Scotland and RTPs or local authorities.
National standards (such as widths for cycle lanes) are not always appropriate in different
regions and a more pragmatic approach is necessary to achieve suitable local solutions for
different areas.
In addition, it is important that there is a holistic view on transport planning, with alignment in
national, regional and local working in addition to alignment between housing, transport and
economic planning. This is particularly in light of the importance of ‘place’ in planning and
infrastructure decisions.

5b. Should local communities be involved in making decisions about transport in
Scotland? If so, how should they be involved, and on which specific issues should
they be involved in making decisions on? Please explain your answer, by providing
examples of which transport decisions local communities should be involved in, also
suggesting how they should be involved.
Decision-making is appropriate for democratically responsible authorities, such as Scottish
Government and its transport agency, local authorities and Regional Transport Partnerships.
Local communities should be involved through consultation and involvement, but not directly
in making decisions. In the north east of Scotland, strategic policy direction is developed in
consultation through a North East Transport Consultation Forum, which involves key
agencies, business organisations and economic development bodies, operators, community
and environmental groups and representatives of groups representing people with
disabilities and other protected characteristics. There are also other opportunities for local
communities to input into decision-making such as Bus Forums and Community Council
Forums.
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Section D: The Strategy as a whole
6. Does the National Transport Strategy address the needs of transport users across
Scotland, including citizens and businesses located in different parts of the country?
Please explain your answer.
No, the Strategy reads from a Central Belt perspective.
- Inaccuracies regarding growth and electric trains have been mentioned above;
- statements regarding the Central Belt seem to imply that the rest of Scotland is “rural”,
whereas much of the population of the country lives in towns and cities outwith the Central
Belt;
- Accessible Rural areas within proximity of towns and cities are maybe the most car
dependent and difficult to encourage a mode shift;
- rural transport as a whole has not been covered in detail;
- passing reference to alternative fuels. There is an opportunity to emphasise the role of
hydrogen and Aberdeen’s role as a world leader in promoting hydrogen in the transport
sector;
- there is no recognition that much of Scotland’s population has no local access to the
railway network (for example, just 52% of the north east lives within 5 kilometres of a
station). Bus is by far the most important form of public transport in much of Scotland;
- undue focus on number of passengers (rather than passenger kilometres, which provides a
better proxy for usage);
- the section on aviation treats Scotland as a node (“connecting Scotland… to global hubs”)
rather than recognising the importance of regional air links and services particularly for those
who live some distance from Edinburgh and Glasgow Airports;
- Given the importance of maritime connections in many areas of Scotland, both passenger
and freight, it is important that these are also given due consideration;
- the section on Reliability and Demand management refers only to Glasgow and Edinburgh.
Section E: Looking Ahead
7a. What aspects of the transport system work well at the moment? Please provide
details.
In the north east of Scotland, the system of collaboration and partnership is working well.
Nestrans is a partner with the local authorities, provides strategic support and helps to
ensure a longer-term consistent vision, which can otherwise prove difficult for individual local
authorities. Nestrans cooperates with local authorities and helps to add value by
coordinating views across regional partners, ensuring a single voice where appropriate in
dealing with agencies such as Transport Scotland, Sustrans, rail operators, etc.
The area also has formal partnerships, such as the Bus Alliance where operators, local
authorities and Nestrans work collaboratively towards agreed outcomes. Other liaison
groups include a Freight Forum and regular rail liaison meetings, ensuring a channel for
discussion and efficient communications channels avoiding duplication or divisions.
One area which is working well is the development of joint bus ticketing, where a multioperator smart cashless ticket has been developed and is proving popular with passengers.
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7b. What practical actions would you like to see the National Transport Strategy take
to encourage and promote these? Please provide details.
The NTS could and should do more to facilitate and encourage partnership working and
reward success where this is shown to work. It is important to recognise that a one-size fits
all solution is rarely effective and partners in the north east have found ways to work
collaboratively to produce effective and efficient means of delivering solutions.
8a. What aspects of the transport system do not work well at the moment? Please
provide details.
1. The NTS references the need to prioritise equalities, health & wellbeing etc BUT
reality is that spend is focussed on roads and railways (and to a lesser extent
cycling). There could be greater emphasis that prioritising buses and pedestrians
and managing demand would better contribute to achieving stated objectives. Focus
is still on major infrastructure, rather than ensuring a basic minimum standard of
network for all parts of the country. Funding support aimed at bus users is very small
compared to rail, for example.
2. Accessing funding (e.g. Active Travel) can be challenging and funds mismatched
between the efforts required by local authorities and others to bid for funding with no
guarantee of success, resources going to a few authorities with additional costs to
third parties, difficulties in employing sufficient numbers of trained staff with no
certainty of budget and increasing requirements for match-funding failing to
recognise the challenges faced in some areas.
3. The existing use of STAG in many cases may focus priorities towards predict and
provide. The application of STAG doesn’t always allow the long-term benefits to be
adequately assessed against the objectives and leans towards addressing peak hour
congestion problems by building more capacity, in contradiction to stated aims.
4. Lack of reliable Monitoring/Evidence. Reliable data is not available to adequately
measure success and value for money against the stated objectives.
8b. What practical actions would you like to see the National Transport Strategy take
to improve these? Please provide details.
1. The NTS needs to go beyond high level statements and make commitments which
will deliver the stated objectives. Budgets also need to reflect these priorities if they
are to be taken seriously. Funding needs to be prioritised more towards encouraging
bus use and ensuring pedestrian safety as highest priorities.
2. Funding (e.g. Active Travel) should be streamlined and consideration given to direct
award, either to Regional Transport Partnerships or local authorities to ensure an
efficient system which is fair to all parts of the country, reduces add-on costs through
third parties and provides long-term stability enabling Councils to employ staff to
deliver schemes on the ground.
3. STAG requires a review to ensure that it adequately reflects the stated objectives
and priorities, and is suitable for schemes which enable improved active travel, better
places and manage demand as well as justifying major infrastructure schemes.
However, it is important that any review should not undermine in any way the work
currently ongoing, or that has been recently completed.
4. There is a need to identify the data required to adequately measure the success of
the strategy through reliable Monitoring/Evidence. This may necessitate bespoke
surveys or research and needs to be of sufficient scale that regional and local data
have large enough samples to be of value.
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9. Chapter 6 of the Strategy sets out immediate actions the Scottish Government will
take in three key areas: Increasing Accountability; Strengthening Evidence; and
Managing Demand. Is there anything you would like to say about these actions?
Please provide details.
Accountability: Before “establish(ing) Transport Citizens Panels to better understand the
lived experience of people across Scotland…”, Transport Scotland should consider the
success of existing forums including the North East Transport Consultative Forum and
whether Regional Forums might be appropriate in ensuring that citizens can contribute
meaningfully across all parts of Scotland.
Evidence: There is a need to focus on Outcomes (e.g. not how much is spent, but what is
delivered and achieved and what is its impact, such as mode shift). Evidence needs to be
relevant at a local and regional level, not just national.
Managing Demand is key to delivery of the NTS. The document states that “we will not be
building infrastructure to support forecast demand – we will reduce the need to travel…”.
Whilst this shift from Predict & Provide is welcomed in principle, there is a need to recognise
that basic infrastructure may still be required and there should not be a moratorium on new
infrastructure. The role of Freight needs to also be recognised and acknowledged against
the Sustainable Transport Hierarchy as an essential part of the transport network.
10. Is there anything else you would like to say about the National Transport
Strategy? Please provide details.
Generally, the draft is factual but whilst it indicates issues, it lacks commitment to change,
doesn’t identify targets or make policy statements. Future uncertainty is not dealt with, or
identified and there needs to be an emphasis on maintaining our existing assets which will
be increasingly important in the context of revenue and capital pressures. Overall, the
Strategy would benefit from the addition of a high-level delivery plan to determine how the
issues identified in the strategy will be tackled. It is understood that STPR2 is being
developed in conjunction with the NTS, and will set out a delivery plan to cover a number of
the issues identified, however it would be advantageous to include more direction on targets,
policies and actions in order to provide more clarity and a commitment to change.
However, Nestrans welcomes the development of a National Transport Strategy 2, which
provides national guidance and direction for developing regional frameworks appropriate for
specific areas of Scotland;
Welcomes the recognition of the importance of, and commitment to, regional working
through “develop(ing) new transport governance arrangements on the basis of some form of
regional model…”;
Welcomes the suggestion for “a better alignment between transport, spatial planning and
economic development…”;
Agrees with the importance of a robust Monitoring and Evaluation framework, but would
caution that there is a need to emphasise that national indicators must be capable of being
meaningful at a regional and local level;
Supports the confirmation of the four key elements, which Nestrans has followed to develop
its RTS - Economic Prosperity, Environmental Challenges, Equalities & Equity, and Health &
Wellbeing;
Agrees that the NTS2 will provide a sound foundation for developing a Regional Transport
Strategy and provides some high-level direction, which Nestrans intends to support and
articulate in a regional context;
Welcomes the intention to review STAG, which currently has too great a focus on peak-hour
journey times and the most congested areas, limiting its value in understanding the
importance of basic infrastructure in less busy parts of Scotland and lacking the tools for
adequately assessing the role of Active Travel, Demand Management or innovative transport
schemes.
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Section F: Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA)
https://www.transport.gov.scot/publication/national-transport-strategy-2-strategicenvironmental-assessment-environmental-report/

11. What are your views on the accuracy and scope of the information used to
describe the SEA environmental baseline set out in the Environmental Report?
Please give details of additional relevant sources.
The SEA refers to “…actions which support a net-zero economy”. There is a need to clarify
if this is intended to mean an economy which produces net-zero carbon, as it could be
construed as net zero growth.

12. What are your views on the predicted environmental effects as set out in the
Environmental Report?
The SEA appears to have identified the main predicted environmental effects and has set
these out in the Environmental Report.

13. What are your views on the proposals for mitigation and monitoring of the
environmental effects set out in the Environmental Report?
The SEA appears to have identified adequate proposals for mitigation and monitoring of the
predicted environmental effects within the Environmental Report.

14. Is there anything else you would like to say about the Environmental Report?
The SEA Environmental Report is a detailed and competent piece of work in support of
NTS2.

1a NTS
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Agenda Item 3c
NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 18 September 2019

3c - National Transport Strategy: Roles and Responsibilities


Purpose of Report

The purpose of this report is to inform members of the recent publication of a document
relating to Transport Governance in Scotland, which has been developed in conjunction with
the National Transport Strategy and to provide an opportunity for Members to discuss the
main considerations and potential impact on Nestrans. A similar report was considered at
the Board workshop on 29 August and it was agreed to bring a formal report for
consideration to this Board meeting.


Roles and Responsibilities

On 31 July 2019, in conjunction with the publication of the Draft National Transport Strategy
2, Transport Scotland also issued a number of documents that had been developed in
parallel. One of these relates to “Roles and Responsibilities - Assessment of Transport
Governance in Scotland”
This report summarises work undertaken by Jacobs on behalf of the National Transport
Strategy Roles and Responsibilities Working Group, to:
• carry out an assessment of the current provision of transport functions,
• identify any issues, and
• recommend a range of options for change.
A link to the document is provided below:
https://www.transport.gov.scot/publication/national-transport-strategy-roles-andresponsibilities-assessment-of-transport-governance-in-scotland/
❖

Summary of Key Points

•

The document is very detailed and has been developed through consultation with key
stakeholders, including RTPs, and Working Groups (Derick Murray represented the
RTPs on the Working Group);
There is recognition that “transport governance in Scotland is complex” and that “the
current structure isn’t sustainable or desirable”;
It acknowledges that “there is no one size fits all solution due to differing needs
across the country”;
An assessment of Transport Governance Options, informed by best practice from
elsewhere, has been considered using a seven-point scoring system against 15
criteria;
The assessment points to solutions with a regional emphasis, with a Growth
Deal/Regional Partnership Alignment as the option most worthy of further
consideration;
The National Transport Strategy contains a commitment to set up a further working
group to consider options and potential models.

•
•
•
•
•

3c Roles and Responsibilities
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Recommendations

It is recommended that the Board:
1. Note the publication of the supporting document “Roles and Responsibilities Assessment of Transport Governance in Scotland”;
2. Note the summary of key points above; and
3. Instruct officers to continue dialogue with Transport Scotland as they take forward
consideration of options for future governance.

RD/9 September 2019
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Agenda Item 3d
NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 18 September 2019

3d

Regional Transport Strategy Progress and Update

Purpose of Report



The purpose of this report is to provide Members with an update on progress towards
developing the next Regional Transport Strategy to 2040. It focuses on the outcomes from
the Members’ Workshop on 29th August, proposed headline principles, outcomes and targets
for the RTS, and an update on consultation and engagement.
Background



A workshop was held with Members following the Board meeting on 17th April 2019 at which
was discussed the vision, objectives and key themes of the future RTS under four overarching
pillars. The four pillars of the Regional Transport Strategy closely align with the four pillars of
the National Transport Strategy and are:
•
•
•
•


Helping the north east economy prosper;
Improving health and wellbeing across the north east;
Taking action to reduce impact on climate change and protect the natural and built
environment of the north east; and
Promoting equality across the north east.
Members’ Workshop Thursday 29th August

A further workshop was held to which all Board and Substitute Members were invited on 29th
August 2019. The draft National Transport Strategy, which is currently out for consultation,
and a paper on Roles and Responsibilities, were both discussed and draft responses were
provided for discussion. The draft responses to these consultations have been amended as
a result of the discussion at the workshop and are covered under Items 3b and 3c of this
agenda.
An update was also provided on the progress of the City Region Deal Strategic Transport
Appraisal which has now published the results of its option generation and sifting work. The
full report has been made available to view on the Nestrans website at
https://www.nestrans.org.uk/regional-transport-strategy/.
The outcome of the Strategic Transport Appraisal is a list of 42 separate options which have
been recommended for further development and appraisal. Contained in the list, there are a
range of policy ideas, road/bus/rail/active travel suggestions, and technological interventions.
Most of these options are recommended for consideration as part of the development of the
RTS.
A presentation was given on a series of proposed key principles and targets for the RTS and
this formed the basis for discussion for the remainder of the workshop. The discussion was
focussed on five proposed headline principles and targets for the RTS. There was general
agreement on the principles and targets presented and points raised during the discussion
have been used to develop these principles further and a sixth principle developed, as set out
in the section below.
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Headline principles and targets

We have suggested six headline principles for the RTS which would set the tone and direction
for the strategy overall. It is proposed that these are then supported by a range of more
detailed indicators and targets reflecting the broad scope of the strategy. These principles
and targets are set out in turn below.
1. A 50:50 mode split between car driver and sustainable modes
This target links to all four pillars of the RTS. Achieving a mode shift away from car
driver towards more sustainable modes is a central part of the strategy that will
contribute to all four pillars. As well as reducing congestion and the resulting economic
benefits of this, a shift to more active modes of walking and cycling will have significant
benefits for health and well-being as well as the environment in terms of reduced
emissions. Improvements to encourage more people onto bus and rail will help
commercial operators and the public sector to further invest in improvements to
services therefore enhancing provision and helping to remove barriers to accessing
employment, health, education and leisure opportunities.
What this headline principle is aiming to achieve is not an increase in public transport
mode share at the expense of, for example, cycling but rather a shift from car driver to
public transport, active travel and car share. The simplicity of a 50:50 target is a
message that is clear and easily understandable by the wider public. It recognises that
the car will remain an essential part of the transport network in many places and not
everywhere across the region will be able to achieve this target. Urban areas however
should be aiming for higher than 50% of travel by sustainable modes to compensate
for rural areas which may find this more difficult to achieve.
This is a challenging target and in order to deliver this across the region, it will require
significant enhancements to provision for walking and cycling, bus priority, high quality
park and ride services as well as demand management and consideration of measures
such as charging mechanisms and re-prioritisation of road space.
The baseline shows that currently around 66% of journeys to work are by car driver
and 34% by sustainable modes, as shown in Figure 1. Ideally we would like to move
to being able to monitor all trips (not just travel to work) and early estimates indicate
that when looking at all trips, the proportion of trips by sustainable modes is higher
than 34% although still short of the 50% target. The data available at present is
however limited and there is a need for more robust data at a regional level. This is
an issue that has also been identified in the National Transport Strategy which contains
an action to strengthen the evidence base at national, regional and local level.
It is suggested that Nestrans consider commissioning its own travel diary survey to
gather more robust data to help us monitor this target.
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Figure 1

Mode split for journeys to work in the north east (2017)

Further supporting targets relating to this headline principle are proposed as follows:
a) Increase the number and proportions travelling by bus, rail, cycling and
walking (individual targets to be set for each);
b) Increased passenger kilometres travelled by rail to, from and within the
region.
2. Improved journey efficiencies
This headline principle links primarily to the pillar to help the north east economy
prosper. There is a need to recognise that in order to improve the economy we need
to consider journey times and the overall efficiency of the transport network. There is
a need to maintain the benefits achieved by the AWPR in relation to journey times for
private vehicles, public transport and freight. This principle covers external
connections outwith the region but also the road and public transport network within
the region. It covers not just reducing overall journey times but also managing the
existing road network to ensure it operates efficiently.
Supporting targets:
a) Reduce journey times by rail to the central belt by 20 minutes and Inverness
by 15 minutes;
b) Improve journey efficiencies by road from Peterhead to the motorway network
at Friarton Bridge (baseline and target to be established for freight);
c) Reduce delays on the region’s road network to less than 10% of driver
journeys delayed due to congestion (baseline 17%1);
d) Improve bus punctuality to 95% of buses starting their route on time (baseline
90%2);
e) Improve average bus speeds (baseline and target to be established).

1
2

Source: Nestrans annual monitoring report
Source: Nestrans annual monitoring report
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3. Zero fatalities on the road network
This target links to the health and wellbeing pillar, specifically road safety. Although
there have been significant reductions in fatalities from road traffic collisions in recent
years, the aspiration is to reduce this to zero. This is in line with the national framework
for road safety which it is understood is moving towards vision zero. This is not to say
that reducing serious and slight casualties is less important but measures to reduce
fatalities should contribute to reducing the number and severity of road traffic collisions
generally. There is also therefore a need for supporting targets to reflect these wider
priorities.
Supporting targets:
a) Reduce the number and severity of all casualties (targets to be set following
publication of Scotland’s road casualty reduction targets to 2030);
b) Reduce the proportion of vulnerable users involved in road traffic collisions
(baseline and target to be established).
4. No exceedences of World Health Organisation (WHO) safe levels of emissions
from transport
Primarily linking to the pillar to improve health and wellbeing across the north east, this
headline principle focuses on the health impacts of poor air quality. There is lots of
evidence to show that poor air quality can affect health, particularly amongst those who
are vulnerable or who have existing health conditions. Transport is a key emitter of
pollution and Aberdeen has three Air Quality Management Zones where emissions
breech WHO safe levels.
Supporting targets
a) Reduce nitrogen dioxide and particulates (PM10) emissions from transport
below WHO safe levels.
5. Significantly reduced carbon emissions from transport to support net-zero
nationally by 2045
This headline principle primarily supports the pillar to reduce carbon and environmental
impact. There are however significant links to the health and wellbeing pillar as many
of the benefits achieved through reducing carbon will also significantly reduce
emissions that are harmful to health.
Nationally there is a commitment for net zero carbon emissions by 2045 and for
Scotland to be carbon neutral by 2050, so there is a requirement to be significantly
progressed towards decarbonising the transport network by 2040. We have set out
supporting targets for cars and buses below but feel that decarbonising rail, maritime
and aviation will need to be led at a national level and although the RTS should support
and push for such measures, achieving a target relating to this will be significantly
outwith our control.
Supporting targets:
a) Zero petrol or diesel cars in town and city centres;
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b) 100% of buses across the region to be fuelled by Ultra Low Emission
Vehicles (ULEVs) (baseline 7%3);
c) Substantial public uptake of Ultra Low Emission Vehicles (baseline and target
to be established).
In terms of wider environmental impacts, there will be a monitoring and evaluation
framework established as part of the Strategic Environmental Assessment which will
look at the range of environmental impacts of the RTS.
6. Accessibility for all
This links primarily to the Equality and Health & Wellbeing pillars of the RTS although
by improving these two, there are also positive impacts on improving prosperity by
improving access to education, training and employment.
Supporting targets:
a) No areas at high risk of transport poverty across the region (25% of all data
zones in Aberdeenshire are currently in the high-risk category and 1% in
Aberdeen City4);
b) All railway stations to meet desired accessibility standards (4 out of 9 stations
currently);
c) All buses, bus stops and interchanges to be fully accessible (baseline and
target to be confirmed through the Bus Alliance);
d) Accessibility to key destinations to include employment, health (including, but
not limited to Foresterhill), education and leisure (baseline and target to be
established once data source established).


Outcomes

Against each pillar, we have identified the primary and secondary outcomes that will be
required to achieve the pillars of the strategy and these headline principles. These are set out
in the table in Appendix A. This shows the broad scope of the strategy beyond the six headline
principles identified above. There is significant cross-over between the outcomes identified to
achieve each pillar with many contributing to all four.


Consultation and Engagement

The consultation website www.nestrans2040.org.uk has been live since May 2019 and
discussion papers posted on a regular basis up until early August. A good response overall
has been received with 108 individual responses split across 11 different topics. The
responses received have generally been from individuals and members of the public rather
than organisations who we are consulting with separately.
The responses received have been as follows:

3
4

Source: Operators, 2018
Source: Transport Poverty in Scotland, Sustran, August 2016
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Discussion paper topic
The accessibility of transport
The affordability of transport
Aviation
Behaviour change and mode shift
Buses
Carbon reduction and alternative fuels
Freight
Public health and access to health
The rail network in the north east
Road safety and casualty reduction
Walking and cycling
General comments
Total

Number of responses received
3
15
3
14
24
3
4
2
12
11
9
8
108

The comments received through this process have been collated into one spreadsheet and
this has been made available for Members to view on the Members Only section of the
Nestrans website. Respondents were asked to give permission for their comments to be
summarised and reported to the Nestrans Board and so those responses where permission
has not been given have been removed from the spreadsheet. The comments will however
still be taken on board in the development of the strategy.
Stakeholder meetings have also been held to date with a range of organisations, including
Aberdeen Airport, Fraserburgh Harbour, Grampian Regional Equality Council, Aberdeen and
Grampian Chamber of Commerce and we are continuing to arrange these meetings going
forward including with bus operators, other regionally important harbours, cycle
representatives and others.
These meetings, along with the comments received above, will be reviewed in depth as we
start to develop the policies and actions for each section of the strategy.


Recommendations

It is recommended that the Board:
1. Agree the six headline principles of the RTS and associated targets;
2. Note the responses received through the consultation on the discussion papers; and
3. Instruct officers to identify where additional data is required, including exploring options
for commissioning a region-wide travel diary survey and bring back proposals on this
to a future Board.
KC 5 September 2019
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Appendix A
Table 1

Primary and secondary outcomes of RTS2040

Pillar

Helping the north east
economy prosper

Primary and Secondary Outcomes
Improved connections from the north east to the rest of the country and worldwide
• Reduced and more reliable journey times by road
• Reduced and more reliable journey times by rail to Edinburgh, Glasgow, Inverness
and beyond
• Increased capacity on the rail network to allow increased mode shift to rail
• Increased range of connections and destinations available from Aberdeen Airport
• Maintain connections to key hub airports direct from Aberdeen
• Improved facilities for freight distribution
• Continuation of Aberdeen as the key connection for northern isles ferry services
• Support the development of our harbours
Improved connections into and within Aberdeen City and key Aberdeenshire service
and employment centres
• Improved access to all regional ports
• Improved passenger facilities at harbours
• High quality public transport, cycling and walking connections between Aberdeen
Harbour and the city centre
• High quality surface access options to the airport
• Reduced congestion and delays on the roads
• Managing demand for car travel
• Enhanced local rail network
• A park and ride network that allows users to access key destinations in a faster,
more efficient and cheaper way than driving door to door
• A bus network that meets the needs of travel to work journeys
• A bus network that meets the needs of travel for leisure and other purposes and
supports the tourism industry
• Improved perception of public transport
• Bus journey times that are competitive to the car in terms of frequency, journey
speeds and reliability.
• A city and town centres that are designed to cater for pedestrians and cyclists first
• A strategic cycle network that connects key settlements and business /
employment / leisure locations
Improved resilience of the transport network in the face of disruption
• Maintaining the existing road network to ensure it is fit for purpose
• Enhance monitoring capability to collect real time user information across all
modes, to input to journey planning tools and real time network management
• Managing demand for car travel
Integration with spatial planning
• Reduce the need to travel
• Support travel by more sustainable modes
• Adoption and implementation of travel plans
• Managing demand for car travel
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Improving health &
wellbeing across the
north east

Improved health outcomes linked to improved air quality across the region
• Reduced emissions of nitrogen dioxide and particulate matter from transport
• Increased mode share of public transport, cycling and walking
• Increased proportion of the bus fleet operating with low or zero emission vehicles
• Increased uptake of ultra low emissions vehicles across the region
• Managing demand for car travel
Reduced number and severity of casualties from road traffic collisions
• Reduced number and severity of casualties from road traffic accidents with a
particular focus on vulnerable users (pedestrians, cyclists, motorcyclists and horse
riders)
• Reduced risk of accidents at identified points on the road network
Improved perceptions of safety and security for public transport and active travel users
• Provision of safe and secure active travel routes and facilities
• Provision of safe and secure public transport services and facilities
Provide a transport system which promotes and facilitates travel choices which help to
reduce inequalities and improve people’s physical and mental health
• Improved facilities for cycling and walking
• Improved access to health
• Reduced need to travel
• Enhanced network of active travel routes that provide green space and natural
environments
• Improved access to leisure and open space
Implications of transport are embedded in spatial planning and land use decision
making
• Reduce the need to travel
• Managing demand for car travel
• Support travel by more sustainable modes
• Adoption and implementation of travel plans
Reduced social isolation caused by lack of access to transport
• Improved accessibility in rural areas
• Improved accessibility in urban areas
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Taking action to
reduce impact on
climate change and
protect the natural and
built environment of
the north east

Reduce carbon emissions from transport
• Mode shift away from single occupancy private car
• Increased mode share of active travel and public transport
• Increased use of low carbon fuels
• Reduce the need to travel
• New development that minimises travel distances, encourages mixed
communities, enables efficient service by public transport and enables sustainable
travel choices
• To place the north east at the forefront in moving towards a zero carbon transport
system
A transport network that is resilient to the effects of climate change
• A well-maintained transport network which is better able to withstand the varying
demands of weather impacts
• Reduced network disruption in the event of significant weather events
A transport network that protects and enhances the natural and built environment
• Place making
• Active travel corridors
• Improved air quality
• Reduced noise pollution
• Sustainable construction practices

Promoting equality
across the north east

Reduce inequalities in access to transport across all the protected characteristics
• Accessible buses and trains, stations, platforms and bus stops
• All transport information is available in formats that all passengers can easily
access and understand, before, during and after a journey
• Improving actual and perceived safety whilst travelling on public transport, cycling
and walking
Reduced social isolation caused by lack of access to transport
• Improved accessibility in rural areas.
• Improved accessibility in towns and urban areas
• Improved access to regeneration areas (particularly the north coast communities)
Eliminate transport poverty
• A public transport system that is priced competitively to the private car and
affordable to those that are most vulnerable to exclusion on the grounds of price
e.g. young people, unemployed / people on low incomes / students
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Agenda Item 4a
NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 18 September 2019

4a


Local Rail Development Study
Purpose of Report

The purpose of this report is to update members in regard to progressing the options for further
railway stations in the context of a potential cross-Aberdeen rail service. At our previous Board
meeting in June 2019 the Board agreed to progress with this study including consideration of
new stations south of the City.


Background

Between Aberdeen and Laurencekirk on the East Coast mainline, is a stretch of approximately
32 miles. The population of the area is around 69,000 people (42,000 in Kincardine & Mearns
and a further 27,000 in south Aberdeen), yet only three stations in addition to Aberdeen itself
serve the area.
In 2017/18, Aberdeen station had a total of 2.95 million passengers; Portlethen 43,000;
Stonehaven 523,000 and Laurencekirk almost 96,000. Laurencekirk station was reopened in
May 2009 and its patronage now exceeds projections by almost 200%.
The Strategic Development Plan and Local Development Plans identify the area as a Strategic
Growth Corridor and over 8,000 houses and over 100 hectares of industrial land additional
development is proposed for the study area over the next 20 years. One of the determining
factors in identifying Strategic Growth Corridors is their good communication links, including
rail lines.
There is an identified potential to increase access to the railway and to improve connectivity,
enable a modal shift away from car dependency and enhance transport links in and around
the Aberdeen area.
Nestrans and the local authorities of Aberdeenshire and Aberdeen City Council have had longstanding plans to develop better rail services, including a cross-Aberdeen local service. The
recent introduction of “Revolution in Rail” separating long distance from local services as well
as the ongoing investment in dualling the line between Inverurie and Aberdeen, provides the
opportunity for this local service which will operate from December 2019 and enables
consideration of whether further rail stations would enhance the viability and operation of such
a service.
The Strategic Transport Appraisal, funded through the Aberdeen City Region Deal, noted that
key transport issues are changing the car dependency in the area, as well as supporting the
realisation of the Aberdeen City Centre Masterplan. Improving public transport connections
from growing residential areas on the periphery of Aberdeen, to the City Centre (offering
educational, employment and wider leisure opportunities) is entirely consistent with national
policy, regional transport and land use plans, and local transport and land use plans. The
local cross rail opportunity also enables better cross-city connections to employment hubs at
Dyce.
The north east of Scotland has seen economic growth exceeding that of most of Scotland.
64% of the population are economically active (higher than national average), with over 78%
4a Local Rail Development
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employment rate (again, above the national average). Gross Value Added (GVA) per head of
population is one of the highest in the UK, some 65% above the Scottish average and 53%
above UK.
Between 2012 and 2017, the population of Kincardine & Mearns grew by 4.7%, making it one
of the fastest growing areas in Aberdeenshire. By 2037, it is projected that the population will
grow by a further 13,500 (6,400 in Kincardine & Mearns and 7,100 in South Aberdeen) –
critical to the North East’s Regional Economic Strategy’s aim of developing the people and
skills necessary to deliver the economic development of the region and ensure that there is
access for all employers to qualified labour. The RES is a 20-year vision shared by local
authorities and the private sector for the well-being of our place and our people. The North
East remains a major economic driver of the Scotland and UK economies, and improving
transport infrastructure is a key requirement to anchoring that economic base.
Enabling development in the right places with the appropriate choice of transport options to
access jobs and services is a key element of the Regional Transport Strategy and
Development Plans.
Facilitating access to the rail network will help to meet these objectives, whilst ensuring
transport choice, encouraging mode shift away from dependence on private cars and therefore
contributing to carbon reduction and environmental considerations. It has therefore been seen
as a key element of developing access to the railway network that a study be conducted to
ascertain the potential for additional stations, the optimum location (and number) and how
these could fit into a local cross-Aberdeen rail service, along with potential to the north of
Aberdeen previously considered.
The first stage of this will be a multi-modal appraisal of issues and problems, identifying
objectives and then following onto a STAG appraisal as described above. This will feed into
regional and national strategy development and delivery plans as appropriate.


Local Rail Development Fund

Following discussion at the Nestrans Board meeting in June, Nestrans applied for a grant from
Transport Scotland’s Local Rail Development Fund and it was announced in August that we
were successful.
Nestrans has been allocated £80,000 of grant funding towards a multi-modal transport
appraisal. Nestrans will prepare a consultancy brief for this work and commission the work
through the Scotland Excel Framework and Public Contracts Scotland, shortly in order to
commence the study. It is anticipated that an appointment can be made by autumn 2019 and
the appraisal is expected to take around a year, so will be concluded around October 2020.


Recommendations

It is recommended that the Board:
1.
2.
3.

note the contents of this report;
instruct officers to prepare a consultancy brief and commission the work; and
request further updates as the study is progressed.

KW/09 Sept 2019
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Agenda Item 5a
NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 18 September 2019

5a Active Travel Action Plan Update


Purpose of Report

The purpose of this report is to provide an update for the Board in relation to Active Travel and
Nestrans’ Active Travel Action Plan.


Background

The Nestrans Regional Transport Strategy (RTS) published in 2008 and refreshed in 2013
stated that ‘increasing the proportion of journeys undertaken on foot and by bicycle will make
a significant contribution to achieving the strategy’s accessibility, health and environmental
objectives.’
A commitment to develop an Active Travel Plan (AcTrAP) was included in the RTS 2013
Refresh with the aim of encouraging increased levels of active travel across the region. It
contained a long-term vision for active travel in the north east, in line with the overarching
vision of the RTS, to 2035. Reviews were scheduled to be carried out every five years. With
AcTrAP having been published in December 2014 the first review is now due.
As well as being informed by the recently circulated draft National Transport Strategy and
the ongoing work to develop the Regional Transport Strategy to 2040, the AcTrAP will also
be shaped by the ongoing work of both Local Authorities.


Update

For example, the Aberdeen Active Travel Action Plan 2017-2021, published in January 2017,
is currently undergoing a mid-term refresh to ‘take account of the opportunities presented by
the opening of the Aberdeen Western Peripheral Route (AWPR)’. The majority of the
projects listed in Appendix A of the 2017 plan are currently being progressed at the design
stage or development phase. The refresh of this plan is necessary to ensure it remains
current as a moving document allowing the City Centre Masterplan and the Sustainable
Urban Mobility Plan elements of the Local and Regional Transport Strategies to be taken
forward in addition to ensuring the inclusion of the various active travel findings from the EUfunded Civitas PORTIS project.
The objectives of AcTrAP were to;
• Increase the active travel mode share and work towards achieving the national vision
(of 10% of everyday journeys to be made by bike) by 2020,
• Improve safety for pedestrians and cyclists by reducing the total number of pedestrian
and cyclist casualties, the percentage of all road casualties and the rate of pedestrian
and cyclist casualties per 1000 population.
In relation to the first objective, it has proved difficult to obtain a reliable and sizeable measure
of walking and cycling data, whether nationally or locally. The tables reproduced below are
taken from the Annual Cycling Monitoring Report 2018 from Cycling Scotland, published in
May 2018. The statistical information used is derived from the Scottish Household Survey
5a AcTrAP Update
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and other sources however provide among the most detailed information available. These
figures show that in both Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire, there have been increases in;
• the number of people cycling to work,
• the number of children cycling to primary school,
• the number of children cycling to secondary school.
It should be noted that the report also shows there are very few cycle-friendly workplaces
and schools across both local authorities and two-thirds of the households in Aberdeen City,
and half of the households in Aberdeenshire, do not have access to a bicycle for private use.
In relation to the second objective, it is pleasing to note that the national and local trend in
recent years has seen a general reduction in the number of road casualties, including the
more vulnerable users such as pedestrians and cyclists. However, the personal toll behind
these figures cannot be overstated and a more concerted effort from society as whole is
required to ensure that considerably fewer people are affected by these all too regular
tragedies. [More detail to follow]
In summary, while it is clear that there have been improvements and significant investment
in projects aimed at promoting walking and cycling, our view is that more needs to be done
across the north east to encourage more people to consider changing their travel habits,
even if only occasionally, and including walking or cycling more as part of their daily routine.
With even more limited resources, it is similarly evident that collectively we all need to be
improve upon the current position, with improvements in partnership working, more creative
design and lasting infrastructure, while also ensuring a focus remains on delivering sustained
behaviour change through a variety of options such as heightening awareness of the benefits
and issues among the wider public and providing a network of widely accessible practical
training inputs.
To illustrate the scale of the challenges ahead, Chapter 10 of the Aberdeen City Centre
Masterplan and Delivery Programme, published in June 2015, describes the Infrastructure
Strategy and contains a detailed section outlining the aspirations of for ‘a cycling city’. For
this to be delivered, an increased rate of tangible progress across all aspects needs to take
place.
The first review of AcTrAP, containing a more detailed analysis of the progress towards the
two objectives, a comprehensive report on what has been delivered ‘on the ground’ since its
inception and what is planned for the near future, will be reported to Board before the end of
2019.


References
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Recommendation

It is recommended that the Board note the contents of this report.

JB 10 Sept 2019
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Appendix A
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10/09/2019

Regional Transport Strategy
Progress Report

nestrans

Sub Strategy 1: The external connections strategy
Current Actions/ Progress
Strategy Strand
Project/Action Progress
Budget
RTS actions
EC1 - Rail Links and Services
EC1a:
Intercity
Transport
Secretary
announced
go-aheadTransport
for £4.5bn
Strategic
Review being
undertaken
of the National
Reducing journey Transport
Strategy (NTS) which will set out transport policy
times to
Projects Review across Scotland for the next 20 years and will inform
Edinburgh and
an update to the Strategic Transport Projects Review
Glasgow, and
(STPR) – reassessing recommendations for strategic
further south.
transport infrastructure priorities throughout Scotland.

® = MTS project
Future Actions/ Progress

Page 57

To be done

Target

ScotRail’s
Inter7City
A contract first
to support
the train,
2nd
Strategic Transport Projects
Review (STPR2) has been
awarded to a combined team of
Jacobs and Aecom who will be
supported by Big Partnership
and the University of Leeds
Institute of Transport Studies,
as well as other industry
technical experts. This
substantial transport appraisal
will make recommendations for
S Gov future transport
investment focused on themes
of economic prosperity, equality,
health and wellbeing and
climate action and is
programmed to take 2 years.

The
Initialupgraded
meeting
with TS, Jacobs,
Nestrans, SDPA
and officers of
both Councils
held on 29 May
to discuss the
approach to
STPR2.
Nestrans has
agreed to
provide access
to the ASAM
strategic model
for STPR2

Status

↑

↑
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Current Actions/ Progress
Strategy Strand
Project/Action Progress
Budget
RTS actions
Aberdeen Ministerial announcement on STPR 10 Dec 08
Central Belt rail includes rail service enhancements between
improvement
Aberdeen and the Central Belt and reconfiguration of
the national rail timetable (incl trying to reduce
journey times to the Central Belt by up to 20mins) as
priority projects. On 28 Jan 2016 S Gov announced
£200million to help improve journey times and
increase capacity between Aberdeen and the Central
Belt as part of a £254million package in addition to
the City Region Deal. Mar 2017 Minister announced
team to be set up to review options for capacity
improvements between Aberdeen and Dundee, as
well as options for double tracking Usan Junction and
the South Esk viaduct at Montrose.

nestrans
Future Actions/ Progress
To be done

Target

Members of overview team
include representatives from
Transport Scotland, Nestrans,
Tactran, the ScotRail Alliance
and freight and passenger rail
service operators. A report
considering the progression
of the CRD Memorandum of
Understanding projects was
considered at the latest CRD
Joint Committee. Given the
practical difficulties of
identifying projects that
could be implemented prior
to the end of the 10 year CRD
programme, this report
identified alternative projects
to which the identified
funding could be allocated to.

There have
been ongoing
discussions
with TS and NR
regarding the
progression of
the project, in
advance of the
next reference
group meeting
to be held in
Dundee on 12
September

Status

↑
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Current Actions/ Progress
Strategy Strand
Project/Action Progress
Budget
RTS actions
EC2 - Strategic Roads
EC2a:
Aberdeen
The final section of AWPR opened to traffic on 19
Overcoming
Western
February 2019. Since opening fully, AWPR/B-T has
constraints on the Peripheral
continued to operate well, with road users now
network that have Route enjoying a range of benefits, including reduced
a direct impact on Balmedie to
journey times, improved journey time reliability,
travel to/from the Tipperty
reduced congestion, enhanced safety and better local
north east, such (AWPR-BT) ® access.
as the A90
Management of the A92 and A96 within the boundary
through or around
of the AWPR was transferred on 1 April 2019 to
Dundee and
Aberdeen City Council and Aberdeenshire Council, in
dualling the A96
line with Detrunking orders which were published in
to Inverness.
2010 and 2012, as part of the AWPR/B-T project.
As previously reported, Aberdeen Roads Limited
(ARL), Transport Scotland and Police Scotland have
closely monitored operation since AWPR/B-T fully
opened to ensure it is working as anticipated. Some
instances of queuing and delay on the diverging slip
roads have been observed at Kingswells South
junction during some peak periods, and this is being
monitored by Transport Scotland and ARL,
particularly with regard to queuing on the slip roads.

nestrans
Future Actions/ Progress
To be done

Target

Status

Operation and maintenance
continues on the route with
no major issues to report.
There are still pockets of
work ongoing, comprising of
small scale works related to
snagging/landscaping etc.

↑

EC2a (contd)
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Current Actions/ Progress
Strategy Strand
Project/Action Progress
RTS actions
Laurencekirk
Infrastructure Secretary Keith Brown announced
Flyover
£24M of funding on 28 Jan 2016 to take forward the
design and construction of a grade separated junction
on the A90 at Laurencekirk junction. Transport
Scotland has appointed Amey to undertake route
option assessment work and develop a preferred
junction option, leading to the preparation of draft
road Orders. Nestrans has shared previous work and
will be part of the Partnership Group overseeing the
EC2a (contd)
project along with Transport Scotland, Aberdeenshire
and Angus Councils.

Page 60
A96 Dualling

The Scottish Gov’s Infrastructure and Investment
Plan set out the aim to dual the A96 (T) between
Aberdeen and Inverness by 2030. Project included
within NPF3: Proposed Framework. Contract worth
up to £50M awarded by Transport Scotland to Amey
Arup Joint Venture for the route option assessment
and detailed design work to dual the A96 between
east of Huntly and Aberdeen.

nestrans
Future Actions/ Progress

Budget

To be done

Target

S Gov has
committed £24
million

Preferred option for a grade
separated junction at the
A90/A937 to south of
Laurencekirk identified and was
on public display at exhibitions
in Laurencekirk on 20 July and
24 August 2018. Material from
the exhibition can be viewed on
the Transport Scotland website
project pages. Transport
Scotland awarded a £300K
ground investigation contract to
Allied Exploration and
Geotechnics Ltd and work
commenced on 20 May and due
to take around 8 weeks. Some
traffic management measures
will be required when necessary
to allow work on or near the
carriageway to be carried out
safely.

Preferred option
being developed
in greater detail
and aim to
publish draft
orders in 2019.
Technical
meeting held
with
Aberdeenshire
Council on 23
August and
next
Partnership
Group meeting
scheduled for
12 September.

Following ongoing design work
and feedback from earlier
consultations, a number of the
options being considered for
dualling the 26 mile stretch of
the A96 between Huntly and
Aberdeen have been dropped.
Remaining options were
displayed at public events in
May 2019 and can be viewed
on TS website.

Transport
Scotland aims
to identify a
preferred
option by end
of 2019 and
further public
exhibitions will
be held when it
is announced
to enable
feedback.

Anything from Tay City Deal
Movement

STPR will identify shortfalls in the strategic networks

Status

↑

↑

↔
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Current Actions/ Progress
Strategy Strand
Project/Action Progress
RTS actions
EC4 - Connections by Sea
EC4b:
Civitas - Portis Aberdeen City Council, Aberdeenshire Council,
Improved access
Nestrans, RGU, University of Aberdeen and
and facilities at
Aberdeen Harbour Board have made a bid in
ports and
partnership with 4 other ports to the Civitas
interchange with
programme. Grant will provide up to 100% funding
passenger ferries.
for measures and run for 4 years from Sept 2016.
Nestrans has been awarded a notional budget of
£260-270k over four years, within a total Aberdeen
allocation of around £3.2million.
Ferry shuttle
Aberdeen City Council issued tender in 2007 to

nestrans
Future Actions/ Progress

Budget

To be done

Nestrans received
Nestrans continuing to work
half of grant up front with partners to progress the
£133K
various work packages we
are involved with through
Civitas and progress update
given in separate report on
agenda.
From 14 Oct 2013 the

Target

Status

↑
↑
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Current Actions/ Progress
Strategy Strand
Project/Action Progress
Budget
RTS actions
Aberdeen
AHB has received all the necessary consents in
Harbour
support of their expansion plans, namely from
Transport Scotland, in the form of a Harbour Revision
Order, from Marine Scotland, as Marine Licenses,
and from Aberdeen City Council as Planning
Permission in Principle. It is estimated that the
development will generate an additional £1 billion per
annum to the economy by 2035, and create an
additional 7,000 equivalent jobs. Funding
arrangements for the project incorporated
commercial borrowing from the European Investment
Bank, and funding from the Aberdeen City & Region
Deal. Construction contract signed with Dragados
UK on 20 Dec 2016 for the £350 million project that
will include 1,400 metres of new quay, with a water
depth of up to 10.5 metres and create an additional
125,000 square metres of lay-down area. Michelle
Handforth officially took over role as new Chief
Executive on 5 Feb 2018. Quay names are to be
Dunnottar the 400m east quay, Crathes the 175m
south quay, Balmoral the 300m west quay and
Castlegate the 540m north quay.

nestrans
Future Actions/ Progress
To be done

Target

Construction underway for
Aberdeen South Harbour. A
section of Greyhope Road
closed to the public from 17
April 2017 until the completion
of construction works in June
2020. The 22 caisson units that
will make the E and N Quay and
SE Pier of the new harbour
have been manufactured in La
Coruna in NW Spain then travel
1,000+ miles by sea to the
Cromarty Firth for quality
checks and are then towed to
Aberdeen, when required. By
end July half of the caissons
had arrived and been
positioned within the
harbour. More than 600m of
the South Breakwater has
been constructed underwater
and the structure has started
to show above the water's
surface.

The North
Breakwater has
reached its
completed
length of 640m
and work will
be beginning
on the Crown
Wall, which will
run along the
length of the
Breakwater to
give added
protection to
the quayside.
The final 7
caissons from
La Coruna in
Spain will soon
be transported
to Scotland.

Status

↑
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Current Actions/ Progress
Strategy Strand
Project/Action Progress
Budget
RTS actions
Peterhead
Plans have been unveiled for a £49M investment into
Harbour
Peterhead Harbour. The much larger fish market and
provision of covered landing areas, stores, ice,
boxes, water, fuel and all manner of repair services
are substantially complete with the first auction in the
new building in June 18 following completion of 2nd
phase of dredging works. The inner harbours will be
deepened to 6.5m and a commitment to completing a
further 100m of deepwater berthing at Greenhill has
been made. The necessary consents have all been
obtained. Contract awarded to civil engineering
contractor, McLaughlin & Harvey and dredging
contractor, Boskalis Westminster. Work commenced
in October 2016 and should be substantially complete
in April 2018. Further details on Port Authority's
website
Fraserburgh
Harbour

EC4c:

Support to

nestrans
Future Actions/ Progress
To be done

Target

Status

Peterhead Port became the
first to gain the accolade of
Responsible Fishing Port
under a new voluntary
programme, launched in July
2018 to demonstrate
responsible food safety and
good operational practices
within UK fishing ports and
harbours. The award was
made following the
successful completion of an
independent audit by
certification body Acoura.

A grant of £7.57M has been announced from the
European Fisheries Fund to deepen part of
Fraserburgh Harbour to give access to more boats
and improve local facilities. The major deepening
project of the North Harbour Basin is now almost
complete with the final works of achieving the
identified water draft availability of -4.7m at chart
datum expected to conclude in the early Spring of
2015. This basin will be operational immediately
post this.

Fraserburgh Harbour
Commissioners have appointed
specialist maritime consultants
Fisher Associates to prepare a
masterplan for the harbour.
The masterplan will comprise a
strategic framework for the
physical development of the
harbour over the next 20 years,
to support growth in existing
markets as well as facilitate
access to new business

Aberdeenshire Council has won funding from

The focus in one of the key

↑

The masterplan
has been
finalised
following
consultation
and can be
viewed on the
Fraserburgh
Harbour
website.

↑

↑
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Current Actions/ Progress
Strategy Strand
Project/Action Progress
Budget
RTS actions
EC5 - Connections by Air
EC5a:
New / improved Loganair has announced new flights from
Support
routes
Aberdeen, namely: to Haugesund from 24 Feb –
expansion of
its first route from the Northern Norwegian airport
direct
and third from Norway, to East Midlands from 24
destinations from
Feb – growing its presence at both airports and
Aberdeen and
to Brussels from 28 Oct – an optimised schedule
frequency of
via Newcastle to significantly reduce journey
popular services.
times compared to current travel options. All of
the services will be operated by Embraer 145 or
135 jets and will be year-round.

Future Actions/ Progress

EC5c:
Access to
Ensure protection Heathrow
of slots for
Aberdeen
services at key
hubs such as
London
Heathrow.

Weekly flights to London
Heathrow from Aberdeen
International Airport,
operated by British Airways,
are set to increase by three
taking the number of flights
to 50 a week during the
winter months. The increase
in frequency on Aberdeen to
London Heathrow services
will start in the week
beginning 27 October 2019.
The additional 1pm departure
will run until March 2020.

Peripheral

On the 25 Oct 2016 the UK Government announced
its decision to permit the expansion of Heathrow
Airport by permitting the construction of a third
runway to the north west of the airport. The
Secretary of State for Transport guaranteed
additional slots for Scottish airports at Heathrow as
part of the expansion during talks with S Gov

Aviation Campaign being undertaken to protect

To be done

Target

Widerøe is to add further
flights to Bergen from
Aberdeen. From September,
there will be an additional
departure on a Sunday,
meanwhile a third daily flight
on a Wednesday will also be
added to the flight schedule,
bringing the total to 13
weekly flights.

Widerøe added
five weekly
departures
from Aberdeen
to Stavanger in
June 2019, and
following this
latest addition
now offers five
daily
departures
between
Aberdeen and
Norway

The Airports Commission

Status

↑

↑
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Sub Strategy 2: The internal connections strategy

® = MTS project

Current Actions/ Progress

Page 65

Strategy Strand
RTS actions
IC1 - Rail
IC1a:
Seek to secure
an increased
frequency of
services between
InverurieAberdeenStonehaven and
improved
services to
Inverness.
IC1b:
Proposed new
station at Kintore
and further
development of
the rail system to
be set out in the
Rail Action Plan,
including
improvements to
the accessibility
of existing
stations

Project/Action Progress
Aberdeen to
Inverness
Improvements

Future Actions/ Progress
Budget

On 28 March 2014 First Minister announced £170
million scheme of works, to be completed over the
next five years. This includes redoubling of most of
the track between Aberdeen and Inverurie, platform
extensions to accommodate six-car trains at Insch
and Elgin and infrastructure to allow for new stations
at Kintore and Dalcross. BAM was appointed by
Network Rail on 16 Oct 2015 for the upgrade of the
Aberdeen-Inverness line.

Laurencekirk
invoice
forGRIP3
car park
received
by Nestrans
Kintore
Station Final
Included
within
report
on Aberdeen
- and
®
Inverness line improvements to be delivered by 2019.
Bid submitted to Scottish Stations Fund and award of
60% of the project cost agreed. Nestrans and AC
have committed to fund the remainder. Agreement
from Transport Scotland that funding in CP5 control
period can be carried onto CP6, due to the delays in
implementation of the main A2I works. Land
purchased. Designs and contract documents finalised
for the junction and footway improvement of the
U242C/Northern Road. Two passenger benches
from the previous Kintore Station have been sourced
and arrangements are in place to have these
renovated and installed on the new platforms.

Invoiced 2009-2011
£2.681M
in 2019/20
(with £2.087M delay
draw down from
2018/19)
Invoiced to date =
£27.6K

To be done

Target

The sections of line closure
for the Aberdeen to Inverness
improvement works ended on
Monday 19 August.

Full details of
project on
network rail
website and
project twitter
account:
@NetworkRailA
2I

EvaluationScotland
of Laurencekirk
Rail
Transport
are acting
as principle sponsor/ funder of
the station with BAM Nuttal
appointed as Contractor and
being managed by Network
Rail. Construction works
underway. Full station
construction anticipated to take
approx 12 months with an
opening date of May 2020.
During the recent rail
blockade the platforms and
foundations for
lifts/overbridge have been
installed. Ground works for
the car park have progressed.

Status

Recent
discussions
with Transport
Scotland
regarding
funding have
taken place,
and AC have
been asked to
set out funding
proposal for
consideration
by TS.
Anticipate that
full Nestrans
budget will be
utilised this
financial year.

↑
↑

↑
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Current Actions/ Progress
Strategy Strand
Project/Action Progress
RTS actions
Insch Station
Bid to the Local Rail Development Fund for match
funding of the Nestrans budget approved.
Consultancy study commissioned to assess options
for improving access at Insch station and Aecom
appointed following competitive tender.

nestrans
Future Actions/ Progress

Budget

To be done

Target

£21K Capital delay
draw down from
2018/19 and £25K
LRDF grant

Desktop review, site visit,
platform and level crossing
surveys completed and draft
objectives and long list of
options prepared. Initial
consultations and rail industry
workshop undertaken. Initial
option sifting and qualitative
appraisal of shortlisted
options completed

Meeting being
arranged with
all stakeholders
to discuss the
progression of
the project

Invoiced to date =
£13.2K

Status

Page 66

Southern
Stations Car
Park Study

Consultancy study to be undertaken to look into
£30K Capital delay
future forecasts for station usage in the Mearns area draw down to
(Laurencekirk, Stonehaven and Portlethen) and
2018/19
consider options for car park extensions if required.
Invoiced = £32.9K

Final report for this study
received and invoiced in full.
Suggested further action
around additional car parking
being discussed.

Local Rail
Development
Fund

The Local Rail Development Fund was announced in
2018 was re-opened for further applications on 28
Feb 2019. The £2 million Scottish Government fund
will be available from April 2018 to develop
community led options to improve local rail
connections.

Nestrans and Aberdeenshire
Full details in
Council staff prepared a
separate report
submission towards the cost of to Board.
the south of Aberdeen rail
station feasibility study and a
grant of up to £80K was
awarded on 22 Aug.

↑

↑
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Current Actions/ Progress
Strategy Strand
Project/Action Progress
RTS actions
Local Rail
Nestrans had allocated £80K Revenue in 2019/20
Station
to undertake a feasibility study into new rail
Feasibility
stations on the line south of Aberdeen. A bid was
Study
made to the Local Rail Dev Fund to cover the cost
of this study and as has been noted above, the
full requested funding has been awarded,
although it will be provided in stages subject to
approval that justification to progress the study
to the next stage is evidenced.

Page 67

IC1d:
Investigate, in line
with the principles
of STAG, the
feasibility, costs
and benefits of
new railway lines
to expand rail
provision in the
north east.

Portlethen
Fraserburgh Peterhead to
Aberdeen
strategic
transport
corridor study

New
ticket
vending
installed
and operational
Budget
approved
tomachine
undertake
multi-modal
study for
the Aberdeen to Buchan corridor to consider the
feasibility, costs and benefits of options, including
new rail lines. Study awarded to SIAS in partnership
with Peter Brett Assoc and Natural Capital. Funding
contribution of £25K provided by TS in 2015/16.
STAG part 1 assessment published on Nestrans
website and referred to Councils. Two further pieces
of work commissioned to provide further background
evidence to assist with future consideration of which
elements be progressed to STAG Part 2 appraisal.
Additional appraisal published on Nestrans website
and findings referred to Councils and Transport
Scotland.

nestrans
Future Actions/ Progress

Budget

To be done

Target

£80K Revenue
19/20 and further
£80K LRDF grant

Nestrans and Council staff of
both authorities will prepare a
study brief for tendering in
partnership with TS rail
directorate staff. Full details
in separate report to Board.

Potential that
full Nestrans
budget will not
be required and
if so following
tender process
a virement will
be proposed to
future Board.

£5.3K approved as
delay in draw down
to 2019/20
Invoiced in full

Additional
stop in Portlethen
in
Aecom commissioned
to
investigate rail requirements
between Aberdeen and Dyce
and Ellon optimistic scenario
sensitivity. Additional funding to
model a potential rail timetable
including further sites to the
north of Aberdeen agreed.
Study outcomes reported to
Board in June 2019 and have
been published on the
Nestrans website.

Status

↑

↑
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Current Actions/ Progress
Strategy Strand
Project/Action Progress
RTS actions
IC2 - Road Improvements
IC2a:
Haudagain
Stag2 Report finalised June 08 and Board agreed
Strategic Roads Study
option 5 as optimum solution and referred the report
Capacity
to ACC, who also agreed this. Transport Scotland
improvements –
awarded Jacobs £3M design contract to confirm the
tackling
preferred design and undertake the design, surveys
constraints at A90
and statutory processes to allow this scheme to be
Ellon - Peterhead,
constructed once the AWPR is in place. Made
dualling of the
Orders for the scheme were published on 17 Feb
A96 (as identified
2017. Transport Scotland advertised a contract
in the IIP),
notice on 23 June 2017, calling on the construction
Haudagain
industry to bid for the Haudagain Improvement
junction, Access
Project, which involves the construction of approx
to Aberdeen from
500m new dual carriageway connecting the A90
the south, and at
North Anderson Dr to A96 Auchmill Rd.
other junctions
serving
Aberdeenshire
towns.
Traffic Signal
Replacement of the Remote Monitoring System
Monitoring and (RMS) that only allows for dial-up monitoring activities
Control
. Upgrading all the remaining sites on this
Upgrade
architecture,124 units in Aberdeen and 31 in
Aberdeenshire, would allow for improved monitoring
and fault finding to be carried out and give the ability
to carry out alterations to the operation of the traffic
signals in a more proactive manner. In additional it
would provide the potential for corridors not currently
operating under SCOOT/UTC control to be brought
under control to improve public transport operations
and facilities for pedestrians and cyclists. Propose to
split project over 2 years and current budget allows
upgrade of almost 50% of sites.

nestrans
Future Actions/ Progress

Budget

£345.9K Capital in
2019/20 (including
£70.9K delay in draw
down from 18/19)

To be done

Target

Transport Scotland announced
on 11 January 2019 that
Farrans Construction have been
awarded the construction
contract to deliver the A90/A96
Haudagain Improvement. Lane
closures will take place on
North Anderson Dr over 3
weekends until 16 Sept and
one lane on Auchmill Rd
westbound will be closed
from 5 Aug for approx 6
weeks to allow utility
apparatus to be diverted.

Work is
underway with
the road
expected to
open in March
2021 subject to
weather
conditions.

Delay in draw down approved in
Feb to complete works not
invoiced by 31 March. Contract
awarded to Siemens and
installation of equipment started
on 10 Feb. By end March 79 of
99 outstation transmission units
and 46 of 91 communications
equipment had been installed
with 73 of 99 traffic signal
configurations being updated.
Completion of phase 1 delayed
due to extra Input/Output
boards being required.

Contract for
phase 2
awarded to
Siemens and
installation of
equipment to
commence
week beginning
2 Sept 2019

Status

↑

↑
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Current Actions/ Progress
Strategy Strand
Project/Action Progress
RTS actions
IC2a (contd)
Digital
Completion of the final stage of the UTC
Communication communication upgrades to allow the removal of the
s Migration
obsolete Tele12 module from Woodhill House. This
will align all UTC and SCOOT operated signals to
current communication provision and enable them to
be fit for future technologies.

Page 69

IC2b:
Strategic Roads
Safety
improvements –
alignment and
junction
improvements on
A90 south
including at
Laurencekirk.
Overtaking,
junction and
alignment
improvements on
A90 north and
A96. Route
Action on A92,
A93, A944, A947

Variable
Safety
A947
Route
Action

The third
phase
of Variable
Message
Sign
(VMS)
Road
Safety
Forum
to take
single
Casualty
Further
budget
approved
forforward
2017/18a to
continue
delivery of road safety improvements. Aecom
commissioned in 2016/17 to look at opportunities
such as overtaking lanes and junction improvements
and develop a series of statements from the Action
Plan. Night time audit of any missing road studs and
average speed camera case studies undertaken and
will help determine programme for 2017/18.
Delivery of Action Plan to be progressed and
business cases developed for individual schemes
along the corridor.

Reflective Road A944 / B993 to A97
Studs

A97 / A944 to Formartine

nestrans
Future Actions/ Progress

Budget

To be done

£14.8K delay in draw Contract awarded to Siemens
down to 2019/20
and installation of equipment
agreed
started on 10 Feb. Fifteen traffic
signal configurations being
Invoiced to date =
updated. All equipment now
installed and tested.
£14K

£154.2K Capital in
£134.7K
19/20 due to delay
draw down from
2018/19)

£26.6K delay draw
down from 2018/19

Target

Status

Invoices
received by
ACC and being
processed
before recharge
to Nestrans.

Works
started
on 22
Oct 2018. The works to
A96
Banff
Bridge
Feasibility
Study to consider active
travel bridge options has
been tendered. Consultants
selected and following award
report approvals will be
formally commissioned at an
estimated cost of £70K.
Preparatory work for analysis
to support overtaking lane is
also to be funded.

Tender issued to undertake
these works.

£21.8K delay draw
Tender issued to undertake
down proposed from these works.
2018/19

Anticipate the
works will be
carried out in
autumn.
Anticipate the
works will be
carried out in
autumn.

↑
↑

↑

↑
↑
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Current Actions/ Progress
Strategy Strand
Project/Action Progress
Budget
RTS actions
International
Contribution to allow iRAP Studies to be carried out £35.5K Capital in
Road
on the A98, A952, A93 and A944, which have the
2019/20
Assessment
highest number of collisions, as referred to within
Program (iRAP) Aberdeenshire's Road Safety Plan. A98 would
Studies on
require £15,000, A952 £10,000 and £93, £30,000 and
Strategic
A944 £15,000
Corridors

Motorcycle
Initiatives

Contribution to the implementation of Interactive
£40K Capital in
Warning Signs on A93 & A939 (NE250 Route) to alert 2019/20
motor cyclists of hazards if travelling too fast.

Page 70

IC2b (contd)

A947 Road
Safety
Improvements Minor
Improvements

Trunk
IC2d:
Union road
Street
Prioritised
maintenance for
strategic routes,
with particular
benefits for public
transport and
sustainable
modes.

Remedial Works highlighted following the i-Rap study £61.3K Capital in
carried out on the A947 during December 2018.
2019/20
Funding would allow for smaller intervention works to
be carried out

Bear
to undertake
£80K of maintenance
Bus lane
resurfacing

£49K Capital in
19/20

nestrans
Future Actions/ Progress
To be done

Target

The iRAP work on A947
identified that software was
useful to identify risks, but
less for evaluating
interventions due to
differences between
EU/Trunk roads and rural
roads. Virement proposed in
separate budget report.
Initial survey has identified
additional site for signage.
This, coupled, with higher
cost/higher spec signage has
resulted in an anticipated
over spend. Virement
proposed in separate budget
report.
Formartine Roads
approached to undertake
works on A947 including
renewal of, and additional
marker posts to standardise
use on A947 northern stretch
of A947 (Fyvie to Turriff)

Further work
required with
Road Safety
Foundation to
adjust software
for use on rural
roads.

Works
to begin
23 Jan
for a
Progress
has been
hindered
due to staffing issues.

Work to be
progressed to
tender stage

Status

Interactive
signage will be
installed
between
November and
January.

Awaiting
quotes back for
further works
on marker
posts on A947
and also on
enhancing
signage and
lining at
Kinmundy
Crossroads.

↑

↑

↑

↑
↔
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Page 71

IC2d:
Strategy Strand
Prioritised
RTS actions for
maintenance
strategic routes,
with particular
benefits for public
transport and
sustainable
modes.
IC2e:
Support Local
Authorities in
bringing forward
LTS projects that
contribute to
strategic
objectives

Current Actions/ Progress

nestrans
Future Actions/ Progress

Project/Action Progress

Budget

AWPR Signage Developing signing strategy and preliminary design of
in Aberdeenshire strategic signage. Full list of signs requiring
amendment or replacement being drawn up, but not
expected to be as extensive as anticipated as
signage at main junctions included within the AWPR
contract.
Roads
Report on roads hierarchy proposals prepared to
Hierarchy
ACC Full Council on 11 May 2016. It suggested
Review
principles to manage the transport network to
distribute traffic across the City and to/around the
centre to maximise use of the AWPR, direct traffic to
most appropriate routes and enable good access to
the City Centre with appropriate priority for active and
sustainable modes to meet the need to reduce city
centre traffic levels to enable the transportation and
public realm objectives of the City Centre Masterplan
to be delivered. Council resolved to approve the
proposed principles for the future distribution and
management of traffic across the city, following the
opening of the Aberdeen Western Peripheral Route;
and instructed officers to engage with stakeholders
on the proposed framework and intended hierarchy
including an online consultation. Consultation results
reported to CHI Cttee in August 2017 who agreed the
central Roads Hierarchy Principles set out within the
report and instructed the development of the detailed
roads hierarchy.

£11.5K delay in draw Works in progress and being
down from 18/19
undertaken by Aberdeenshire
Signshop

£86.7K Capital in
2019/20 (includes
9.8K delay in draw
down from 2018/19)
Invoiced to date =
£16K

To be done

Consultancy work to develop
options for a roads hierarchy to
make best use of the AWPR
and facilitate implementation of
the City Centre Masterplan
complete and study published
on Nestrans website. ACC
Internal consultation on draft
reclassification programme
has now closed and officers
are developing proposals
into the format required by
Transport Scotland to enable
changes to be approved. .
Officers are also working with
the traffic signals team to
identify whether any junction
improvements can be taken
forward this financial year.

Target

Status

↑
A project
proposal for an
A944/B9119
corridor study
was approved
in August and a
brief is
currently being
developed
alongside
partners.

↑
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Current Actions/ Progress
Strategy Strand
Project/Action Progress
RTS actions
City Region
CRD funding used to meet costs of upgrade to
Deal (CRD)
strategic Aberdeen Sub Area Model (ASAM) to 2014
base year commissioned by Nestrans to ensure it
provides a suitably robust basis for transport and land
use appraisal. Transport Scotland managing
requests for access to ASAM14 through Latis
framework with Nestrans being contacted to grant
formal approval.

Future Actions/ Progress
Budget

To be done

Target

Costs for ASAM
update to 2019
base year following
opening of AWPR
to be met via CRD

2014 base model and forecast
models for 2017,2022, 2027,
2032 and 2037 completed.
Revised draft Model
Development Report and
Audit prepared and being
finalised. Nestrans in
partnership with TS, AC, ACC
and SDPA appointed Systra
in July following competitive
tender to update ASAM to a
2019 base year with 2022,
2027, 2032, 2037 and 2042
forecast years. This will
involve a significant data
collection exercise to update
and calibrate the base model
to 2019 and to reflect the
change in traffic patterns as a
result of the AWPR. Auditor
to be appointed through
Transport Scotland's Latis
framework.

Requests being
issued for
available data
sets from
Transport
Scotland, NRS,
rail and bus
companies,
Aberdeen
Airport,
Councils etc
Additional
survey
requirements
being
considered
with aim that
these be
undertaken late
Sept/early
October

Jacobs were appointed to
develop the options generation
and sifting stage. Outcomes
reported to Nestrans on 29
Aug and published on the
website.

Brief being
developed and
to be tendered
to undertake an
initial appraisal
of the long list
of options
identified

IC2e (contd)

Page 72
Strategic
Transport
Appraisal

Strategic Transport Appraisal agreed as part of the
City Region Deal. Transport Scotland arranged
procurement and Jacobs appointed to undertake
appraisal.

nestrans

Costs of option
appraisal to be met
through the City
Region Deal

Status

↑

↑
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Regional Transport Strategy
Progress Report

Current Actions/ Progress
Strategy Strand
Project/Action Progress
RTS actions
Development
STF Supplementary Guidance was adopted by the
Plans
Strategic Development Planning Authority (SDPA) on
25 June and ratified by both Councils before coming
into force on 28 Aug 2015. STF payments to date
given in budget matters report. Decision of the Court
in respect of the challenge by Elsick Development Co
Ltd was published on 29 April 2016. The Court
upheld the appeal and quashed the Supplementary
Guidance. SDPA granted leave to appeal to the
Supreme Court. Hearing held on 13 June 2017.
Judgement announced 25 Oct and subject of
separate STF report.

nestrans
Future Actions/ Progress

Budget
Invoiced to end
18/19 = £83.9K

To be done

Page 73

Systra appointed to undertake
the cumulative transport
assessment using ASAM14 to
£23.6K delay in draw identify the impacts on the
down to 19/20
transport network resulting from
the proposed Strategic
Development Plan and to
identify what additional
infrastructure would be required
to facilitate the scale of
development. CTA report
prepared as supporting
documentation for Proposed
Plan that was agreed by the
SDPA on 24 August 2018 and
ratified by both Councils.
Statutory period of
representation complete.

Target

Status

Further
cumulative
transport
appraisal works
in support of
LDP MIR
allocations
completed and r
supplementary
draft CTA report
with option
testing based on
LDP allocations
reported to
Board in June
2019 and now
published on
Nestrans
website.

↑
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Current Actions/ Progress
Strategy Strand
Project/Action Progress
RTS actions
IC3 - Bus Improvements
IC3b:
Locking in the Appraisal and development of improvements that can
Review and
AWPR benefits - be made to 'lock in" the benefits for bus routes and
continue to
Wellington
active travel due to traffic reductions predicted as a
deliver the Bus
Road Multiresult of AWPR. This will include consideration of
Action Plan to
Modal Corridor road hierarchy proposals post AWPR and
improve quality
Study
information given on this separately at IC2e above.
and reliability of
Aecom commissioned to undertake STAG part 1
services and set
study for Wellington Road corridor.
out proposals for
extending bus
priority measures.

Page 74

New escheduling
system

IC3c:
Explore the
options for rapid
transit in the
longer term
through the Bus
Action Plan.

Bus Lane
Aberdeen
Cross City
Transport
Connections

Replacement system that will provide better routing
information and have reduced maintenance costs in
future

nestrans
Future Actions/ Progress

Budget

To be done

Target

£88.9K in 19/20
(includes 3.9K delay
draw down from
18/19

STAG part 1 assessment
finalised and has been
published on ACC website.
Aecom appointed to undertake
STAG part 2 following
competitive tender. Inception
report received. Traffic
surveys undertaken in June
to upgrade model with post
AWPR opening traffic flows
for quantitative analysis.

Paramics
Discovery
micro
simulation
model being
developed and
will also cover
the area
required for the
transport links
to Aberdeen
South Harbour
Stag part 2
study.

Tender evaluation was
completed, but work has had
to be re-tendered as a result
of concerns that ICT
Specification relating to
legislation for WCAG (web
content accessibility
guidelines) requirements
could be open to
misinterpretation.

Closing date
now 31 August
and tender
submissions to
be evaluated
and contract
awarded.

Charge
notices
sent
The
final
STAGnow
Partbeing
2 report
is complete and was reported
to the ACC CG&R Committee
in June. Budget approved for
19/20 to progress priority
elements from the study.

Brief to be
prepared to
develop the
Active Travel
schemes
identified
through the
study.

Invoiced to date =
£7.7K

£158K in 19/20

Scottish Statutory
required
to
£200KinCapital
Feasibility
study toInstruments
investigate ways
to maximise
£40K
19/20 and
connectivity between new developments in the
Aberdeen Local Development Plan. Contract
Invoiced to date =
awarded to Sias, Peter Brett Associates and
£0.7K
Energising Environments. The Pre-Appraisal report
has been finalised and published on the ACC
website. STAG part 1 appraisal reported to ACC CHI
Committee in May and approved.

Status

↑

↑
↑
↑
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Page 75

Current Actions/ Progress
Strategy Strand
Project/Action Progress
RTS actions
IC3d:
A90 Schoolhill Additional design works done to include 25 space
Expand Park and P&R ®
lorry park. Planning application submitted and to be
Ride provision
considered by Committee. One representation
linked to the
received. Further funding approved in 2013/14 for
development of
ground investigation and development of design for
the AWPR and
alternative site. Aberdeenshire Estates in
explore the
negotiations with regards to land. Land owner now
potential for miniwilling to sell the original piece of land identified for
hubs that can be
the site. Planning application for alternative site
served by existing
submitted in Jan 2014 for formation of Park &Ride
bus provision
with approx. 1000 car parking spaces, cycle parking
and lorry parking), associated vehicular access, 50
seat waiting facility building and associated
infrastructure to include lighting, drainage and
landscaping.
Ellon P&R
Phase 1, which includes extension to existing car
park, resiting of recycle centre and new directional
signs completed. Ongoing problems with land
ownership and acquisition has been referred to
Transport Scotland. Funding approved for phase 2 additional external waiting facilities and upgrade to
turning circle to accommodate 15m vehicles.
Aecom commissioned to progress scheme to tender.

nestrans
Future Actions/ Progress

Budget

£232.2K delay draw
down to 2019/20
Invoiced to date =
£20K

To be done

Target

Letter has been sent to the new
Cabinet Secretary for Transport,
Infrastructure and Connectivity
to seek a contribution to
strategic Park & Ride in the
North East, towards the scheme
at Portlethen given the inclusion
of the A90 (S) and A96 sites in
the STPR and the significant
funding towards this to date
from local authority budgets.

Discussed
during an
officer meeting
and further
information is
to be prepared
and forwarded.

Land Clearance works
complete. Delays incurred due
to requirement for a water
mains survey and finding that it
goes across the cleared site.
Discussions ongoing with
Aecom and Aberdeenshire
Council Projects Design
Team to complete the
specification for the tender
process – aiming for tender
to go out by 30th Sept.

Anticipate that
scheme will go
to tender by
end Sept, with
construction
commencing in
late winter

Status

↑

↑

IC3d (contd)
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Current Actions/ Progress
Strategy Strand
Project/Action Progress
RTS actions
A93 Crathes
Contribution towards the creation of a Mini
Mini-hub
Interchange Hub which would include for a
designated car park, improved bus stop facilities and
pedestrian crossing facilities

Future Actions/ Progress
Budget

To be done

Target

£58.9K delay draw
down to 19/20

Settlement reached with
National Trust for Scotland
Board for land. AC Property &
Facilities and Legal Depts to
complete land acquisition.
Awaiting notification of land
being transferred to the
Council.

Specification
and tendering
to be
progressed
once
confirmation
received that
land transfer
has concluded.

Invoiced to date=
£0.3K

IC3d (contd)

Oldmeldrum
Interchange
Hub

Page 76
P&R operation

Contribution towards the development of a Mini
Interchange Hub at Oldmeldrum to complement the
existing services operated by Stagecoach and Bain
Coaches and enhance the long term viability of these
commercial services. The scheme includes the
creation of a car park, footways, and lighting to
enhance alternative modes of transport and
encourage people out of their vehicles to reduce the
carbon footprint. Aecom appointed to progress
detailed design.
Brief developed with LABOF partners to gain a better
understanding of current usage and any barriers to
using Park & Ride in the North East and develop an
action plan to increase patronage and inform a range
of marketing and promotion principles. Aecom
appointed and market research undertaken with
surveys held at P&R sites and in the city centre and
interviews held with focus groups. Study outcomes
reported to Board in Sept and published on website

nestrans

£207.3K in 19/20
(incl £67.9K delay in
draw down amount
from 18/19)
Invoiced to date =
£1.8K

Research being
funded through part
of Nestrans Civitas
Portis allocation

Status

Consultancy work regarding
Awaiting
drainage issues, planning
decision from
approval and tender
Planning
specification and construction to
continue into 2019/20.
Aberdeenshire Council's
Legal Services are continuing
to finalise the land lease and
associated conditions.
Action Plan to be developed to A new Park and
improve P&R services, facilities, Ride website
information and promotion
has been
produced and
should be
going live
soon.

↑

↑

↑
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Page 77

Current Actions/ Progress
Strategy Strand
Project/Action Progress
RTS actions
IC3e:
Aberdeen City In accordance with Council's Bus Information
Improve
and Shire Bus Strategy documents - replace and/or provide bus
information
Stop
timetable display cases at bus stops within Aberdeen
provision
Information
City and Shire to ensure minimum standards and
including
Initiatives
content can be provided, is DDA compliant and
expanded realallows for future standardised region wide
time information
improvements to timetabling information. Further
systems across
funding approved for 2016/17 to continue initiative.
Aberdeen City
IC5
IC3f:- Transport interchange
See IC3c.
IC5a:
Union Terrace Aberdeen City Council announced on 12 Sept 2016
Maximising
Gardens /
that LDA Design has been chosen to draw up
interchange
Denburn Valley detailed design proposals for Union Terrace
potential of the
Proposals - City Gardens. The proposals will be taken forward
bus and rail
Centre
through the City Centre Masterplan and include new
station
Masterplan
access from Union Street and Union Terrace at the
developments,
existing Burns Monument. The central lawn space to
the links between
be retained and there would be a new café pavilion
Union Square and
opposite His Majesty's Theatre. Easier and more
Union Street,
inviting access with new raised walks allowing longer
facilities for
views and a gradual descent and new disabled
pedestrians,
parking and lifts into the lower areas of the gardens
cyclists and taxis
are also proposed.
and support
enhancement of
other interchange
points in
Aberdeen.

Peterhead ®

nestrans
Future Actions/ Progress

Budget

To be done

£10K Capital in
2019/20

This is a reactive programme
Works ongoing
resulting from bus stop changes as required.
and remedial works identified by
inspections throughout the year.

Invoiced to date =
£2.8K

To be investigated and
Detailed planning application
submitted in April 2017.
Refinements made by LDA to
allow for any future
development of the adjacent
railway include realigning the
UTG/Union Bridge walkway and
modifying the position and
appearance of the proposed
Union Street/Union Terrace
building. ACC approved the
planning application on 28
March 2018. Balfour Beattie
appointed to undertake £25.7M
works. Nestrans has claimed
£133.7K contribution towards
the design and development
costs via the 18/19 RTP Active
Travel Grant.

Target

Status

Contractor to
start on site on
Mon 9 Sept. A
number of
footways
around the site
will be closed
due to the
protective
hoardings
required during
the work. The
slip road
between
Rosemount
Viaduct and
Union Terr is
being
permanently
closed off.
Work to be
complete
summer 2021

↑

↑

Completed. Opened July 07.
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Current Actions/ Progress
Strategy Strand
Project/Action Progress
RTS actions
IC5c:
Integrated
The integrated ticketing strategy (including smartcard
Work with
Ticketing
possibilities) as approved by Nestrans Board on 18
operators to
April was approved by both Councils and is available
develop
to download from Nestrans website. Launch of new
integrated
multi operator ticket scheme - Grasshopper took
ticketing across
place on 8 May 2014. Full details on prices and
services and
coverage on grasshopperpass.com website.
operators in the
Grasshopper pass coverage extended to allow travel
north east.
on multi-operator services over a wider area in 2015.
From 22 Aug 2016 the Grasshopper ticket can be
stored on a smartcard, making it Scotland's first
means of smart multi-operator travel.

Page 78

Scotland wide
IC6 - Walking and Cycling
IC6b:
Schoolhill public
Urban realm
realm
improvements to
improve the
pedestrian
environment,
including
pedestrianisation
schemes in the
City Centre.

nestrans
Future Actions/ Progress

Budget

To be done

Target

Costs being met
from approved Bus
Action Plan budget

Nestrans has again agreed to
contribute in 2019/20 along
with both Councils,
Stagecoach and First
Aberdeen to a marketing
campaign to advertise the
GrassHOPPER smartcard.

"Where's Claire
(and David )"
competition,
where listeners
have to guess
where the
presenters are
travelling to
using the
grasshopper
pass is running
on Original
106fm radio
from 9 Sept

A consultation on smart ticketing was opened on 13
Contribution to phase 1 of public realm improvement £76.9K Capital in
to provide an enlarged entrance plaza to the War
2018/19
Memorial and Art Gallery with new footways.
Invoiced in full

On 9 March 2018 Transport
Nestrans contribution has been
invoiced. Phase 1 works
tendered by ACC. Hunters
appointed and works
commenced on 3 June.
Nestrans has claimed further
£166K contribution towards
the construction costs via the
18/19 RTP Active Travel
Grant.

Status

The results of
Stage 1 is due
to be complete
for 19 Sept with
a period for any
snagging
thereafter.

↑

↑

↑
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Current Actions/ Progress

Page 79

Strategy Strand
RTS actions
IC6d:
Continued
development of a
connected
network of
strategic cycle
routes on key
routes within
Aberdeenshire,
across the
boundary into
Aberdeen and on
routes through
the City to work
towards the
CAPS vision for
cycling and lock
in the benefits of
other
infrastructure
improvements,
including the
AWPR.

Project/Action Progress
Maconochie
Road,
Fraserburgh

nestrans
Future Actions/ Progress

Budget

50% Contribution towards the construction of a
£100K Capital in
Shared Use Footway/Cycleway between Fraserburgh 2019/20
Community & Sports Centre to Seaforth Street

A98 Shore
Footway Reconstruction
Street, Macduff
Phase 2

£29.7K Capital in
2019/20

A944 Aberdeen Footway Reconstruction
Road, Alford

£40K Capital in
2019/20

To be done

Target

Design works completed and
contract documents ready in
preparation for tender.
Outcome of match funding
bid to Sustrans still
undecided and may mean
project can not be completed
this financial year.

Contract to be
tendered once
funding bid to
Sustrans is
known should
it be
successful.

Works on schedule to be
included within the
programme for
Aberdeenshire In House
resources in Autumn 2019
These works planned to be
carried out during the
Autumn period using
Aberdeenshire In House
resources.

Status

↔

↑
↑
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towards the
CAPS vision for
cycling and lock
Strategy
Strand
in
the benefits
of
RTS actions
other
infrastructure
improvements,
including the
AWPR.

Regional Transport Strategy
Progress Report
Current Actions/ Progress
Project/Action Progress
Craigshaw Dr
cycle route

Page 80

Wellheads
Cycle Link
design

IC6d (contd)

Future Actions/ Progress
Budget

Project reduced to feasibility and design only and
£500K in 19/20
delay draw down of budget to 2017/18 agreed, with
match funding from Sustrans confirmed. Public
Invoiced to date =
engagement on Citizens Space completed on 12 Dec £2.8K
2018 and feedback analysed.

Detailed Design and Contract document preparation
for an extension of the existing Welheads Drive
shared use path to the north, by-passing the
roundabout, to connect with Farburn Terrace, the
extension will reduce conflict at the roundabout and
improve safety and directness for cyclists. Also
included will be the design of a cut-through at the
Market Street closure to create a safe and coherent
cycle connection with the Welheads shared use cycle
route. Bid to Sustrans Community Links to seek
match funding of Nestrans contribution was approved
and available budget now £60K.

nestrans

£38.64 in 2019/20
(including 8.64K
delay in draw down
from 18/19)
Invoiced to date =
£8.6K

To be done

Target

Traffic Regulation and redesignation Orders have
gained committee approval.
The Redetermination order
for the shared use footway is
still under review by the
Scottish Ministers. Sustrans
have not offered
unconditional funding and
meeting held end Aug, with
further meeting to be
arranged to discuss detailed
design.

There is a risk
that Sustrans
may not
approve the full
£500k match
funding
application or
that date of
confirming
funding will
have an impact
on the
programme
and
construction
start dates for
2019/20
Nestrans
funding being
used to
progress
detailed
design, but risk
that full match
funding for
design and any
subsequent
construction
may not be
awarded via
Sustrans.

Heads of Terms are being
prepared by ACC Estates for
land acquisition. The Detailed
Design continues. ACC
recently met with Sustrans to
discuss the grant application
as unconditional funding has
not been awarded and as a
result a further meeting is to
be arranged.

Status

↔

↔
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IC6d (contd)

Current Actions/ Progress
Strategy Strand
Project/Action Progress
RTS actions
Junction
Detailed design of options for alterations to Broomhill
Alterations to
Road - Anderson Drive and Westburn/Lang Stracht Lock in the
Anderson Drive with a focus on improvements for
Benefits (LiB) of Active travel. Land around Woodhill House has
AWPR
provisionally been confirmed to be within ownership
of ACC with no restrictions.

nestrans
Future Actions/ Progress

Page 81

Budget

To be done

Target

£49.5K in 19/20
(including 19.5K
delay in draw down
from 18/19)

Jacobs are progressing with
detailed design. ACC
recently met with Sustrans in
Edinburgh to discuss the
grant application decision not
to provide funding towards
the detailed design of the
scheme, which they consider
not ambitious for cyclist
benefit and as a result they
stated a new application
should be submitted for redesigning the scheme in line
with the current version of
Sustrans Places for Everyone
design guidance.

Nestrans
funding being
used to
progress
detailed
design, but
significant risk
that full match
funding for
design and any
subsequent
construction
may not be
awarded via
Sustrans.

It has been indicated that
project design could be
funded 100% via Sustrans.
Alternative proposals for
Nestrans funding to be
considered once formal grant
award has been received by
ACC.

Virement
suggestions to
be reported to
next Board for
consideration if
Nestrans
funding not
required.

Toucan at
Design of a toucan crossing and preparatory work for £15K in 2019/20
Murcar - design introduction of this facility to the south of the Murcar
roundabout to connect the cycle facilities on Ellon
Road between the Parkway and the Murcar
roundabout with those being considered from the
roundabout northwards to the Blackdog area.

Status

↔

↑

IC6d (contd)
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Current Actions/ Progress
Strategy Strand
Project/Action Progress
RTS actions
RTP Active
2018/19 grant claimed at end June 2019 towards
Travel Grant
F&B Way generic design of replacement bridges,
A944 active travel path feasibility work and as
contributions towards Schoolhill public realm
improvements and Union Terrace Gardens design
IC6d (contd)
and development.

Page 82

IC6e:
IC7 - Airport Surface Connections
IC7c:
Fixed Link
Support high
Airport to City
quality transport Centre
links to the airport
using innovative
and technological
advances where
appropriate.

This will be led by development officers within Council
Stagecoach Jet branded service provides a direct
public transport link operating seven-days-a-week
and from 8 July 2019 service extended to operate
every hour from 10.30pm until 3.30am to give a
24hr service and the peak daytime frequency of
every 10 minutes will remain the same. The
service also connects with the bus and rail station at
Union Square, offering further integrated onward
travel and there is one bus every morning that is
timetabled to go to the ferry terminal. Stagecoach
launched 8 new Alexander Dennis Enviro 400 double
decker buses for the JET 727 service. The vehicles
started 6 May 2016

nestrans
Future Actions/ Progress

Budget

To be done

£387.4K in 2018/19 Grant award of £220K for
claimed.
2019/20 indicated and
proposals submitted to
Further grant
continue F&B Way bridge
award in 19/20
replacement work and A944
indicated
path feasibility and design.
Suggestions also submitted
should additional funding be
available.

The new X27 First Aberdeen
service was introduced on 30
June. It starts in the city
centre at Guild Street and
serves TECA, Dyce Railway
Station and the Heliport and
operates every 15mins
between approx 8am and
7pm

Target

Status

Full details on
18/19 claim and
19/20 proposals
in separate
budget report.
Awaiting
confirmation of
2019/20 grant
award.

↑

↑
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Current Actions/ Progress
Strategy Strand
Project/Action Progress
Budget
RTS actions
IC8 - Port Surface Connections
IC8a:
Transport links Stag Part 1 assessment of transport links to new
Support
to new harbour harbour commissioned by ACC and PBA consultants
measures to
at Bay of Nigg. appointed. Appraisal and delivery of any approved
improve access
outcomes to be funded through £25M allocation
to port facilities.
within City Region Deal. Combined pre-appraisal and
part 1 Stag report completed.

Page 83

IC9 - Freight
IC9b:
Freight Action
Investigate
Plan
potential for
measures to
provide more
reliable journey
times for HGVs
and identify a trial
route for
implementation of
priority measures.

Finalised Freight Action Plan and Freight Forum
meetings can be viewed on Nestrans website. HGV
route maps for Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire
areas on Nestrans, Grampian Police and Council
websites. Updated freight action plan developed in
association with GreCor and launched at Freight
Forum meeting on 23 June 2014.

nestrans
Future Actions/ Progress
To be done

Target

PBA - Stantec appointed for
STAG part 2 and study being
progressed. Traffic surveys
took place in June to upgrade
Paramics microsimulation
model with post AWPR
opening traffic flows for
quantitative analysis.

Model upgrade
being
undertaken for
Wellington Rd
study and will
also be used by
PBA.

Civitas project (see EC4b)
contains a work package with
projects relating to Freight.
Freight advisor appointed.
Regular meetings held with
freight advisor and
implementation group and
works progressing. A
distribution strategy has been
developed and published on the
Nestrans website.

Freight
routeing and
preferred
options for
HGVs
continuing to
be
investigated.

Status

↑

↑
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Page 85

Current Actions/ Progress
Strategy Strand
Project/Action Progress
RTS actions
TRAVEL BEHAVIOUR
TB1 - Promoting Travel Planning and Travel Awareness
TB1a:
Travel Planning Continuing to provide assistance to
Implementation and future support
companies to develop travel plans. Travel
development of Nestrans’
Know How website launched on 22
Travel Planning Strategy.
September 2016 to help organisations create
travel plans. Promotional leaflets and
business cards have been produced on behalf
of Transport Scotland and Nestrans have
started to distribute these.
Travel Planning Various travel planning related packages to
strategy &
be commissioned via Civitas Portis work.
Action Plan

TB1b:
Continue to provide
support through the
Sustainable Travel Grants
Scheme

Sustainable
travel grant
scheme

TB1c:
Carshare
Encourage increased up- website
take of car-sharing and car
club schemes

® = MTS project
Future Actions/ Progress
Budget

To be done

Sweco, transport consultants
continuing to work on the
Civitas Portis project on
Travel Planning in the North
Dee, Tullos and Altens
business parks in Aberdeen.

Target

Status

↑

£71.76K in 2019/20
(includes £11.76K
delay in draw down
from 18/19)
Invoiced to date =
£16.3K

A refresh of the Regional Travel
Planning Strategy is to be
undertaken as part of the
Regional Transport Strategy
refresh and civitas portis.

Combined budget approved to continue to
provide sustainable travel and cycle
parking grant schemes in 2019/20 . Details
on grant criteria and guidance can be
viewed on the Nestrans website.

£22.7K in 19/20
(incl £2.7K delay in
draw down from
18/19)

Huntly Dev Trust has been
awarded a grant of up to
£3.65K towards the cost of 4
e-bikes, a kids trailer, cycle
helmets and locks.

↑

Annual licence for getabout liftshare website
and call centre to be renewed for 2019/20.

Costs to be met
from travel plan
budget

Getabout liftshare adverts
being broadcast on radio.
Car share adverts printed on
reverse of 260K pay and
display parking tickets in
Aberdeenshire.

↑

↑

Car share lanes See IC2c

Page 1 of 7

Regional Transport Strategy
Progress Report

10/09/2019
Current Actions/ Progress
Strategy Strand
RTS actions
TB1d:
Continue to promote and
strengthen the Getabout
brand.

Project/Action Progress
Getabout

Future Actions/ Progress
Budget

Aberdeenshire Council used Smarter Choices Costs met from
Smarter Places funding to commission
Travel Planning
upgrade to getabout website. New website
budget
www.getabout.org.uk live and redirection from
old site in place. Getabout continuing to be
promoted as the Sustainable Transport Brand
at events.
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TB2 - Promoting Active Travel
TB2a:
Advertising
Develop an Active Travel
Action Plan with the aim of
encouraging more people
to walk and cycle more
Cycle Parking
often.
Grant Scheme

Radio advert booking contract on Original
106fm has been extended to Mar 2020.

19/20 budget agreed and combined for use
by both the sustainable travel grant and
cycle parking grant schemes.

nestrans

Costs met from
Travel Planning
budget

To be done

Target

Getabout partners
participated at Active Ellon
Day on 16 June and Clean Air
Day on 20 June 2019. Major
advertising campaign
underway for In Town
Without My Car Day in
Aberdeen City Centre on Sun
15 Sept. This year includes
Free park and ride bus travel
to the city centre and back,
numerous free activities such
as a zip wire and CLAN stunt
show as well as a window
dressing treasure hunt.

Getabout
partnership
celebrating
10th (tin)
anniversary
this year and
have produced
money tin can
promotional
items,
encouraging
people to save
money in the
tins from
travelling
actively and
sustainably.

Status

↑

Radio adverts have been
promoting In Town without
My Car Day on 15 September.

↑

Guidance for grant to be
finalised and publicised.

↑
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TB2a:
Develop an Active Travel
Regional Transport Strategy
10/09/2019
Action
Plan with the aim of
Progress Report
encouraging more people
Current Actions/ Progress
to walk and cycle more
Strategy Strand
often.
Project/Action Progress
Budget
RTS actions
S Gov provides funding to Sustrans that is
Places for
open to bids from Local Authorities for
Everyone
infrastructure projects to promote cycling and
walking. The Community Links Programme
is now called Places for Everyone.

Cycling
Development
Officer
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Nestrans appointed an officer to help take
forward bids, act as a liaison between north
east authorities and national bodies and to
help design and promote cycling routes
across the region. Sustrans willing to match
fund the post costs and up to further £50K
project costs by Nestrans with £100,000 per
year capital for strategic routes in the NE.

Grampian Cycle The Grampian Cycle Partnership is now a
Partnership
constituted group and has held several events
and meetings across Aberdeen,
Aberdeenshire and Moray. Lee Craigie the
Active Travel Commissioner met with GCP on
26 March.

nestrans
Future Actions/ Progress
To be done

Target

Councils have received
indication of the outcome of
the first round of bids to the
Sustrans PfE funding in
2019/20. Still awaiting formal
grant offers and have been
seeking feedback on any
unsuccessful bids or those
with conditions.

There is a risk
to some of the
projects being
part funded by
Nestrans in
19/20 and
further
information
being sought
by Councils.

Status

↑

Budget approved for 2019/20
and will attract a grant of up to
£100K from Sustrans. Brief
being prepared to re-tender
for additional ped/cycle
counters. The CDO post is
the subject of a separate
report on the agenda.

↑

The GCP website has been
launched http://www.grampian
cyclepartnership.org. Cycling
in the North East – Collisions,
Compensation & Civil Law’
was jointly organised by
Cycle Law Scotland and
Grampian Cycle Partnership
at RGU on 2 Sept in an effort
to help provide advice and
information for those
interested in cycling across
the north east.

↑
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Regional Transport Strategy
Progress Report

10/09/2019
Current Actions/ Progress
Strategy Strand
RTS actions
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TB2b:
Work with NHS Grampian
and Community Planning
Partnerships to deliver the
Health and Transport
Action Plan and achieve
objectives for a healthier
population.

nestrans
Future Actions/ Progress

Project/Action Progress

Budget

To be done

Cycle
Roadshow

Funding to be
provided from
Travel Planning
budget and
Councils SCSP
awards
£43.7K in 2019/20
(incl £7K delay in
draw down from
18/19)

Accessible bike purchased
via Nestrans Travel Planning
and HTAP budgets and has
been delivered.

Health &
Transport
Action Plan

Community
Planning

Range of bikes purchased and delivered for
use at local events to encourage cycling in
schools, communities and organisations.
Service Level Agreement for purchase,
storage, transport and maintenance of full kit
for event and hire rates in place.
HTAP works being progressed by HTAP
support manager and sub groups. Further
funding approved for 2018/19 to continue part
funding of the HTAP Programme Support
Manager, general HTAP actions and provision
of the THInC service until end March 2019.

Invoiced to date =
£21K
£10K Revenue in
19/20

Nestrans are statutory partners, contribute
financially and attend appropriate meetings.
Continuing to work with CP partners on Local
Outcome Improvement Plans (LOIP).
Invoiced in full

Target

Status

↑

HTAP progress given in part
4 of progress update.

↑
Budget approved to meet
membership cost for both CP
partners in 2019/20 and both
have been invoiced.

An Active
Travel Project
Charter is
being
produced for
the Aberdeen
Sustainable
City LOIP
group, which
Nestrans is
leading on.

↑
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Regional Transport Strategy
Progress Report

10/09/2019
Current Actions/ Progress
Strategy Strand
RTS actions
TB3 - Improving Safety
TB3a:
Work with the Councils,
Emergency Services and
others to promote road
safety as part of a
comprehensive approach
covering Education,
Engineering, Enforcement
and Encouragement
measures.

Project/Action Progress

Future Actions/ Progress
Budget

Improve safety £500K Road Safety Framework Fund
Costs being met
launched on 23 Aug to support Scotland's
from approved
Road Safety Framework to 2020.
travel plan budget
Applications for match funding to support road
safety to be submitted by 9 November.
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Taxi Ranks
ACC has approved a 4th night time taxi rank
INCENTIVES AND ENFORCEMENT
IE1 - Changing Choices through Incentives & Partnerships
IE1a:
Bus Operators First Aberdeen made changes to their
Work with operators to
fares from Sunday, July 21, although most
identify possible fare
increased, some fares were frozen and a
incentives to encourage
small number reduced. Customers are
increased bus use,
offered the best value for money when
particularly where this
they purchase tickets in advance of
enables access to
boarding the bus via the mobile ticketing
employment or training
App. From July 28 First Aberdeen
introduced Tap & Cap using contactless
payments to cap travel charges to a max
of £4.40 a day or £18 per week, no matter
how many journeys are made.

nestrans

To be done

Target

Due to a trend of increased
pedestrian casualties in
Aberdeen city centre during the
hours of darkness in winter
months, a pedestrian safety
campaign is being undertaken
from Nov-Jan, which will be
focused on adverts on digital
bus shelters in the city centre to
encourage drivers and
pedestrians to be aware. The
campaign adverts ended on
26th of Jan 2019.

Awaiting final
invoice for
advertising
campaign and
£5K match
funding through
SCSP to then
be claimed.
Final Report
has been sent
to Paths for
All.

Other city centre ranks on
First Group announced via
twitter on 23 August that the
public had the opportunity to
comment by 29 Aug on
proposed network changes
that may see some services
axed, re-routed or frequency
reduced from 27 October
2019.

Status

↑

↑

↑
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Regional Transport Strategy
Progress Report

10/09/2019
Current Actions/ Progress
Strategy Strand
RTS actions
IE1b:
Through the Local
Authorities/Bus Operators
Forum (LABOF) continue
to develop the Quality
Partnership for Public
Transport and the Bus
Punctuality Improvement
Partnership to achieve
improvements in bus
provision and increased
levels of bus use.

Future Actions/ Progress

Project/Action Progress

Budget

To be done

North East of
Scotland Bus
Alliance

£30.1K in 19/20

A state of the network report is
being prepared and will inform
future actions. Funding
agreed to support
Grasshopper advertising and
Park & Ride adverts on the
reverse of 240,000 pay and
display tickets purchased.
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IE2 - Using Enforcement
IE2a:
Low Emission
Support enforcement of
Zones
vehicle emission standards
to improve air quality, in
Aberdeen City Centre and
towns across the north
east.

IE2d:

nestrans

Bus Lane

The North East of Scotland Bus Alliance has
been approved by both Councils and the
operators and has been signed.

Invoiced to date =
£0.8K

The Scottish Gov announced a commitment
to introduce LEZs into Scotland's 4 largest
cities by 2020 and launched a consultation on
building Scotland's LEZs on 6 Sept. SEPA
has constructed an emissions model for
Aberdeen City Centre and this is available to
ACC to assist with considerations for any LEZ
development within Aberdeen.

Nestrans funded new camera system and

Traffic surveys being
undertaken in June to update
the emissions model following
the opening of the AWPR. ACC
awarded S Gov funding to
appoint a consultant to assist
in LEZ development and to
upgrade the City Centre
micro-simulation model.
Systra appointed following
tender. Further surveys for
model upgrade being
commissioned.
£200K Capital and

Target

Status

↑

An LEZ Project
Group
(including
Nestrans) has
been initiated
and will oversee
the
development of
Aberdeen's
LEZ.

↑

Aberdeen City Council
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Progress Report
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Current Actions/ Progress
Strategy Strand
Project/Action Progress
RTS actions
CR1 - Carbon Reduction, Noise and Air Quality
CR1a:
JIVE project
Aberdeen is set to become the first city in
Support measures which
the world to introduce hydrogen-powered
encourage uptake of
double decker buses. The project has
alternative fuels for public
been funded by ACC, EU (FCH JU) and S
transport, private and
Gov and will invest about £500k in 15
public sector vehicles, to
vehicles. The 15 hydrogen double decker
build on the north east’s
buses will be operated by First on the 19
role as an energy hub and
(Culter to Tillydrone) route.
work towards the
decarbonisation of
EV Charge
AC bid for 70% through Low Carbon
transport and
points in
Challenge Fund to give £300K for EV charge
improvements in air quality. Aberdeen-shire point installation. Remaining 30% match
funding proposed to be split between AC and
Nestrans. Bid to Fund was unsuccessful and
no grant awarded.

CR1b:

Scottish Green The
Greenthe
Bus
Fund, nowpound
in its
ACCScottish
is supporting
multi-million

nestrans
Future Actions/ Progress

Budget

To be done

Target

Status

Launching later this year, the
buses are more efficient than
electric equivalents, with
refuelling taking less than 10
minutes and offering a
greater range. Water is the
only emission from the
vehicles,
£45K Capital in
19/20 (delay in
draw down from
18/19)
Invoiced to date =
£33.9K

EV charger at Westhill Library
installed and operational. EV
Charger at Banchory
Community Centre has now
been installed as part of the
construction of the new
facility and final invoice is
awaited.

on the further
Green
£186,474 Capital in Further
Nestransdetails
contributed

↑
↑

Page 7 of 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 92

Health Transport Action Plan
Progress Report

10/09/2019

nestrans

Health and Transport Action Plan
HTAP Sub Group
HTAP General

Project/Actions

Progress

Quarterly
meetings

All meetings for 2019 are scheduled.

HTAP Steering
Group

All meetings for 2019 are scheduled.

HTAP
Programme
Manager

The Programme Manager has been meeting
with regional and national partners,
including NHSG Chief Executive Amanda
Croft, Sustrans management team,
Community Transport Association Director,
NHSG Community Pharmacy, NHSG Head of
Equalities etc

Budget

Future Actions/ Progress

Target

Status

↑
The Programme Manager is
preparing a draft Annual Report.

↑
↑

Page 93

Transport and
Public Health
NHS Grampian The Regional Transport Strategy and the
Healthier Future NHSG Tobacco and Healthier Future
Strategy
Strategy have both been circulated widely
across health and transport contacts. The
NHSG Public Health Directorate included a
mention of the HTAP in their consultation
demonstrating progress on cross sector
working.

↑

NHS Travel Plan The HTAP Programme Manager has
provided input to the updating of the NHS
Grampian Travel Plan for the Foresterhill
Campus.

Page 1 of 3

Health Transport Action Plan
Progress Report

10/09/2019
HTAP Sub Group

Project/Actions Progress
HTAP Social
A project group has been formed and held
Prescribing Pilot an initial meeting to take forward the HTAP
workplan action for partners to collaborate
on piloting "social prescribing" of active
travel.

Budget

nestrans
Future Actions/ Progress
Martin Hall, Transport Strategy
Manager, Aberdeenshire Council
is the lead for the HTAP project
group.

Target

Status

↑
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Food For
Food For Thought working lunches were
Thought Events delivered in April and August engaging over
70 stakeholders from a wide variety of
stakeholders, including Planners, Transport
Strategy, European Projects, Road Safety,
Stagecoach, Grampian Cycle Partnership,
North East Sensory Services, Falls
Prevention, Community Transport
Association, Cycling UK, the Deputy
Director of Public Health and Police
Scotland, members of the Mobility and
Access Committee for Scotland and the
Head of Behaviour Change from Sustrans.

Feedback from participants has
been very positive. Further topics
will be considered for future
events.

↑

Walking, Cycling
and Connected
Communities
Conference

On the 12th of June the HTAP Programme
Manager attended the Walking, Cycling and
Connected Communities conference in
Edinburgh. Keynote speaker Professor
Adrian Davies highlighted the need to
promote walking more if we are to achieve
the aims of an active nation.

The HTAP Programme Manager is
in discussion with Professor
Davies' office on the potential for
having Prof Davies speak in
Aberdeen.

↑

The next Sub-Group will be held on 17
September. A presentation will be given by
colleagues involved with developing new
premises for health and social care.

Building Travel Plans into new
developments provides an
opportunity for transport partners
to support best practice.

↑

Access to Health and Social Care
New
developments
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Health Transport Action Plan
Progress Report

10/09/2019
HTAP Sub Group

Project/Actions
NHS Grampian
Community
Pharmacy

Progress
Budget
Discussions with Community Pharmacy and
the Programme Manager point towards
opportunities for wider promotion of THInC
and also linking Pharmacies into active
travel initiatives.

THInC In The
City

Demand is exceeding capacity as the
popular HTAP project routinely has to
decline requests for transport to health
appointments. The two wheelchair
accessible vehicles operated by Buchan
Community Dial A Bus are funded by
Aberdeen City Health & Social Care
Partnership.

nestrans
Future Actions/ Progress

Target

Status

↑
↑
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Agenda Item 6b
NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 18 September 2019

6b Publications and Consultations


Purpose of Report

The purpose of this report is to inform members of recent publications and consultation
papers of interest and to agree a response where appropriate.


❖

Publications and Consultations

Programme for Government

On 3 September, the Scottish Government announced their Programme for Government,
which sets out the actions they will take in the coming year and beyond.
https://www.gov.scot/programme-for-government/
One of the key focuses of the 2019 Programme for Government was a reaffirming of the
commitment to ensure that Scotland ends its contribution to global climate change by 2045.
Other highlights of specific relevance include the following:
• An announcement of a £500 million capital funding for improved bus priority
infrastructure to tackle the impacts of congestion on bus services and raise bus
usage. It is anticipated that this funding will be split over the next 5-6 years to allow
for a full development and implementation of schemes;
• A commitment to net zero carbon aviation in the Highlands and Islands by 2040.
Trials of the first low or zero emission flights to begin in 2021;
• A commitment to reduce emissions from Scotland’s railways to zero by 2035 through
the continued electrification of the network, the procurement of battery powered
trains and exploration of the potential for hydrogen-powered trains in Scotland;
• An announcement of an additional £17 million in funding to support the demand for
ultra-low emission vehicles (ULEVS) through the Low Carbon Transport Loan
scheme and an expansion of the scheme to include used electric vehicles;
• An announcement that the Scottish Government will shortly confirm the outcome of
the tender for Northern Isles ferry services; and
• An announcement of the upcoming programme for the Rail Investment Strategy.
Next steps include the new station at Robroyston by December 2019, the
introduction of a new and improved service between Aberdeen and Inverness by the
end of 2019, completion of the new station at Kintore in May 2020, as well as
completion of the Glasgow Queen Street station redevelopment by spring 2020.
❖

Cleaner Air for Scotland Strategy – An Independent Review. Final Report to
the Scottish Government.

This report covers all aspects of Cleaner Air and Air Quality and devotes a chapter to
Transport. The key parts from the report in regard to Transport include getting better data
such as data available from mobile phone companies and google. Modal/hierarchy shift,
placemaking and planning, public engagement and citizen science, leadership, equity and
social inequalities and densification.
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The recommendations include: leadership and management, having cleaner vehicles and
fleets, reducing the number of vehicles on the roads, increasing active travel and improving
spatial planning.
A link to the full report can be found here



Recommendations

It is recommended that the Board:
1. Note the publication of the Programme for Government and the implications for
transport policies and initiatives; and
2. Note the publication of the Cleaner Air for Scotland Strategy – An Independent
Review – Final Report to the Scottish Government.

NL/KW/20 August 2019

6b Publications and Consultations

Page 98

Agenda Item 7a
NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 18 SEPTEMBER 2019

7a


2019/20 Budget Matters
Purpose of Report
To provide the Board with an update on the Partnership’s 2019/20 monitoring and forecast
outturn position and to consider any budget or monitoring issues that may arise.



Background
The Board has requested that a general budget report be submitted to each meeting, monitoring
expenditure, identifying any potential budget issues, and reporting on any particular expenditure
requests. The reports are prepared jointly by the Nestrans office and Finance officers from
Aberdeenshire Council.



Current Revenue & Capital Budget
Appendix 1 to this report sets out a summary budget monitoring statement of expenditure to 31
August 2019. This shows expenditure of £768,531.
The International Road Assessment Programme (iRAP) Studies on Strategic Corridors project
will not progress at present. The software involved requires to be reconfigured, therefore
Appendix 2 sets out a small virement allocating the original budget for this project to another in
order to increase its funding and the amount of work that can be carried out.



Grant Funding
The Board approved delay in drawdown for the 2018/19 Active Travel Grant Funding from
Transport Scotland of £133,400, when they met in February, and likewise agreed in April to the
delay in draw down of the additional grant funding of £254,000 offered in March. Works were
completed by end March 2019 to the value of £40,717.20 that could be accrued to 2018/19 and
Nestrans had until end June 2019 to use the remaining 2018/19 grant. A claim for the remainder
was duly submitted and the full sums claimed against the grant comprised of the following:
A944 Active Travel Path - Westhill to Kingswells
F&B Way Bridge Design
F&B Way Parapet Repairs
Schoolhill Public Realm Improvement
Union Terrace Gardens Design and Development

£7,542.83
£61,352.40
£18,741.92
£166,000.00
£133,762.85
£387,400.00

It has been indicated that an Active Travel Grant will again be offered to Regional Transport
Partnerships in 2019/20 and Nestrans has submitted proposals for use of the possible £220,000
budget. The proposals are for the continuation of the option appraisal and design of an active
travel path between Westhill and Kingswells and for Formartine & Buchan Way bridge repair/
replacement works. This submission noted that there are further projects that could be delivered
this financial year should further monies be available and gave details on the schemes and
amounts. However confirmation of the grant funding and amount has still to be received.
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As reported previously, Nestrans was awarded £25,000 from Transport Scotland via the Local
Rail Development Fund to undertake a feasibility study for accessibility options at Insch railway
station. The grant covered a two-year period and £20,779 funding remains to be claimed for
the ongoing study in 2019/20. The Board instructed officers on 17 April to submit a bid to
undertake an appraisal for new local stations when the Local Rail Development Fund opened
for new applications again in 2019 and this bid has secured a grant of £80,000. This matches
the allocation within the 2019/20 Nestrans Co-ordination and Project Development budget and
a brief for the consultancy work will be developed as detailed in a separate report on this agenda.



Strategic Transport Fund
The legal challenge successfully quashed The Strategic Transport Fund (STF). The current
balance for 2019/20 is £505,862. No repayments have been made so far in 2019/20. There are
17 developments remaining to be claimed.



Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board:
1. Note the monitoring position and forecast presented in Appendix 1.
2. Approves the virement presented in Appendix 2.

Alan Wood
Treasurer
10 September 2019
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Appendix 1

SUMMARY OF INCOME & EXPENDITURE
Description
Expenditure
Core Costs
Partnership Office
Partner Support costs
Board Members Expenses
Other Associated Costs
Rechargeable Costs
Regional Transport Strategy
Health & Transport Action Plan
Bus Action Plan
Rail Action Plan
General
Project Feasibility & Monitoring
Contingency
Travel Planning
Rechargeable Costs

Coordination & Project Development
Rail
Strategic Roads
Capacity
Safety
Maintenance
Bus Improvements
Energetica Corridor
General Corridors
Walking and Cycling
Strategic Corridors
Carbon Reduction & Air Quality
Various
Cycling Development Officer Grant
Insch Station
Active Travel
Strategic Investment Programme
City Region Deal
Civitas/Portis
Total Expenditure
Income
Partner Contributions
Aberdeen City Council
Aberdeenshire Council
Scottish Government - Core costs
Local Rail Development Fund
Transport Scotland
Sustrans
Capital Grant & Use of Balances
Investment Interest
Other Income
City Region Deal
Civitas/Portis
Total Income
Operating (Surplus)/Deficit

Revised
Budget

Actual to
Aug-19

2019/20
Forecast

Actual v
Budget %

453,590
77,090
1,000
37,500
0
569,180

188,996
32,121
0
8,463
0
229,580

453,590
77,090
1,000
37,500
0
569,180

42%
42%
0%
23%
*
40%

43,730
50,140
83,000
23,575
168,901
5,000
133,808
0
508,154

3,502
0
0
7,422
3,955
0
23,244
200
38,323

43,730
50,140
83,000
23,575
168,901
5,000
133,808
200
508,354

8%
0%
0%
31%
2%
0%
17%
*
8%

1,077,334
2,736,500

267,903
6,591

1,077,534
2,736,500

25%
0%

372,261
319,936
49,000

0
0
0

372,261
319,936
49,000

0%
0%
0%

232,239
543,441

0
109,106

232,239
543,441

0%
20%

772,832
45,000
92,064
199,417
0
387,400
5,750,090
0
0
6,827,424

0
6,954
16,304
438
0
346,683
486,076
3,000
11,552
768,531

772,832
45,000
92,064
199,417
0
387,400
5,750,090
3,000
49,666
6,880,290

0%
15%
18%
0%
*
89%
8%
*
*
11%

142,568
152,766
782,000
0
387,400
199,417
5,163,273
0
0
0
0
6,827,424

67,754
76,088
325,833
0
346,683
438
138,955
3,669
200
3,000
11,552
974,171

142,568
152,766
782,000
0
387,400
199,417
5,163,273
9,500
200
3,000
49,666
6,889,790

48%
50%
42%
*
89%
0%
3%
*
*
*
*
14%

0

(205,641)

(9,500)
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Appendix 2
Nestrans 2019/20
Proposed Virements as at 10 September 2019
Budget Head

Project

Strategic Investment
Strategic Roads IRAP studies on strategic
Safety
corridors

Strategic Roads Safety

Motorcycle initiatives

Current
Budget

Proposed
Virement

Revised
Budget

35,500

(35,500)

40,000

35,500

Total

0
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Comments

0 The software is not currently that
useful for evaluating interventions on
rural roads. Further work will be
required with Road Safety
Foundation to adjust software and
budget not required at present.
75,500 Additional budget required to cover
increased cost and higher
specification of interactive signage
and extra site for locating a sign.
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Agenda Item 7b
NORTH EAST TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 18 SEPTEMBER 2019

7b Annual Accounts 2018/19 and the Report on the
2018/19 Audit by the External Auditor


Purpose of Report and Background

This report submits the audited Annual Accounts for 2018/19 to be approved by the
Partnership Board for signature and for the information of the Board, the external auditor’s
report on the audit.


Background

Local Authorities and similar bodies are required to ensure that they demonstrate proper
stewardship of their financial affairs. The Annual Accounts, together with the opinion
expressed by the independent auditor on the activities of the Partnership, is designed to
meet these requirements.
The auditor for the Partnership, Audit Scotland, has expressed an unmodified opinion on
these Accounts and this is detailed in pages 13 to 16 of Appendix 1, the Annual Accounts.
It is also a requirement of the governing regulations that the audited Annual Accounts will
be made available for public inspection and sale to interested parties at a reasonable
charge. This charge has been set at £10 in past years and it is proposed that no alteration
be made to this charge for printed copies of the Accounts. The audited Annual Accounts will
also be available on the Partnership website and can be accessed and downloaded free of
charge.


Annual Accounts 2018/19

The Annual Accounts is prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice for Local Authority
Accounting in the UK. The document comprises a number of statements, but Members’
attention is drawn to the following main items:
Pages 2 – 9

Management Commentary

Pages 13 – 16

Independent Auditor’s Report

Page 18

Movement in Reserves Statement

Page 19

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement

Page 20

Balance Sheet showing the financial position as at 31 March 2019

Other prescribed statements are included along with notes to the core financial statements
as appropriate. There are no Group Accounts to be commented upon.
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Significant change to the accounts

There has been a significant change in the accounts from the unaudited accounts that were
presented at the June Board. This is in relation to the valuation of the pension liability, the
actuaries advised that due to higher than expected market returns and changes in actuarial
assumptions their valuation of the pension liability had changed, this was significant enough
to warrant changing the accounts from the unaudited version.


External Auditors Report to the Board

The external auditor’s report to the Board is an important aspect of the auditor’s work in
expressing an opinion on the Annual Accounts. A copy has been included as Appendix 2
to this report and Anne MacDonald, the Senior Audit Manager, will be in attendance to speak
more fully to the Board on this document. The report covers the principal matters or issues
that have arisen from the audit process and provides a useful commentary on the
Partnership performance, corporate governance and best value achievement as well as a
review of areas of significant audit risk. The report is very positive and attests to the
strengths of the systems and controls we have in place to manage the financial activities of
the Partnership.


Recommendations

The Board is recommended to:
1

Approve for signature the audited Annual Accounts for 2018/19;

2

Consider the External Auditor’s Report;

3

Agree that a £10 charge for a printed copy of the Annual Accounts be made and that the
Accounts can be accessed and downloaded free of charge from the Nestrans website.

Alan Wood
Treasurer
10 September 2019
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ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2019
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MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY
Introduction
Nestrans is one of seven statutory Regional Transport Partnerships in Scotland and covers the City of
Aberdeen and Aberdeenshire.
Nestrans started life as a voluntary partnership in 2002 which was replaced by the
statutory partnership as established by the Transport (Scotland) Act 2005 and the Regional Transport
Partnership (Establishment, Constitution and Membership) (Scotland) Order 2005. Nestrans began
work as a Statutory Partnership on 1 April 2006.
The Nestrans Board is its main decision-making body and consists of four Councillors from Aberdeen
City Council and four from Aberdeenshire Council. In addition, Nestrans is entitled to have up to four
non-councillor members.
The Board is responsible for providing leadership, setting the strategic direction, priorities and policies
of the Partnership, scrutinising performance and promoting effective partnerships with those interested
in transportation matters generally. These responsibilities are fulfilled through the decision-making
processes of the Board which provides opportunity for the consideration of proposals, debate and
decision making.
Each year, the Director prepares a plan that supports the delivery of the strategic priorities of the
Partnership and which identifies key projects and actions. Progress against these measures is
discussed in the next section of this report.
The Nestrans Regional Transport Strategy (RTS) sets out the challenges facing Aberdeen City and
Shire over the next 20 years and how we will address them. It includes a comprehensive appraisal of
the problems and issues affecting transport in the North East and sets clear objectives for improving
transport in the region to 2035.
In 2012, the Nestrans Board agreed to carry out a review of the RTS to take account of a number of
changes in policy and to better align it to the Structure Plan and emerging Strategic Development Plan
(SDP) for the North East.
A Main Issues Report was produced for consultation in 2012 to identify the key issues for the re-fresh
and the final strategy was approved by the Board and submitted to the Scottish Government for
approval in September 2013 and subsequently approved by the Minister for Transport and Veterans in
January 2014.
Nestrans Board Members agreed in autumn 2018 to review the strategy and that the development
of a RTS to 2040 be linked to other strategy documents that are being undertaken, such
as the National Transport Strategy and Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan.
Progress against Key Performance Indicators
A Monitoring Report is produced each year which considers progress towards achievement of the
measures agreed by the Board and Scottish Government as providing a baseline. Full details of these
indicators and progress towards them are available on the Nestrans website www.nestrans.org
.uk. It is noted that it may take many years for the strategy to decisively influence most indicators, but it
is Nestrans’ intention to maintain regular monitoring of its targets and indicators.
The key indicators contains SMART (Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Realistic and Time-Bound)
targets to be refined as part of the Delivery Plan. Targets, where possible, relate back to the
strategy’s identified objectives and the indicators relate to objectives and the strategy’s 21 strands.
2

Page 109

MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY (continued)
Progress against Key Performance Indicators
In the most recent Monitoring Report dated June 2019, of 55 indicators for which indicative targets
have been identified and using the most up-to-date data available, the following results could
be summarised:

Indicators on target
Indicators with some
success
Indicators moving in the
wrong direction
Indicators with no data
available

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

22.5

20

21

21

19

19

14

12

14

14

15

15

2.5

1

6

8

11

11

3

7

12

11

10

10

It should be noted that although this report is published on an annual basis, the most recent data
available from a variety of different sources is used to compile this report, of which the two key
publications are the ‘Scottish Transport Statistics’ (published annually) and the ‘Scottish Household
Survey’ (published bi-annually). As these publications are produced at different times, the most recent
annual results for all indicators do not always show the same year. Caution should therefore be taken
when comparing different indicators with each other as sources and years may vary.
This report provides data regarding measurable indicators under each of the strategy’s four strategic
objectives which are: to exploit the local competitive wider economic advantages; enhance transport
accessibility, safety and social inclusion; conserve the environment; support transport integration, and
twelve operational objectives. The objectives have been developed from the National Transport
Strategy’s five high level objectives of Economic growth, Accessibility, Safety, Environmental
Sustainability and Integration and relate to its strategic outcomes. It also reflects the Government’s
purpose and outcomes and correlates to the local authority and Community Planning Partnerships’
Single Outcome Agreements. The report also identifies where there are gaps in the information
available and considers where there may be a need to ensure that measurements are undertaken to
inform transport operators and authorities of the success of interventions in the system.
There are a number of indicators for which it is not appropriate to establish targets, but the indicators
will be monitored to provide an understanding of the changing nature of transport in the area.
Nestrans will work closely with local authorities in seeking to ensure that the indicators, targets and
monitoring regimes to support Local Transport Strategies are consistent with the RTS and that there is
no duplication of effort in producing data.
No performance indicators have been specifically identified to measure financial performance.
However, the Board agrees a budget in advance of each year and considers a detailed budget
monitoring report with a forecast for the year of income and expenditure at each meeting. This allows
regular and close scrutiny of activities against specific financial targets to take place and is considered
adequate for this organisation.

3
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MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY (continued)
Actual Performance in the Year & Plans for the Future
A 2017/18 Annual Report & Business Plan for 2018/19 for Nestrans was not prepared in 2018/19
due to lack of resources. It is therefore intended that a combined 2017/18 and 2018/19 Annual
Report & Business Plan for 2019/20 be prepared and reported for consideration by the Board
and published on the Partnership’s website by the end of 2019. It is intended that the content
will be reported to the Board in autumn and thereafter will be designed for publication within
the documents section of the Nestrans website under the Annual reports and business plans section.
In 2018/19 Nestrans has continued to work towards delivering the actions within the Health and
Transport, Bus, Freight, Rail and Active Travel Action Plans and various other Strategies that have
been developed to help achieve the aims of the Regional Transport Strategy (RTS) and this work will
be progressed into the future. Nestrans has also continued to represent North East interests to
seek improvements to air, maritime and rail connections from the area to the rest of Scotland, the
UK and beyond.
The National Transport Strategy (NTS) is being reviewed and the Nestrans Director has continued to
participate in the NTS safety and resilience and roles and responsibilities working groups. He
was also part of the Minister’s Active Travel Task Force and the Scottish Council for
Development and Industry (SCDI) Connectivity Commission, both of whom published their reports
in June 2018. Nestrans has continued to be involved in the Transport Working Group for the Aberdeen
City Region Deal and the Strategic Transport Appraisal and external transport links to Aberdeen
South Harbour have progressed. The upgrade to the strategic Aberdeen Sub Area Model (ASAM14),
commissioned by Nestrans and funded by the Aberdeen City Region Deal has been audited and
further development work undertaken to address certain audit comments.
Nestrans is part of the Aberdeen to Central Belt rail journey time improvement Reference Group
and the Laurencekirk junction improvement Partnership Group, both of which are being
funded through additional funding from the Scottish Government to the Aberdeen City Region Deal.
A preferred option has now been identified for the Laurencekirk junction improvement.
Nestrans is also a key stakeholder in the Aberdeen to Inverness rail improvement and A96
dualling study. Nestrans continues to be involved in the European Civitas Portis project and is
leading on a number of work packages. Civitas (Cities, Vitality and Sustainability) Portis is a four
year project to September 2020 that will test innovative and sustainable solutions in five European port
cities. Consultancy studies have been commissioned by Nestrans relating to Travel Planning for
business parks south of Aberdeen City Centre and Park & Ride marketing and research in the
past year to progress this. Nestrans has continued to employ an embedded Sustrans Cycle
Development Officer which attracts the grant funding from Sustrans for active travel related
measures. Nestrans has also been successful in securing an Active Travel Grant and Local
Rail Development Fund Grant from Transport Scotland and match funding through a Smarter
Choices, Smarter Places Open Fund, Paths for All grant.

4
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MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY (continued)
Actual Performance in the Year & Plans for the Future (continued)
The Nestrans Board oversaw the delivery of projects that amounted to around £2.48 million
as a result of funding provided by Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire Councils and the
Scottish Government. This has been used to further develop and deliver projects to achieve
the aims and objectives within the RTS. This has included progressing the delivery of the Kintore
Railway Station and car park, various strategic road capacity, safety and maintenance schemes, bus
and cycling and walking improvements, support towards projects to reduce carbon and improve air
quality and to promote sustainable travel. A number of studies have been funded including
further work on the Fraserburgh/Peterhead to Aberdeen strategic corridor study, a Mearns Rail
Stations Car Park Study, a Roads Hierarch Study, Cross City Connections and Wellington Road
multi-modal study. A cumulative impact appraisal was commissioned in support of the development
of the Strategic Development Planning Authority’s Proposed Strategic Development Plan for Aberdeen
City and Aberdeenshire. Nestrans has refunded Strategic Transport Fund (STF) payments, as
requested and verified following the quashing of the STF Supplementary Guidance produced
by the Strategic Development Planning Authority.
In the year ahead, Nestrans will progress the development of the next Regional Transport Strategy
and continue to participate in the National Transport Strategy review and will be involved
in the development of the national Strategic Transport Projects Review for the north east.
The Strategic Transport Appraisal will be progressed with the next stage being the appraisal
of options for transport provision over the next 20 years. An update of the Aberdeen
Sub Area Model (ASAM14) will be commissioned to take account of the impact on travel patterns
of the opening of the Aberdeen Western Peripheral Route in February 2019. Nestrans will continue
to be involved with the other City Region Deal transport related projects and as a stakeholder
for the Aberdeen to Inverness rail improvements and A96 dualling. Work will also continue on
the Civitas Portis project. The cumulative transport appraisal option testing report will be
used to inform the development of Local Development Plans for Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire
Councils.
The Nestrans Board has approved budgets for 2019/20 to implement further rail,
road safety and capacity, strategic maintenance, bus, carbon reduction and cycling and
walking projects throughout the north east. Funding is also in place to continue to progress
the various action plans that support the Regional Transport Strategy, to undertake
project feasibility studies and promote active and sustainable travel. Partnership working
with Sustrans will continue and Nestrans will endeavour to seek and maximise any other relevant
potential grant funding opportunities.
Financial Performance Review
The Partnership core funding and the support for its strategic programmes from partner Councils and
the Scottish Government reflects their continued support. The budget provision for Coordination and
Project Development was £947,972 (£918,850 2017/18) and the budget for Strategic Investment
Programme was £2,224,882 (£1,797,053 2017/18).
Nestrans has invested over £2 million in the past year on various rails, roads, bus, cycling, walking
and carbon reduction initiatives. In addition, £404,923 has been spent in support of actions within our
Health & Transport, Rail, Freight, Bus and Active Travel Action Plans, travel planning and active travel
promotion via the getabout brand and on project feasibility studies. This included work on the Cross
City Connections and Wellington Road multi-modal studies.
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MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY (continued)
Financial Performance Review (continued)
Nestrans has also been boosted by the award of European grant funding under the Civitas Portis project.
This grant was awarded to a partnership of port cities in September 2016 for the period to
September 2020, with Nestrans being a member of the Aberdeen partnership grouping. The grant is being
used to examine transport solutions with a connection to port operations and supporting urban
mobility through changes in travel behaviour. The total value of the grant available to Nestrans
is £266,035. Grants have also been awarded for the financial years 2018/19 – 2019/20 to Nestrans
from Transport Scotland in the form of Active Travel and Local Rail Development Fund grants.
Review of Out-turn against Budget for 2018/19
In terms of the Coordination and Project Development budget, the Partnership had forecast throughout
the year that this funding would be spent reasonably close to budget and the expenditure
occurred very much in line with forecast following a number of virements.
The Cumulative Transport Appraisal supplementary option appraisal work will continue into 2019/20
to consider amendments to the level of development content within the final Proposed Strategic
Development Plan and delay in draw down of £41,666 was requested for this and work associated with
travel planning and the lead time for delivery of an accessible bicycle in support of the Health and
Transport Action Plan that are continuing into 2019/20.
On the Strategic Investment Programme the Partnership relies heavily on partner Councils to manage
and deliver projects. Work programmes were delayed in a number of areas with the Councils requesting
£3,429,544 to be carried forward to 2019/20 although the bulk of this is associated with Kintore Railway
Station because funding has been allocated in advance of the need to better profile the contributions, and
for Ellon Park and Ride as the Compulsory Purchase Order has been finalised and the tender will be
issued in April to allow construction to be completed thereafter. Projects also benefitted from additional
grant funding from Scottish Government and Sustrans but as this funding can continue to be claimed
until June 2019 a further £486,817 of grant funding has been approved for carry forward to
2019/20. A number of projects encountered delays due to changing priorities as a result of
resource planning issues, including Inverurie Interchange which was unable to be progressed this year
due to contractors working on the dualling of the railway from Aberdeen to Inverness occupying the
site required for this project. There was £120,000 allocated in the budget for this work. There has
therefore been an underspend of £227,954 (10%) when compared to budget.

6
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MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY (continued)
Review of Out-turn against Budget for 2018/19 (continued)
2017/18
Actual
£000

2018/19
Budget
£000

2018/19
Actual
£000

%
Actual
v Budget

Grants & Requisitions
Other Income
Interest
Total Income

2,856
59
4
2,919

3,173
0
0
3,173

3,044
2
11
3,057

96%
96%

Coordination & Project Development
- Core Costs
- Regional Transport Strategy
Strategic Investment Programme
City Region Deal
Civitas/Portis
Total Operating Expenses

534
431
1,880
79
32
2,956

548
400
2,225
0
0
3,173

634
410
2,067
15
47
3,173

116%
103%
93%
100%

(37)

0

(116)

Net Surplus/(Deficit)

The net surplus/(deficit) identified above is as a result of adjustments to the accounts for movements
within the short term Accumulating Absences Account and the Pensions Reserve which is reflected
in the Balance Sheet.
Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The principal risks facing the Partnership, as with many such bodies, is the reliance on third party
funding to support its annual programme, the reliance on third parties to deliver its programme and the
inability to retain or maintain any reserves. Without these certainties the opportunity to consider the
development of any truly strategic concept is more limited.
The relationships with partners is very close and each local authority partner has identified
indicative budgets for the Nestrans contributions for the next 5 years and appointed senior members of
their staff to act as professional advisors to the Board to ensure the engagement is maintained
between parties at a corporate level.
We are confident that all material risks facing the Partnership are known and that appropriate
measures are in place to overcome or at least mitigate the impact that these may have on the
continued operation of the Partnership.
Main Trends and Factors Likely to Affect the Future Development, Performance and Position
of the Partnership's Business
The Regional Transport Strategy which has been approved by Scottish Government Ministers outlines
the key issues that the Partnership will contribute towards and this will influence the relationships and
direction of travel that the Partnership may follow. This is a developing area and the Partnership has
created a structure that allows an agile approach towards positioning itself to accommodate any
significant changes affecting this sector, in particular those that have been identified in the wider
development plans for the region.
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MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY (continued)
Annual Accounts
The Partnership is required to prepare Annual Accounts by the Local Authority Accounts (Scotland)
Regulations 2014, which section 12 of the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003 requires to be
prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19 (the Code)
supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and statutory guidance
issued under section 12 of the 2003 Act.
Going Concern
The Balance Sheet shows that the Partnership has an excess of liabilities over assets of £785,000
at 31 March 2019 due to the accrual of pension liabilities and accumulated absences.
Future actuarial valuations of the pension scheme will consider the appropriate employer's
rate to meet the commitments of the scheme and accumulated absences will be funded by
the 2019/20 requisitions from constituent authorities. The budget for 2018/19 with funding levels in
line with 2017/18 and the indicative budgets for 2019/20 confirm that sufficient funding is available
beyond September 2020 and so the Board has a reasonable expectation that the Partnership
will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. It is therefore considered appropriate
to adopt a going concern basis for the preparation of these financial statements.
Audit Information
The Board and Director at the date of this report confirms that:
• So far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Partnership’s auditor
is unaware; and
• They have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Board member or officer in order
to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to ensure that the
Partnership’s auditor is aware of that.
Remuneration Paid to the Auditor for Non-Audit Work
No remuneration was paid to the Partnership’s external auditor for non-audit work during 2018/19.
Retirement Benefits
International Accounting Standard (IAS) 19 has been fully adopted in preparing the accounts of the
Partnership. The standard prescribes how employing organisations are to account for pension benefits
earned by employees in the year and the associated pension assets and liabilities.
Employees are eligible to join the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), administered by
Aberdeen City Council. Note 14 to the Core Statements details the income and expenditure charged
to the comprehensive income and expenditure statement under IAS 19 in respect of the Local
Government Pension Scheme, based upon assessments provided by the Actuary of the Scheme.
The Balance Sheet on page 20 shows that the Board has a net pension liability of £774,000
as at the 31 March 2019 (£584,000 31 March 2018) due to the accrual of pension liabilities
in accordance with IAS19. The increase of £190,000 in the net liability position is
due to higher than expected market returns and changes in actuarial assumptions.
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MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY (continued)
Retirement Benefits (continued)
The pension liability represents the best estimate of the current value of pension benefits that will have
to be funded by the Partnership. The liability relates to benefits earned by existing or previous employees
up to the 31 March .
These benefits are expressed in current value terms rather than the cash amount that will actually
be paid out. This is to allow for the 'time value of money', whereby the value of cash received now is
regarded as higher than cash received in the future. In order to adjust the pension liability cash flows
for the time value of money a discount factor based on corporate bond rates is used.
Events since the End of the Financial Year
The courts have ruled that the transitional protections provided as part of the 2015 public service
pension scheme changes discriminate on the grounds of age. All local government pension schemes
are affected including the North East Scotland Pension Fund. The impact on the Partnership’s
Balance Sheet has been estimated by the actuary to be additional pension liabilities of £78,000.
This was considered to be a material amount and consequently, the accounts including relevant notes
have been revised to reflect relevant additional liabilities. Further details are provided in Note 4 to the
accounts.

In April, Derick Murray the current Director of Nestrans went on an anticipated extended period of
absence, and remains on leave as at todays date. It was agreed by the Board in February that
in his absence Rab Dickson would carry out his duties as Acting Director.

Future Developments
Future developments will generally be identified from changes in Government or local authority policy,
changes in the development plan and/or wider economic changes in the region. Close links are
maintained with appropriate government departments and the Structure Plan and Regional Transport
Strategy are regularly refreshed which will ensure that arising issues are identified early enough to
allow any appropriate action to be taken to re-position the Partnership and its activities.

Signed:

Councillor Peter Argyle

Rab Dickson

Alan Wood, MA (Hons), CPFA

Chairman

Acting Director

Treasurer

18 September 2019
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
Nestrans has a responsibility for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with
the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded, properly accounted for,
and used appropriately.
In discharging this responsibility the Director and Treasurer have put in place proper arrangements for
the governance of resources, approved by the Board. North East of Scotland Transport Partnership
has adopted a Code of Corporate Governance which ensures the accountability and probity of officers.
The financial management arrangements conform with the governance requirements of the CIPFA
Statement on the Roles of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (2016) as set out in
Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (CIPFA/ SOLACE).
The Partnership’s Code of Corporate Governance and the related systems of internal financial control
provide reasonable assurance that objectives will be met. North East of Scotland Transport
Partnership adheres to the principles of openness, integrity and accountability and takes all
reasonable steps to ensure assets are safeguarded, transactions are authorised and properly
recorded, procedures are practical and adhered to and that material errors are either prevented or
detected within a timely period, and corrective action taken.
The system of corporate governance and internal financial control is based on a framework of financial
regulations, management information and appropriate delegation with accountability. In particular, the
system includes:•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Performance management;
Comprehensive financial management systems;
Periodic and annual financial reports;
Targets set for financial and other performance;
Clearly defined expenditure guidelines;
Formal project management disciplines;
Communication of financial information to the Director and Board; and
Periodic review of all financial procedures.

The corporate governance and internal control procedures are informed by:•
•
•
•

Feedback from the Board in carrying out its scrutiny role;
The work of the managers within the Partnership;
Internal Audit and External Audit; and
Partner and stakeholder feedback.

The governance framework has been in place at Nestrans for the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to
the date of approval of the annual accounts.
Risk Management is viewed as essential in the context of financial governance. An increase
in the awareness and consequences of risk have become more prevalent within the
Partnership. The consideration of risk has been recognised in the budget setting report to the
Board and will be considered in all financial governance procedures.
The Nestrans Risk Register was refreshed during the year. It sets out 12 key risks including the impact
of changes in government policy and the likelihood of reduced funding on the role and remit of the
board. Risks have been assigned to the Director and will be kept under regular review.
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)
Review of adequacy and effectiveness
The Partnership relies on the financial systems of Aberdeenshire Council. The Council's
Chief Internal Auditor has responsibility for independently reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Council’s internal control environment. The Chief Internal Auditor has reported that, in his
opinion, based on his evaluation of the Council's control environment, reasonable assurance can
be placed upon the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system in the year to
31 March 2019.
On the basis of his review and opinion, we are satisfied that
the arrangements in place provide assurance, are adequate and are operating effectively.
The Code of Corporate Governance was reviewed as part of the annual review process and found
it was still fit for purpose and no changes were required.
Conclusion
Our Annual Governance Statement summarises the partnership’s governance arrangements and
affirms our commitment that they are subject to review and remain appropriate for the activities
and delivery of services. On the basis of the evidence contained in this statement,
we are satisfied that the arrangements are adequate and are operating effectively.

Signed:

Councillor Peter Argyle
Chairman

Rab Dickson
Acting Director

18 September 2019
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Alan Wood, MA (Hons), CPFA
Treasurer

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
The Partnership’s Responsibilities
The Partnership is required to: • make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its
officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this case, that officer is the
Treasurer to the Partnership.
• manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its
assets.
• ensure the Annual Accounts are prepared in accordance with legislation (The Local Authority Accounts
(Scotland) Regulations 2014), and so far as is compatible with that legislation, in accordance with
proper accounting practices (Section 12 of the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003); and
• approve the Annual Accounts for signature.
I confirm that these Annual Accounts were approved for signature by the Board at its meeting
on 18 September 2019.
Signed on behalf of the Partnership

Councillor Peter Argyle, Chairman
18 September 2019
The Treasurer’s Responsibilities
The Treasurer is responsible for the preparation of the Partnership’s Annual Accounts in
accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code).
In preparing the Annual Accounts, the Treasurer has: •
•
•
•

selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;
made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;
complied with legislation; and
complied with the local authority Code (in so far as it is compatible with the legislation).

The Treasurer has also :• kept proper accounting records which were up to date; and
• taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
I certify that the Annual Accounts give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Partnership at the reporting date and the transactions of the Partnership for the year ended 31 March
2019.

Alan Wood, MA (Hons), CPFA
Treasurer
18 September 2019
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of North East of Scotland Transport Partnership
(Nestrans) and the Accounts Commission

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion on financial statements
I certify that I have audited the financial statements in the annual accounts of Nestrans for the year
ended 31 March 2019 under Part VII of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973. The financial
statements comprise the Expenditure and Funding Analysis, Movement in Reserves Statement,
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, and as interpreted and adapted by
The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19 (the 2018/19 Code).
In my opinion the accompanying financial statements:
• give a true and fair view in accordance with applicable law and the 2018/19 Code of the state of affairs
of the partnership as at 31 March 2019 and of its income and expenditure for the year then ended;
• have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, as
interpreted and adapted by the 2018/19 Code; and
• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973,
The Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014, and the Local Government in Scotland Act
2003.
Basis for opinion
I conducted my audit in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs
(UK)), as required by the Code of Audit Practice approved by the Accounts Commission for Scotland. My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of my report. I was appointed under arrangements approved by the
Accounts Commission on 10 April 2017. The period of total uninterrupted appointment is three years. I am
independent of the partnership in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of
financial
the financial statements in the UK including the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard, and
I have
fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. Non-audit services
prohibited by the Ethical Standard were not provided toby
the
the board. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
Conclusions relating to going concern basis of accounting
I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require
me to report to you where:
• the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or
• the Treasurer has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt about the board’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting
for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for
issue.
Risks of material misstatement
I have reported in a separate Annual Audit Report, which is available from the Audit Scotland website,
the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement that I identified and my
conclusions thereon.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of North East of Scotland Transport Partnership
(Nestrans) and the Accounts Commission for Scotland (continued)
Responsibilities of the Treasurer and partnership for the financial statements
As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities, the Treasurer is responsible for the
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the financial
reporting framework, and for such internal control as the Treasurer determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the Treasurer is responsible for assessing the partnership’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless deemed inappropriate.
The partnership is responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. The capability of the audit to detect fraud and other irregularities depends on factors such as the
skilfulness of the perpetrator, the frequency and extent of manipulation, the degree of collusion
involved, the relative size of individual amounts manipulated, and the seniority of those individuals
involved. I therefore design and perform audit procedures which respond to the assessed risks
of material misstatement due to fraud.
A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is
located on the Financial Reporting Council's website www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of my auditor’s report.
Other information in the annual accounts
The Treasurer is responsible for the other information in the annual accounts. The other information
comprises the information other than the financial statements, the audited part of the Remuneration
Report,
and my auditor’s report thereon. My opinion on
the financial statements does not cover the other
information and I do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon except on matters prescribed
by the Accounts Commission to the extent explicitly stated later in this report.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of North East of Scotland Transport Partnership
(Nestrans) and the Accounts Commission for Scotland (continued)
In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read all the other information
in the annual accounts and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If I identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, I am required to
determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement
of the other information. If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to report in this
regard.

Report on other requirements
Opinions on matters prescribed by the Accounts Commission
In my opinion, the audited part of the Remuneration Report has been properly prepared in
accordance with The Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014.
In my opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
• the information given in the Management Commentary for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and that report has been prepared
in accordance with statutory guidance issued under the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003; and
•

the information given in the Annual Governance Statement for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and that report has been prepared
in accordance with the Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016).

Matters on which I am required to report by exception
I am required by the Accounts Commission to report to you if, in my opinion:
• adequate accounting records have not been kept; or
• the financial statements and the audited part of the Remuneration Report are not in agreement with the
accounting records; or
• I have not received all the information and explanations I require for my audit.
I have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
Conclusions on wider scope responsibilities
In addition to my responsibilities for the annual accounts, my conclusions on the wider scope
specified in the Code of Audit Practice are set responsibilities
out in my Annual Audit Report.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of North East of Scotland Transport Partnership
(Nestrans) and the Accounts Commission for Scotland (continued)

Use of my report
This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in accordance with Part VII of the Local
Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and for no other purpose. In accordance with paragraph 120 of the Code
of Audit Practice, I do not undertake to have responsibilities to members or officers, in their individual
capacities, or to third parties.

Anne MacDonald CA
Senior Audit Manager
Audit Scotland
The Annexe
Woodhill House
Westburn Road
Aberdeen
AB16 5GB
19th September 2019
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EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS
This statement shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources by the organisation
in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by partnerships in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practices. It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision
making purposes. Income and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices
is presented more fully in the CIES.

Net
Expenditure
Chargeable
to the
General Fund
2017/18
£000

Net
Net

Expenditure
Chargeable
to the
General Fund
2018/19
£000

Expenditure
Adjust
in the
-ments*
CIES
2017/18
£000

2017/18
£000
Coordination & Project
Development
Strategic Investment
Programme
City Region Deal
Civitas/Portis
Financing and
Net Interest

3

38

41

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

(4)

24

20

(1)

62

61 (Surplus) / Deficit

0

(1)

(1)

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0

4

4

15

116

131
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2018/19
£000
127

(Plus)/Less (Surplus) or
Deficit on the General
Fund

17

2018/19
£000
112

0

*Adjustments - Adjustments between the funding and accounting basis
ACAAA = Accumulaed Compensaed Absencses Adjustment Account

Adjust Expenditure
-ments* in the CIES

15

General Fund Balance
at 1 April

General Fund Balance
at 31 March
Adjusted via ACAAA

Net
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MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT FOR YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
This Statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the organisation,
analysed into 'usable reserves' and ‘unusable reserves’. Usable reserves are those that can be applied
to fund expenditure subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory
limitations on their use. Nestrans, as a result of the legislation it was created under, is not permitted to
maintain a General Fund Balance. Unusable reserves include reserves that hold timing differences shown
in the line “Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations".
The Deficit on the provision of services line shows the true economic cost of providing the
Partnership’s services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.
Accumulated
Compensated
General
Total
Absences
Total
Fund
Usable
Adjustment
Pension
Unusable
Reserves
Account
Reserve
Reserves
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000
0
0
8
920
928
Balance at 01 April 2017
62

62

0

0

0

0

0

0

(399)

(399)

62

62

0

(399)

(399)

(62)

(62)

(1)

63

62

Movement in Year

0

0

(1)

63

62

Balance at 31 March 2018

0

0

7

584

591

Balance at 01 April 2018

0

0

7

584

591

132

132

0

0

0

0

0

0

62

62

132

132

0

62

62

(132)

(132)

4

128

132

Movement in Year

0

0

4

128

132

Balance at 31 March 2019

0

0

11

774

785

Deficit on provision of services
Other Comprehensive income and
expenditure
Total Comprehensive
Expenditure and Income
Adjustments between accounting basis
& funding basis under regulations

Deficit on provision of services
Other Comprehensive income and
expenditure
Total Comprehensive
Expenditure and Income
Adjustments between accounting basis
& funding basis under regulations
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT FOR YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

This Statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from grants or
requisitions. Nestrans receives contributions to cover expenditure in accordance with agreements.
This may be different from the accounting cost and the effect on the General Fund is shown in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

£000
Expenditure

£000
Income

2017/18
£000
Net

£000
Expenditure

£000
Income

2018/19
£000
Net

Note
965

(924)

1,880

(1,880)

79

(79)

32

(32)

2,956

(2,915)

Coordination & Project
41 Development
15

1,044

(917)

127

2,067

(2,067)

0

0 City Region Deal

15

(15)

0

0 Civitas/Portis

47

(47)

0

Strategic Investment
0 Programme

15

41 Cost of Services
Financing and Investment
8
20 Income
(Surplus) / Deficit on
61 Provision of Services
Actuarial (gains)/losses
(399) on pension assets/liabilities
Total Comprehensive
(338) (Income) & Expenditure
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3,173

(3,046)

127

4

131

62

193

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2019

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of assets and liabilities recognised
by the Partnership. The net liability of Nestrans (assets less liabilities) is matched by the reserves held
by the Partnership.
Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves is usable reserves, i.e. those
reserves that Nestrans may use to provide services. The second category of reserves is unusable
reserves, i.e. those that are not able to be used to provide services.

31 March
2018
£000

1,378

Note

31 March
2019
£000

Short Term Debtors
Cash and Cash
Equivalents
Current Assets

10

813

11

1,353
2,166

(1,757)
(1,757)

Short Term Creditors
Current Liabilities

12

(1,671)
(1,671)

(1,847)
(584)
(2,431)

Long Term Creditors
Pension Liability
Long Term Liabilities

12
14

(506)
(774)
(1,280)

2,219
3,597

(591)

Net Liabilities

591

Unusable Reserves

591

Total Reserves

(785)
7

785
785

The unaudited annual accounts were authorised for issue on 11 June 2019 and the audited annual
accounts were authorised for issue on 18 September 2019.

Alan Wood, MA (Hons), CPFA
Treasurer
18 September 2019
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Partnership during
the reporting period. The statement shows how the Partnership generates and uses cash and cash
equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of
net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations
of the Partnership are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services
provided by the Partnership. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have
been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Partnership’s future service delivery.
Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by
providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Partnership.

31 March 2018
£000

31 March 2019
£000

(61)

Net (deficit) / surplus on the provision of services

160
260
61

(Increase)/Decrease in Debtors
Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors
Pension Liability

420

Net cash flows from Operating Activities

(866)

420

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash
equivalents

(866)

1,799

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the reporting period

2,219

2,219

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
reporting period

1,353
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(131)
565
(1,427)
127

Note
6

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
NOTE 1 Accounting Policies
General Principles
The Annual Accounts summarises the Partnership’s transactions for the 2018/19 financial year
and its position at the year-end, 31 March 2019. The Partnership is required to prepare Annual
Accounts by the Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014, which section 12
of the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003 requires to be prepared in accordance with proper
accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
and statutory guidance issued under section 12 of the 2003 Act.
The accounting convention adopted in the Annual Accounts is historical cost.
The accounting policies have been applied consistently in the current and prior years.
Accruals and Income and Expenditure
Income and Expenditure activities are accounted for in the year in which they take place, not simply
when cash payments are made or received.
Where income or expenditure has been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor or
creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the balance sheet. Where the debts have not been
settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might
not be collectable.
Requisitions and Contributions
Requisitions and contributions relating to Capital and Revenue expenditure are accounted for on an
accruals basis and recognised immediately in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
as income, except to the extent that the grant or contribution has a condition(s), as opposed to
restrictions that Nestrans has not satisfied, in which case a creditor is recognised.
Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset at one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument at another entity.
Nestrans Financial Assets are Receivables which have fixed or determinable payments but are not
quoted in an active market, as well as cash and cash equivalents.
The Partnership’s receivables are for periods of less than 12 months or are charged at a market rate
of interest and so are initially measured at fair value and are carried at amortised cost, which
equates to the actual carrying value at 31 March 2019.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
Note 1 Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial Instruments (continued)
Nestrans Current Liabilities are shown as Creditors in the Balance Sheet and are for periods of less
than 12 months and so are initially measured at fair value and are carried at amortised cost, which
equates to the actual carrying value at 31 March 2019.
Nestrans Long Term Liabilities are shown as Long Term Creditors in the Balance Sheet which
represent the Strategic Transport Fund monies held in anticipation of projects of sufficient strategic
importance being progressed. However, this has not been possible due to the developer's legal
challenge which was upheld by the Supreme Court on 25 October 2017. Developers now have the
right to request their contributions be returned.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
In addition to its own bank accounts Nestrans makes use of Aberdeenshire Council’s bank account for
financial transactions and the balance is invested through the Council’s Treasury Management
facilities. The balance is repayable on demand and therefore treated as a cash equivalent and is
included in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost, which equates to the actual cash value at 31 March
2019.
Employee Benefits
a) Benefits Payable During Employment
Short-term benefits due to employees are those that are to be settled within twelve months of the year
end. For Nestrans this will include benefits such as salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave
for current employees. Costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which employees provide the
service to the employer. The leave year is based on a calendar year and an accrual is therefore made
for the value of leave entitlements due to employees but not taken before the year-end. The accrual
is calculated at the salary rates applicable in the following accounting year. The accrual is charged to the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the MIRS so that holiday
benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs.
b) Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Partnership to terminate an
officer's employment before the normal retirement date or an officer's decision to accept voluntary
redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis in the CIES when the Partnership is demonstrably
committed to either terminating the employment of an officer or group of officers making an offer
to encourage voluntary redundancy.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
Note 1 Accounting Policies (continued)
Employee Benefits (continued)
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the General
Fund Balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Partnership to the pension fund or pensioner
in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the MIRS,
appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and
credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to
the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year end.
c) Post Employment Benefits
Employees of the Partnership are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme, North East
Scotland Pension Fund (NESPF) administered by Aberdeen City Council.
d) The Local Government Pension Scheme
The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefit scheme:
•

the liabilities of the NESPF attributable to the Partnership are included in the Balance Sheet on an
actuarial basis using projected unit credit method i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will
be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about
mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc., and modelling of projected earnings for current
employees;
• liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of 2.5% (based on a
weighted average of "spot yields" on AA rated corporate bonds);
• the assets of the NESPF attributable to the Partnership are included in the Balance Sheet at their
fair value:
- quoted securities - current bid price;
- unquoted securities - professional estimate;
- unitised securities - current bid price; and
- property - market value.
The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:
• service cost comprising:
- current service cost - the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year allocated in the CIES to the services for which the employees worked;
- past service cost - the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or curtailment
whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years - debited to the Surplus/Deficit in the
CIES;
- net interest on the net defined benefit liability, i.e. net interest expense for the Partnership - the
change during the period in the net defined benefit liability that arises from the passage of time
charged to the CIES - this is calculated by applying the discounts rate used to measure the defined
obligation at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability at the beginning of the
period - taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a
result of contribution and benefit payments;
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
Note 1 Accounting Policies (continued)
Employee Benefits (continued)
• remeasurements comprising:
- the return on plan assets - excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability - charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure;
- actuarial gains and losses - changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have not
coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have
updated assumptions - debited or credited to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure; and
• contributions paid to the NESPF - cash paid as employer's contributions to the pension fund in
settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.
In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provision requires the General Fund Balance to be charged with
the amount payable by the Partnership to the Pension Fund or directly to pensions in the year, not the
amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the MIRS, this means that there
are appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for
retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensions
and any such amounts payable but unpaid at year end.
The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact
to the General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather
than as benefits are earned by employees.
e) Discretionary Benefits
The Partnership also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the
event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of
staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same
policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme.
Value Added Tax
VAT is included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement only to the extent that it is
irrecoverable.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
Events after the Balance Sheet Date
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable that occur
between the end of the reporting period (the balance sheet date) and the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.
There are two types of events:
a) those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the balance sheet date (adjusting
events after the reporting period) and
b) those that provide evidence of conditions that arose after the balance sheet date
(non-adjusting events after the reporting period)
The accounts are adjusted to reflect adjusting events after the reporting period and are not adjusted to
reflect non-adjusting events after the reporting period. Where a non-adjusting event would have a
material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial
effect. Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of
Accounts.
Reserves
Nestrans does not have any usable reserves as it is not permitted to hold a General Fund balance.
Any surplus may be returned to constituent authorities and any deficit funded by additional requisitions.
The unusable reserve that Nestrans holds is an Accumulated Compensated Absences Adjustment
Account. Nestrans staff are entitled to annual leave from January to December, and this reserve
represents the proportion of these holidays that staff were entitled to but remained unused at 31
March 2019. There is also a pension reserve which is explained on page 29.
Note 2 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies
In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1, the Treasurer has had to make certain judgements
about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.
The critical judgement made in the Annual Accounts is:
• There is a degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government and hence to
funding for Nestrans. However, the Treasurer has determined that the level of uncertainty is not yet
sufficient to provide an indication that the activities of the Partnership might be affected by the need
to reduce levels of service provision. On this basis the Annual Accounts continue to be
prepared on a going concern basis.
Note 3 Assumptions Made About The Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty
Pension Liability - The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to various actuarial
assumptions relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase,
mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. A firm of consulting actuaries is engaged
to provide expert advice about the assumptions to be applied. More details on this can be found in
Note 14.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
Note 4 Events After The Balance Sheet Date
The unaudited Annual Accounts were authorised for issue by the Treasurer to the Partnership on 11 June
2019. Where events taking place before this date provided information about conditions existing
at 31 March 2019, the figures in the financial statements and notes have been adjusted
in all material respects to reflect the impact of this information.
The courts have ruled that the transitional protections provided as part of the 2015 public service pension
scheme changes discriminate on the grounds of age. All local government pension schemes are affected
including the North East Scotland Pension Fund. As this was deemed a potential adjusting post balance
sheet event, the Treasurer was requested to obtain an estimate from the Pension Fund’s actuary of the
costs involved in compensating affected members of the Partnership’s pension scheme. The impact on
the Partnership’s Balance Sheet has been estimated by the actuary to be additional pension liabilities of
£78,000. This was based on costings provided by the Government Actuary’s Department on the potential
effect in England and Wales as a whole. In respect of the Partnership, this was considered to be a
material amount and consequently, the accounts including relevant notes have been revised to reflect the
additional liabilities.
Note 5 Movement in Reserves Statement - adjustments between accounting basis and funding
basis under regulations
This note details the adjustments that are made to the Total Comprehensive Income &
Expenditure recognised by the Partnership in the year. This is in accordance with proper accounting
practice to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the
Partnership to meet future capital and revenue expenditure.

Adjustments involving the Pensions Reserve
Reversal of items relating to post-employment benefits debited
or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services
in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement
Employers' pension contributions and direct payments to
pensioners payable in the year

General
Fund
£000

Unusable
Reserves
£000

Total
2017/18
£000

(125)

125

0

62

(62)

0

1

(1)

0

(62)

62

0

Adjustments involving the Accumulating Compensated
Absences Adjustment Account
Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an
accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the
year in accordance with statutory requirements
Total Adjustments
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
Note 5 Movement in Reserves Statement - adjustments between accounting basis and funding
basis under regulations (continued)
General
Unusable
Total
Fund
Reserves
2018/19
£000
£000
£000
Adjustments involving the Pensions Reserve
Reversal of items relating to post-employment benefits debited
or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services
in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement
(196)
196
0
Employers' pension contributions and direct payments to
pensioners payable in the year

68

(68)

0

(4)

4

0

(132)

132

0

Adjustments involving the Accumulating Compensated
Absences Adjustment Account
Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an
accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the
year in accordance with statutory requirements
Total Adjustments
Note 6 Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis
This note provides a reconciliation of the main adjustments to Net Expenditure Chargeable to the General
Fund to arrive at the amounts in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement. The relevant
transfers between reserves are explained in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis

Net Change
for the
Pensions
£000

2017/18
Employee
Annual
Leave
Accrued
£000

39
39

(1)
(1)

24
63

0
(1)

Total
Adjustments
£000

Net Change
for the
Pensions
£000

38 Staff Costs
38 Net Cost of Services
Other Income &
24 Expenditure
62 Total Adjustments
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2018/19
Employee
Annual
Leave
Total
Accrued Adjustments
£000
£000

113
113

4
4

117
117

15
128

0
4

15
132

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
Note 7 Balance Sheet - Unusable Reserves
31/03/2018
£000
(584) Pensions reserves (a)
(7) Accumulated Compensated Absences Adjustment Account (b)
(591) Total Unusable Reserves

31/03/2019
£000
(774)
(11)
(785)

(a) Pensions Reserve
The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for
accounting for post employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions.
The Partnership accounts for post employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure
Statement as the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities
recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside
to meet costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the
Partnership makes employer's contributions to pensions funds or eventually pays any pensions for which
it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial
shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the Partnership has
set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside
by the time the benefits come to be paid.
2017/18
£000

2018/19
£000

920 Balance at 1 April

584

Remeasurement of the net defined liability comprising: Actuarial
(399) gains and losses arising on changes in financial assumptions
521

62
646

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or
credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the provision of services
125 in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement

196

Employer's pension contributions and direct payments to
(62) pensioners payable in the year

(68)

584 Balance at 31 March

774

b) Accumulating Compensated Absences Adjustment Account
The Accumulating Compensated Absences Adjustment Account absorbs the differences that would
otherwise arise on the general fund balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not
taken in the year. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the general fund balance is
neutralised by transfers to or from the account.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
Note 7 Balance Sheet - Unusable Reserves (continued)
2017/18
£000

2018/19
£000
8 Balance at 1 April

7

Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end
(8) of the preceding year

(7)

7 Amounts accrued at the end of the current year

11

7 Balance at 31 March

11

Note 8 Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

Net Interest on net defined benefit pension liability
Interest receivable and similar income

2017/18
£000

2018/19
£000

24
(4)

15
(11)

20

4

2017/18
£000

2018/19
£000

51
32

81
47

760
969
782
98
53
0
0
79
32
2,856

956
1,057
782
41
10
5
4
15
47
3,045

2017/18
£000

2018/19
£000

164
1,193
21
1,378

198
598
17
813

Note 9 Requisitions and Non-Specific Grant Income

Core Funding Requisitions
Aberdeen City Requisition
Aberdeenshire Requisition
Other Grants or Requisitions
Aberdeen City
Aberdeenshire Council
Scottish Government - Regional Transport Strategy
Transport Scotland
Sustrans
Paths for All (Smarter Choices Smarter Places)
Local Rail Development Fund
City Region Deal
Civitas/Portis

Note 10 Short Term Debtors

Government Bodies
Other Local Authorities
Other Entities and Individuals
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
Note 11 Cash and Cash Equivalents

The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents comprises:
Bank or Cash balances held

2017/18
£000

2018/19
£000

2,219
2,219

1,353
1,353

2017/18
£000

2018/19
£000

1,575
6
176
1,757

1,489
7
175
1,671

2017/18
£000

2018/19
£000

1,847
1,847

506
506

Note 12 Creditors
Short Term Creditors

Other Local Authorities
Public Corporations & Trading Funds
Other Entities and Individuals

Long Term Creditors

Receipts in Advance (Strategic Transport Fund Balances)
Total
Note 13 External Audit Costs

The Board has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Annual Accounts.
2017/18
£000
10
10

Fees payable in respect of external audit services:
Total

2018/19
£000
10
10

Note 14 Defined Benefit Pension Schemes
Participation in pension schemes
As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Partnership makes contributions
towards the cost of post employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until
employees retire, the Partnership has a commitment to make the payments and this needs to be disclosed
at the time that employees earn their future entitlement.
The authority participates in one post employment scheme:
• The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered locally by the North East Scotland Pension Fund
- this is a funded defined benefit final salary scheme, meaning that the Partnership and employees pay
contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions liabilities with investment
assets.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
Note 14 Defined Benefit Pension Schemes (continued)
Participation in pension schemes (continued)
For 2018/19, the Partnership paid £68,288 (2017/18 £62,240) to the Fund in respect of retirement
benefits representing 22.8% (2017/18 21.5%) of pensionable pay.
Transactions relating to post employment benefits
The Partnership recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are
earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the
charge that is required to be made against requisitions is based on the cash payable in the year, so the
real cost of post employment/retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement
in Reserves Statement. The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income
& Expenditure Statement and the General Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement
during the year.
2017/18
£000

2018/19
£000
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement (CIES)

101
0
0
23
1
125

Cost of Services
Current service cost
Past Service cost
Loss from Settlements
Financing and Investment Income & Expenditure
Net Interest Expense
Administration Expenses
Total post employment benefits charged to the surplus or
deficit on the provision of services

Other post employment benefits charged to the CIES
Remeasurement of the net defined liability comprising: Actuarial
(399) gains and losses arising on changes in financial assumptions
(274) Total post employment benefit charged to the CIES

103
78
0
14
1
196

62
258

Movement in Reserves Statement
Reversal of net charges made to the surplus or deficit on the
provision of services for post employment benefits in
(125) accordance with the code

(196)

Actual amount charged against the General Fund balance
for pensions in the year
62 Employers contributions payable to the scheme
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
Note 14 Defined Benefit Pension Schemes (continued)
Pension assets and liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet

Present value of the defined benefit obligation
Fair value of pension fund assets
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation

31/03/2018
£000
3,390
(2,806)
584

31/03/2019
£000
3,874
(3,100)
774

Assets and liabilities in relation to post employment benefits
Reconciliation of present value of scheme liabilities (defined benefit obligation)
31/03/2018
£000
3,184
101
83
21
17
(16)
0
0
3,390

31/03/2019
£000
Opening value
Current service cost
Interest cost
Contributions by scheme participants
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in
financial assumptions
Benefits paid
Past service cost
Loss on Curtailments
Closing value

3,390
103
88
21
210
(16)
78
0
3,874

Reconciliation of fair value of scheme assets
31/03/2018
£000
2,264
60
416
(1)
62
21
(16)
2,806

31/03/2019
£000
Opening value
Interest income
Remeasurement gains/(losses)
Administration expenses
Contributions from employer
Contributions from employee
Benefits paid
Closing Value

2,806
74
148
(1)
68
21
(16)
3,100
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
Note 14 Defined Benefit Pension Schemes (continued)
Analysis of Pension Fund's Assets
The Local Government Pension Scheme's assets consist of the following categories, by proportion of the
total assets held:
Quoted
(Y/N)
Y
Y
Y
Y

31/03/2018
£'000
546
533
396
370

31/03/2019
£'000
506
615
383
370

Equities:

UK quoted
Global quoted
Pooled UK
Pooled Global

Bonds:

UK Government fixed
UK Government indexed
Overseas Government fixed
UK Other
Overseas other
UK Corporate
Overseas Corporate

Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y

42
129
39
1
20
1
14

47
143
46
1
23
1
16

Property:

UK Direct
Property Funds - UK

N
N

199
6

226
0

Alternatives: Private Equity
Private Debt
Private Equity Infrastructure
Infrastructure Pooled Fund
Private Equity Real Estate
Multi Asset Credit
Diversified Growth Funds

N
N
N
N
N
N
Y

109
3
8
42
28
67
208

148
10
28
74
42
75
227

Cash:

N

45
2,806

119
3,100

Cash instruments
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
Note 14 Defined Benefit Pension Schemes (continued)
Basis for estimating assets and liabilities
Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an estimate of
the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary
levels, etc. The Local Government Pension Scheme has been assessed by Mercer Limited, an
independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the Fund being based on the last full valuation of the scheme
as at 29 March 2017.
The significant assumptions used by the actuary have been:
2017/18

2018/19

Mortality Assumptions:
Longevity at age 65 for current pensioners (years)
22.7 - Men
24.9 - Women

22.9
25.0

Longevity at age 65 for future pensioners (years)
25.6 - Men
27.9 - Women

25.8
28.1

2.1%
3.6%
2.2%
2.6%

Rate of inflation
Rate of increase in salaries
Rate of increase in pensions
Rate of discounting fund liabilities

2.2%
3.7%
2.3%
2.4%

Take up of option to convert annual pension into
50% retirement lump sum

50%

The estimation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in the table
above. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change that the
assumption used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below did not change from those used in the
previous period.
Increase in Decrease in
Assumption Assumption
Impact on the Defined Benefit Obligation in the Fund
£'000
£'000
Longevity (increase or decrease in 1 year)
Rate of inflation (increase or decrease by 0.1%)
Rate of increase in salaries (increase or decrease by 0.1%)
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities (increase or decrease
by 0.1%)
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70
74
18

(70)
(74)
(18)

(73)
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
Note 14 Defined Benefit Pension Schemes (continued)
Impacts on the Partnership's Cash Flow
The aims of the fund are to:
• Ensure that sufficient resources are available to meet all liabilities as they fall due
• Enable employer contributions to be kept as nearly constant as possible and at reasonable cost to the
taxpayers and employers
• Manage employer's liability effectively
• Maximise the returns from investments within reasonable risk parameters
The employer's contributions are set by the Fund actuary at each triennial actuarial valuation (the most
recent being as at 31 March 2017), or at any time as instructed to do so by the Council. The actuaries
have estimated that contibutions for the year to 31 March 2019 will be approximately £68,000.
Note 15 Detailed Performance Figures
The tables below identify the budget for each area of the Nestrans programme of works and shows a
comparison between the agreed budgeted costs and the costs of similar programmes from the
previous year.
Coordination & Project Development
Actual (£)
2017/18
425,585
74,812
0
33,876
534,273

Partnership Office
Partner Support Costs
Board Member expenses
Other Associated Costs
Core Costs Total

Budget (£)
2018/19
429,020
84,070
1,000
33,500
547,590

Actual (£)
2018/19
524,496
78,153
0
31,702
634,351

41,805
36,746
3,000
48,939
162,125
0
79,670
0
59,185
431,470

Health & Transport
Bus
Rail
General
Project Feasibility & Monitoring
Contingency
Travel Planning
Paths for All
Rechargeable Costs
Regional Transport Strategy Total

37,154
47,810
3,000
83,887
107,873
0
115,658
5,000
0
400,382

38,448
49,770
3,170
83,887
107,873
0
120,378
5,000
1,585
410,111

965,743

Expenditure Total

947,972

1,044,462

(160,972)
(782,000)
(5,000)
0
(947,972)

(127,823)
(782,000)
(5,000)
(1,734)
(916,557)

0

127,905

(82,879)
(782,000)
0
(59,185)
(924,064)
41,679

Council Partners
Scottish Government
Smarter Choices Smarter Places
Other Income
Income Total
Net Total
36

Page 143

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
Note 15 Detailed Performance Figures (continued)
Strategic Investment Programme
Actual (£)
2017/18
229,748
603,768
205,596
485,086
232,686
123,016
0
0
1,879,900
(1,729,219)
(97,522)
0
(53,159)
(1,879,900)
0

Rail
Strategic Roads
Quality Bus Corridors
Cycle Routes
Carbon Reduction & Air Quality
Various
Active Travel
Insch Station
Expenditure Total
Council Partners
Transport Scotland
Local Rail Development Fund
Sustrans
Income Total
Net Total

Budget (£)
2018/19

Actual (£)
2018/19

144,457
624,928
127,233
841,399
6,788
480,077
0
0
2,224,882

147,354
625,125
127,134
756,059
6,787
360,078
40,717
4,220
2,067,474

(2,010,799)
(120,000)
0
(94,083)
(2,224,882)

(2,012,652)
(40,718)
(4,220)
(9,884)
(2,067,474)

0

0

The table above details the budget and expenditure of the requisitions for general projects advanced by
the partner Councils. The partner authorities, on behalf of the Partnership, managed various projects
and these have been split by theme. Nestrans has not created assets of its own and both the funding
and spend have been interpreted as additional revenue activity in these Statements.
The Partnership has a full complement of staff and this was a significant factor that contributed to the
capability of the organisation to manage and deliver the planned work programmes.
Note 16 Related Parties
The Partnership is required to disclose material transactions with related parties - bodies or individuals
that have the potential to control or influence the Partnership or to be controlled or influenced by
Nestrans. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the
Partnership might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured
the ability to limit another party's ability to contract freely with the Partnership.
Scottish Government
The Scottish Government is responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the
Partnership operates and provides a significant element of its funding by grant of £782,000,
(2017/18 £782,000). Grants received from the Scottish Government are set out in the subjective
analysis in Note 15 on reporting for resource allocation decisions. There were no grant receipts
outstanding at 31 March 2019.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
Note 16 Related Parties (continued)
Board Members
Members have direct control over the Partnership's financial and operational policies and
decision making. No allowances or fees have been paid to Members in 2018/19 and there was no
contract awarded in which a Board Member had declared an interest.
Aberdeen City Council & Aberdeenshire Council
Aberdeen City Council & Aberdeenshire Council have a significant element of control over the general
operations of the Partnership. They provide a significant element of funding through two specific
grants and the elected Members that they appoint to the managing Board of the Partnership can
exert significant influence on its operations and decision making processes. The amounts relating to
each Council are detailed below.

Aberdeen City Council
Aberdeenshire Council

Aberdeen City Council
Aberdeenshire Council

Amounts paid to
Amounts received from
2017/18
2018/19
2017/18
2018/19
£000
£000
£000
£000
811
1,037
717
850
1,001
1,104
879
801
Amounts due from at
Amounts due to at
31 March 31 March 31 March
31 March
2018
2019
2018
2019
£000
£000
£000
£000
595
489
443
479
598
109
1,132
1,010

Officers
The management of the Partnership is disclosed in the remuneration report on pages 42 to 45 of this
document. The Director has the responsibility for planning, directing or otherwise controlling the
activities of the Partnership. The scope of control is determined by reference to the Scheme of
Delegation and Financial Regulations adopted by the Board. The Board is satisfied that appropriate
controls are in place to manage and monitor the activities of the key management personnel.
North East Scotland Pension Fund.
Staff employed by the Partnership are entitled to be members of the Superannuation Scheme which is
administered by Aberdeen City Council. This provides staff with defined benefits upon their retirement,
and the Partnership contributes towards the costs by making contributions based on a percentage of
members' pensionable salaries.
Note 17 Financial Instruments
Financial Instruments Balances
The Partnership is funded by income from the Scottish Government and Partner Councils and
therefore is not subject to significant liquidity or credit risk exposure. The Partnership’s financial
instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents, debtors and creditors.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
Note 17 Financial Instruments (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents, debtors and creditors shown in the balance sheet are initially measured at
fair value and carried at amortised cost, which equates to the actual cash value at 31 March 2019.
Financial instruments disclosed in the Balance Sheet are made up as follows.
Long-Term
2017/18
2018/19
£000
£000
Financial Liabilities at
Amortised Cost
Total Creditors
Loans and Receivables
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Total Debtors

Current
2017/18
2018/19
£000
£000

1,847
1,847

506
506

1,757
1,757

1,671
1,671

0
0
0

0
0
0

1,378
2,219
3,597

813
1,353
2,166

Financial Instruments Gains/Losses
The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in relation
to financial instruments are made up as follows:Financial Assets Loans and Receivables
Interest Income

£

-

The Partnership’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks
• Credit risk - the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Partnership
• Liquidity risk - the possibility that the Partnership might not have funds available to meet its
commitments to make payments
• Market risk - the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Partnership as a result of changes
in such measures as interest rates and stock market movements.
Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the
constituent authorities. Surplus funds are placed on deposit with the Partnership’s bankers the
Clydesdale Bank plc. The Partnership does not expect any losses from non performance by any of its
counterparties in relation to these deposits.
Liquidity Risk
The Scottish Government and the constituent authorities make provision for the Transport
Partnership's use of resources in its budget for each financial year. Resources can only be used for
the purposes specified in the budget. The Partnership is therefore not exposed to significant liquidity
risks.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
Note 17 Financial Instruments (continued)
Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk
The Partnership is exposed to interest movements on its deposits. For instance a rise in interest rates
would increase the interest income credited to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement.
As an illustration, an increase/(decrease) of 1% in the interest rate would increase/(decrease) the
amount of interest earned by £13,529 (2017/18 £22,190). (based on cash and cash equivalents above).
Foreign Exchange Risk
The Partnership has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and thus has no
exposure to losses arising from movements in exchange rates.
Note 18 Accounting Standards that have been Issued but have not yet been Adopted
The Code requires the Partnership to identify any accounting standards that have been issued but have
yet to be adopted and could have a material impact on the accounts.
New or amended standards within the 2019/20 Code relate to:
• Amendments to IAS40 Investment Property: Transfers of Investment Property
• Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle. The amendments that may apply to Local
Authorities include :
- IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Clarification of the Scope of the Standard
- IAS28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures: Measuring an Associate of Joint
Venture at Fair Value
• IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
• IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
• Amendments to IFRS9 Financial Instruments: Prepayment features with Negative Compensation
The Code requires implementation from 1 April 2019 and there is, therefore, no impact on the 2018/19
annual accounts. The above amendments are not anticipated to have a material impact on the information
provided in the annual accounts.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
Note 19 Operating Leases
The Partnership leases one office premise.
Partnership as Lessee
The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in future years are:
31/03/2018
£000

31/03/2019
£000

22 Not later than one year
22

22
22

The expenditure charges to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement during the year
in relation to these leases was:
31/03/2018
£000

31/03/2019
£000

22 Minimum lease payments
22

22
22

Note 20 Contingent Liabilities
Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) Equalisation
This relates to pension schemes which were ‘contracted out’ of additional state pension arrangements.
The UK Government has stated “defined benefit pensions schemes that were Contracted-out Salary
Related (COSR) schemes before contracting out ended on 6 April 2016 need to provide a Guaranteed
Minimum Pension (GMP) to members for contracted out service between 6 April 1978 and 5 April 1997.
GMP is payable at age 60 for a woman and at age 65 for a man.”
The Government launched a consultation on this issue and, based on the responses received,
an interim solution whilst a long term approach is finalised. There is potential for a financial cost to the
Partnership as a result of this issue but, until a long term solution can be determined by the UK
Government the extent of such a cost cannot be determined.
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REMUNERATION REPORT
Introduction
The Remuneration Report has been prepared in accordance with the Local Authority Accounts
(Scotland) Regulations 2014. These Regulations require various disclosures about the remuneration
and pension benefits of senior Councillors and senior employees in respect of earnings etc paid by
Nestrans. The Partnership does not make payment to any member of the Board, whether elected
Member or otherwise appointed, by way of salary, enhanced pension benefits or reimbursement of
expenses.
The Treasurer and Clerk to the Authority do not receive remuneration from the Partnership either. The
duties of the posts are covered by the postholders’ substantive posts in their respective Councils Aberdeenshire Council and Aberdeen City Council.
The information disclosed in the tables below is subject to external audit.

Arrangements for Remuneration
The remuneration of all employees of the Partnership is set with reference to national arrangements
agreed by the Scottish Joint Negotiating Committee (SJNC) for Local Authority Services.
The Nestrans Board agreed to appoint a permanent Director with a salary range of £70,000 to £75,000
at the committee meeting held on 20 December 2006. With reference to this the post of Director was
placed at SJNC point 30.

Nestrans does not pay bonuses or performance related pay. Officers receive business mileage and
subsistence allowances in accordance with amounts either agreed nationally by SJNC or as approved
locally by Aberdeenshire Council and adopted by Nestrans. Officers are eligible to join the Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).

Remuneration
The term remuneration means gross salary, fees and bonuses, allowances and expenses, and
compensation for loss of employment. It excludes pension contributions paid by the Employer.
Pension contributions made to a person’s pension are disclosed as part of the pension benefits
disclosure below.
Remuneration of Senior Employees

Total Remuneration for Year

Roderick
Murray
Totals

Gross
salary,
fees &
allowances Bonuses
In-year pension
contributions
76,859
0
76,859

0

Non-cash
expenses
&
Compensation
for loss of
benefitsTotal
Total
Taxable
office
2018/19
2017/18
Expenses in-kind
Accrued annual
Accrued pension
pension benefits
lump sum
0
0
0
76,859
74,260
0

0
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76,859

74,260

REMUNERATION REPORT (continued)
Notes
The term senior employee means:
1. Any employee who has responsibility for the management of the Partnership to the extent that
the person has the power to direct or control the major activities of the organisation (including
activities involving the expenditure of money), during the year to which the Report relates,
whether solely or collectively with other persons;
2. Who holds a post that is politically restricted by reason of section 2(1) (a), (b) or (c) of Local
Government and Housing Act 1989 (4); or
3. Whose annual remuneration, including any remuneration from a local authority subsidiary body,
is £150,000 or more.

Remuneration of Employees receiving more than £50,000
Those Partnership employees receiving more than £50,000 remuneration for the year were paid the
following amounts. In accordance with the disclosure requirement of the Regulations, the information in
the table shows the number of employees in bands of £5,000. This information includes the senior
employee who is subject to the fuller disclosure requirements in the tables above.

Remuneration Bands

Number of Employees
2018/19
1
0
0
0
1
2

£50,000 - £54,999
£55,000 - £59,999
£60,000 - £64,999
£65,000 - £69,999
£70,000 - £74,999
Totals

2017/18
1
0
0
0
1
2

Exit Packages
There is a requirement to disclose details of all staff Exit Packages agreed in the year. An Exit
Package is the value of all termination benefits which include redundancy costs, pension contributions
in respect of added years and any ex gratia and other departure costs. Nestrans have not agreed any
Exit Package in 2018/19 (2017/18 - Nil).

Pension Benefits
The term pension benefits covers in-year pension contributions for the employee by the employer and
the named person’s accrued pension benefits at the reporting date.
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REMUNERATION REPORT (continued)
Pension Benefits of Senior Employees

In-year pension
contributions

Accrued annual
pension benefits

Accrued pension
lump sum

For year to
31 March
2019

For year to
31 March
2018

As at 31
March
2019

Difference
from
March

As at 31
March
2019

Difference
from
March 2018

Roderick
Murray

17,524

15,966

41,526

2,762

82,818

2,800

Totals

17,524

15,966

41,526

2,762

82,818

2,800

Notes:
All employees of Nestrans are eligible to become members of the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS).
The LGPS provides defined benefits on retirement. The pension is based on the member’s
pensionable service (how long he or she has been a member of the LGPS) and his or her pay. For
elected members, pay is based on a “career average” – the aggregate of each year’s pay (adjusted for
inflation) is divided by the total number of years and part years they have been a member of the LGPS.
For officers, pay is based on their final year’s salary. For most people, for service up to 31 March
2009, the annual pension is calculated by dividing their pay by 80 (60 for service after 31 March 2009)
and multiplying this by their total membership. Pensions payable are increased annually in line with
changes in The Pensions (Increase) Act 1971 and Section 59 of the Social Security Pension Act 1975.
The lump sum, which is automatically paid when the person retires for service up to 31 March 2009, is
normally three times his or her annual pension and is tax-free. There is no automatic lump sum for
service after 31 March 2009. Members may opt to give up (commute) pension for lump sum up to the
limit set by the Finance Act 2004.
For service after the 31 March 2015, the annual pension is calculated by dividing the pensionable
pay by 49 and then adding this to his or her cumulative pension account, which will subsequently be
adjusted in line with the cost of living. The rates for 2017/18 were 21.5% (2016/17 19.3%).
A Scheme member’s contribution depends on his or her full-time equivalent pay. From 1 April 2009, a
five tier contribution system was introduced with contribution from members being based on how much
pay falls into each tier. The tiers have increased slightly.
The tiers and rates are as follows:

Rate

2018/19

2017/18

5.50%
7.25%
8.50%
9.50%
12.00%

up to £21,300
£21,301 - £26,100
£26,101 - £35,700
£35,701 - £46,600
over £46,601

up to £20,700
£20,701 - £25,300
£25,301 - £34,700
£34,701 - £46,300
over £46,301
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REMUNERATION REPORT (continued)
Pension Benefits of Senior Employees (continued)
The value of the accrued benefits in the above tables has been calculated on the basis of the age at
which the person will first become entitled to receive a full pension on retirement without reduction on
account of its payment at that age; without exercising any option to commute pension entitlement into a
lump sum; and without any adjustment for the effects of future inflation. The normal retirement age for
members of the LGPS is 65.
The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the person has accrued as consequence of their
total local government service, and not just their current appointment.
The above explanatory notes provide general information on the Local Government Pension Scheme
and do not override the provisions of the Scheme.

Councillor Peter Argyle
Chair

Rab Dickson
Acting Director

18 September 2019
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS
Requisitions:
Funding received from the constituent authorities.
OTHER
SeRCOP
Service Reporting Code of Practice
CIPFA
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy
LASAAC
Local Authority (Scotland) Accounts Advisory Committee
IFRS
International Financial Reporting Standard
STF
Strategic Transport Fund
SJNC
Scottish Joint Negotiating Committee
The Code
The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
FAIR VALUE
Fair Value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction for land and buildings, fair value is the
amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing use.
ECONOMIC COST
The total cost of performing an activity or following a decision or course of action.
ACAA
Accumulated Compensated Absences Adjustment
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Who we are
The Auditor General, the Accounts Commission and Audit Scotland work together
to deliver public audit in Scotland:
• The Auditor General is an independent crown appointment, made on the
recommendation of the Scottish Parliament, to audit the Scottish
Government, NHS and other bodies and report to Parliament on their
financial health and performance.
• The Accounts Commission is an independent public body appointed by
Scottish ministers to hold local government to account. The Controller of
Audit is an independent post established by statute, with powers to report
directly to the Commission on the audit of local government.
• Audit Scotland is governed by a board, consisting of the Auditor General, the
chair of the Accounts Commission, a non-executive board chair, and two
non-executive members appointed by the Scottish Commission for Public
Audit, a commission of the Scottish Parliament.

About us
Our vision is to be a world-class audit organisation that improves the use of public
money.
Through our work for the Auditor General and the Accounts Commission, we
provide independent assurance to the people of Scotland that public money is
spent properly and provides value. We aim to achieve this by:
• carrying out relevant and timely audits of the way the public sector manages
and spends money
• reporting our findings and conclusions in public
• identifying risks, making clear and relevant recommendations.
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Key messages
2018/19 annual accounts
1

In our opinion, North East of Scotland Transport Partnership’s financial
statements give a true and fair view and were properly prepared.

2

The audited part of the remuneration report, management commentary
and annual governance statement are all consistent with the financial
statements and prepared in accordance with proper accounting
practices.

Financial sustainability
3

The partnership has financial stability as a result of sustained funding
levels from partners.

Governance and transparency
4

The partnership has appropriate governance arrangements in place and
conducts its business in an open and transparent manner.
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Introduction
1. This report is a summary of our findings arising from the 2018/19 audit of North
East of Scotland Transport Partnership (Nestrans). The report is divided into
sections which reflect our public sector audit model.
2. The scope of our audit was set out in our Annual Audit Plan presented to the
board in June 2019. In accordance with Audit Scotland’s Code of Audit Practice,
we explained at that time that the small body clause applies to Nestrans. The main
elements of the 2018/19 audit therefore included:
•

assurances to support our opinion on the annual accounts

•

consideration of the appropriateness of the disclosures in the annual
governance statement

•

a review of financial sustainability.

Responsibilities and reporting
3. Nestrans has primary responsibility for ensuring the proper financial stewardship
of public funds. This includes preparing an annual report and accounts that are in
accordance with proper accounting practices. Nestrans is also responsible for
compliance with legislation putting arrangements in place for governance, propriety
and regularity that enable it to successfully deliver its objectives.
4. Our responsibilities as independent auditor appointed by the Accounts
Commission are established by the Local Government in Scotland Act 1973, the
Code of Audit Practice (2016) and supplementary guidance and International
Standards on Auditing in the UK.
5. As public-sector auditors we give independent opinions on the annual report and
accounts and conclude on securing financial sustainability and appropriateness of
the governance statement disclosures. In doing this, we aim to support
improvement and accountability.
6. The Code of Audit Practice 2016 (the Code) includes provisions relating to the
audit of small bodies. Where the application of the full wider audit scope is judged
by auditors not to be appropriate to an audited body then the annual audit work can
focus on the appropriateness of the disclosures in the governance statement and
the financial sustainability of the body and its services. As highlighted in our
2018/19 Annual Audit Plan, due to the volume and lack of complexity of the
financial transactions, we applied the small body provisions of the Code to the
2018/19 audit.
7. The weaknesses or risks identified are only those which have come to our
attention during our normal audit work and may not be all that exist.
Communicating these does not absolve management from its responsibility to
address the issues we raise and to maintain adequate systems of control.
8. Our annual audit report contains an agreed action plan at Appendix 1 setting out
specific recommendations, responsible officers and dates for implementation. It
also includes outstanding actions from last year and progress against these.
9. We confirm that we comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical
Standard. We have not undertaken any non-audit related services and therefore
the 2018/19 audit fee of £10,450 as set out in our Annual Audit Plan, remains
unchanged. We are not aware of any relationships that could compromise our
objectivity and independence.
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10. This report is addressed to both the council and the Controller of Audit and will
be published on Audit Scotland's website www.audit-scotland.gov.uk in due course.
11. We would like to thank the management and staff for their cooperation and
assistance during the audit.
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Part 1
Audit of 2018/19 annual accounts

Main judgements
In our opinion, Nestrans’ financial statements give a true and fair view and were
properly prepared;
The audited part of the remuneration report, management commentary and
annual governance statement are all consistent with the financial statements
and prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices.

Audit opinions on the annual accounts
12. The annual accounts for the partnership for the year ended 31 March 2019
were approved by the Board on 18 September 2019. We reported, within our
independent auditor’s report that, in our opinion the
• financial statements give a true and fair view and were properly prepared
• audited part of the remuneration report, management commentary and the
annual governance statement were all consistent with the financial
statements and properly prepared in accordance with the relevant
regulations and guidance
13. We have nothing to report in respect of misstatements in information other than
the financial statements, the adequacy of accounting records, or the information
and explanations we received.

Submission of the annual accounts for audit
14. We received the unaudited annual accounts on 19 June2019 in line with the
audit timetable set out in our 2018/19 Annual Audit Plan.
15. The working papers provided with the unaudited accounts were of a good
standard and finance staff provided good support to the audit team during the
audit. This helped ensure that the audit of the annual accounts process ran
smoothly.

Risk of material misstatement
16. Appendix 2 provides a description of those assessed risks of material
misstatement in the annual accounts and any wider audit dimension risks that were
identified during the audit planning process. It also summarises the work we have
done to gain assurance over the outcome of these risks.
17. We have no issues to report from our work on the risks of material
misstatement highlighted in our 2018/19 Annual Audit Plan
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Materiality
18. Misstatements are material if they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken based on the financial statements. The
assessment of what is material is a matter of professional judgement and involves
considering both the amount and nature of the misstatement.
19. Our initial assessment of materiality for the annual accounts was carried out
during the planning phase of the audit and is summarised in Exhibit 2. With regards
to the annual accounts, we assess the materiality of uncorrected misstatements
both individually and collectively.
20. On receipt of the annual accounts we reviewed our planning materiality
calculations and concluded that they remained appropriate.

Exhibit 2
Materiality values
Materiality level

Amount

Overall materiality

£59,000

Performance materiality

£44,000

Reporting threshold

£3,000

Source: Audit Scotland, Annual Audit Plan 2018/19

Significant findings from the audit in accordance with ISA 260
21. International Standard on Auditing (UK) 260 requires us to communicate
significant findings from the audit to those charged with governance, including our
view about the qualitative aspects of the body’s accounting practices covering
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statements disclosures.
22. The significant findings from our audit are set out in Exhibit 2.

Exhibit 2
Significant findings from the audit of the financial statements
Finding

Resolution

1. Additional pension liabilities – Impact of
McCloud/Sergeant rulings
The courts have ruled that the transitional protections
provided as part of the 2015 public service pension
scheme changes discriminate on the grounds of age. All
local government pension schemes are affected
including the North East Scotland Pension Fund. As this
was deemed a potential adjusting post balance sheet
event, the Treasurer was requested to obtain an
estimate from the Pension Fund’s actuary of the costs
involved in compensating affected members of the
partnership’s pension scheme. The impact on the
partnership’s Balance Sheet has been estimated by the
actuary to be additional pension liabilities of £78,000.
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In respect of the partnership, this
was considered to be a material
amount and consequently, the
accounts including relevant notes
have been revised to reflect the
additional liabilities
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Finding

Resolution

This was based on costings provided by the
Government Actuary’s Department on the potential
effect in England and Wales as a whole.
2. Guaranteed Minimum Pensions (GMPs)
The UK Government has stated “defined benefit pensions
schemes that were Contracted-out Salary Related (COSR)
schemes before contracting out ended on 6 April 2016 need
to provide a Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) to
members for contracted out service between 6 April 1978
and 5 April 1997. The GMP is payable at age 60 for a woman
and at age 65 for a man.”

A contingent liability note had been added
to the accounts to reflect the uncertainty
of the situation. I am satisfied with this
approach.

There is potential for a financial cost to the Partnership as a
result of this issue but, until a long term solution can be
determined by the UK Government, the extent of such a cost
cannot be determined.

2. Going concern
Auditors are required to consider an organisation’s
ability to continue as a going concern when forming an
opinion on the financial statements. One of the
indicators which may give rise to going concern
considerations is an excess of liabilities over assets.
The partnership is an admitted body of North East
Scotland Pension Fund and has recognised net pension
liabilities of £774,000 in the balance sheet resulting in a
net liabilities position of £785,000 at 31 March 2019.

This accounting requirement has no
impact on the underlying basis for
meeting current and on-going pension
liabilities which will be met, as they fall
due, by contributions from the constituent
authorities.
We agree with management’s view that it
is appropriate to prepare the 2018/19
annual accounts on a going concern
basis.

23. Source: Audit Scotland

How we evaluate misstatements
24. It is our responsibility to request that all misstatements, other than those below
the reporting threshold, are corrected although the final decision on making the
correction lies with those charged with governance considering advice from senior
officers and materiality. There were no uncorrected misstatements in the financial
statements of Nestrans.

Management commentary, annual governance statement and
remuneration report
25. The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2018/19 requires local government bodies to prepare and publish, along with
their financial statements, an annual governance statement, management
commentary (or equivalent) and a remuneration report that are consistent with
the disclosures made in the financial statements. The management
commentary should be fair, balanced and understandable and clearly address
the longer-term financial sustainability of the body.
26. Based on our knowledge and work performed, we concluded that the content
of the management commentary, annual governance statement and
remuneration report are consistent with the financial statements.
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Follow up of prior year recommendations
27. The partnership has addressed the prior year recommendation which
concerned the Financial Regulations. They did not previously reflect the Local
Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014 in terms of internal control reviews
and requiring the partnership to approve the accounts prior to 30 September. This
has now been rectified in the latest update of the Financial Regulations.
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Part 2
Financial management

Main judgements
The partnership has financial stability because of sustained funding levels from
partners.

Financial performance in 2018/19
28. The partnership set its 2018/19 budget in February 2018 on the basis that
planned funding from constituent councils and the Scottish Government would
continue to be maintained at the same level as previous years. This continues to
provide a degree of financial stability in the short term. Actual spend for the year
was largely in line with plans.

Reserves strategy
29. The partnership is required to achieve a break-even position year on year in
accordance with the requirements of the Transport (Scotland) Act 2005 for
Regional Transport Partnerships. The Act requires that the net expenses of a
Transport Partnership for each year are paid by its constituent councils. This
means that any surplus is returned to the constituent councils through a reduction
in requisitions, and any deficit is funded by increased contributions from constituent
authorities.
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Part 3
Governance and transparency

Main Judgements
The partnership has appropriate governance arrangements in place and
conducts its business in an open and transparent manner.

Governance arrangements
30. Nestrans was constituted under the Transport (Scotland) Act 2005 as one of
seven transport partnerships set up to provide a co-ordinated approach to transport
planning and delivery between different local authority areas. The Nestrans area
covers Aberdeen City Council and Aberdeenshire Council.
31. The board has 12 members, four each from Aberdeenshire and Aberdeen City
Councils and the final four are non-council appointments made by the Minister for
Transport.
32. The board met on six occasions during 2018/19, roughly every two months.
We review minutes of board meetings to assess their effectiveness and periodically
observe meetings for a greater insight into proceedings.

Financial regulations
33. In line with good practice, Financial Regulations are regularly updated, most
recently in April 2019. We recommended last year that they were updated to
reflect the requirements of the 2014 Regulations in respect of published accounts
and review of internal control. We are pleased that this has been reflected in the
most recent review of the Financial Regulations.

Financial management
34. Financial management is about financial capacity, sound budgetary processes
and whether the control environment and internal controls are operating effectively.
It is the partnership’s responsibility to ensure that its financial affairs are conducted
in a proper manner.
35. As auditors, we need to consider whether audited bodies have established
adequate financial management arrangements. We do this by considering a
number of factors, including whether:
• the Treasurer has sufficient status to be able to deliver good financial
management
• financial regulations and standing orders are comprehensive, current and
promoted within the partnership
• reports monitoring performance against budgets are accurate and provided
regularly to budget holders.
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36. Overall, financial management within the partnership is considered to be
satisfactory, with appropriate monitoring reports being regularly submitted to the
board for scrutiny.

Transparency
37. Transparency means that the general public have access to understandable,
relevant and timely information about how the partnership is taking decisions and
how it is using resources such as money, people and assets.
38. There is evidence from several sources which demonstrate the partnership’s
commitment to transparency:
•

members of the public can attend meetings of the partnership

•

board minutes and agenda papers are readily available on the
partnership’s website

•

the website allows the public to access a wide range of information about
business activities including plans and monitoring reports

•

the partnership makes its annual accounts available on its website. These
include a management commentary which provides details of performance
against budget, information on the use of reserves, and risks and
uncertainties facing the organisation.

39. Overall, we concluded that the partnership conducts its business in an open
and transparent manner.
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Appendix 1
Action plan 2018/19

No.

Issue/risk

Recommendation

Agreed management
action/timing

Follow up of prior year recommendations
1

Financial Regulations
The Financial Regulations
have not been updated to
reflect the requirements of
the 2014 Regulations e.g.
consideration and approval
of the audited accounts,
responsibility for an annual
review of internal controls

Review and update the
Financial Regulations to reflect
the requirements of the 2014
Regulations.

Risk: the partnership does not
comply with statutory
requirements.
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were updated in April 2019
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requirements of the 2014
Regulations.
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Appendix 2
Significant audit risks identified during planning
The table below sets out the audit risks we identified during our planning of the
audit and how we addressed each risk in arriving at our conclusion. The risks are
categorised between those where there is a risk of material misstatement in the
annual accounts and those relating our wider responsibility under the Code of Audit
Practice 2016.

Audit risk

Assurance procedure

Results and conclusions

Risks of material misstatement in the financial statements
1

Risk of management override
of controls
ISA 240 requires that audit
work is planned to consider the
risk of fraud, which is presumed
to be a significant risk in any
audit. This includes
consideration of the risk of
management override of
controls to change the position
disclosed in the financial
statements.

•

Detailed testing of journal
entries

•

Review of accounting
estimates

•

Focused testing of
accruals and
prepayments

•

Evaluation of significant
transactions that are
outside the normal
course of business.
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Audit work concluded
satisfactorily. No areas of
concern identified.
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Agenda Item 7c
NORTH EAST TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 18 September 2019

7c Internal Audit


Purpose of Report

To allow the Board to consider an internal audit carried out in 2018/19.


Background

Nestrans has been audited by the Internal Audit Section of Aberdeenshire Council. The Audit
took place at the end of 2018 and into early 2019 and a final agreed report dated July 2019
has been produced by the Auditors. This Audit is in addition to the annual External Audit
carried out by Audit Scotland, or their appointed auditors.
The Audit was conducted in order to review and provide assurance over budget setting and
monitoring procedures.


Implications for Nestrans

The audit has found that the budget setting and monitoring procedures are supported by
Aberdeenshire Council’s Finance Service and in general that adequate arrangements are in
place.
The report found a number of areas of practice where enhancements to the existing
arrangements or the implementation of additional procedures and controls were considered
to be warranted including development of longer-term financial plans, seeking formal grant
terms for external funding and procedures for budget monitoring.
The report provides recommendations to improve upon the areas identified and considers
these in four different categories.
No recommendations at “Major at a Corporate Level” were identified.
No recommendations at “Major at a Service Level” were identified.
Three recommendations at “Significant within audited area” were identified.
No recommendations at “Important within audited area” were identified.
All the recommendations have been discussed with colleagues in the Finance Department at
Aberdeenshire Council and with the Auditors. All recommendations have either been accepted
by the Nestrans management team or responses have been made to the Auditors.
A copy of the Audit report is attached as Appendix A.


Discussion

The reasons that Nestrans staff and finance officers believe that developing a longer-term
financial plan would not aid the organisation are set out in the service response to this
recommendation within the audit report.

7c 2018-19 Internal Audit.docx
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The recommendation to seek more formal grant terms relating to the grant funding available
through Sustrans as a result of Nestrans employing an embedded cycling development officer
has been actioned and is discussed in greater detail in a separate report on this agenda.
The recommendation that Aberdeenshire Council Finance Service should prepare guidance
notes for staff relating to the formal budget monitoring services provided to Nestrans has also
been actioned. This stipulates that management input to forecasts included within the budget
matters report is required.
The recommendation that a threshold and standard for variance reporting be specified within
the budget monitoring procedure has been considered and the Board are asked to approve
the setting of the thresholds as follows:
•



reporting any variances of greater than or equal to +/-10% and amounting to £30,000
or more.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board:
a) Consider the attached Internal Audit report and service response/action; and
b) Agree threshold levels and standards for variance reporting and instruct officers to
comply with this.

Alan Wood
Treasurer
19 August 2019

7c 2018-19 Internal Audit.docx
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Internal Audit Report
Budget Setting and Monitoring

Issued to:
Rab Dickson, Acting NESTRANS Director
Alan Wood, Head of Finance
External Audit

Date of Issue: July 2019

Report No. 1934
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Nestrans is the Regional Transport Partnership for Aberdeen City and Shire, and is
one of seven statutory Scottish transport partnerships constituted under the Transport
(Scotland) Act 2005. Its purpose is to develop and deliver a long-term regional
transport strategy and take forward strategic transport improvements that support and
improve the economy, environment and quality of life across Aberdeen City and
Shire. The current strategy, originally developed in 2008 and refreshed in 2013,
extends to 2035. A further review is planned in 2019, with the aim of developing a
new Regional Transport Strategy (RTS) to 2040 for Ministerial approval by the end of
the year.
The Nestrans operating costs, and revenue and capital projects in support of the
strategy, are funded by contributions from Aberdeenshire Council, Aberdeen City
Council and the Scottish Government. The Nestrans Board comprises of four
Councillors from each of the Councils and four non-Councillor members
recommended by the Board and then approved in a personal capacity by the Minister
for Transport.
The 2018/19 budget set out an anticipated £1,123,850 revenue spend, and
£3,035,500 new capital expenditure in addition to continuing projects funded through
delayed drawdown of previous years’ funding of £2,080,419.
The objective of this audit was to review and provide assurance over budget setting
and monitoring procedures. These are supported by Aberdeenshire Council’s
Finance Service, and in general are adequate.
However, longer term financial planning, and more specific procedures for grant
funding and budget monitoring, could better demonstrate control over these areas. A
request to formalise grant funding will be made where appropriate. Finance will
support Nestrans in reviewing and applying budget variance reporting mechanisms.
Management has given consideration to the merits of developing longer term budgets
and has determined that this would not aid the organisation with longer term financial
planning due to uncertainty as to the direction of new Strategies, the multitude of
actors involved in contributing to and delivery of them, and constraints on Nestrans’
ability to budget for more than a year in advance due to funding uncertainty.
Management considers that the Board receives assurance on progress towards
delivery of the RTS through an annual monitoring report, which provides information
on KPI’s, which have been agreed with the Board that will highlight any significant
deviations from plan. Action plans will be developed to highlight the key priorities
underlining the revised RTS once it has been published. There are also plans to
review progress monitoring and reporting as part of implementation of the new RTS.
Internal Audit considers that without longer term financial plans against which to
measure progress, it may be difficult for the Board to maintain assurance that the
Strategy and action plans remain affordable and will achieve the anticipated
outcomes within the period set out in the Regional Transport Strategy. The difficulties
of setting such plans due to uncertainty and change as outlined by Nestrans
management are noted.

1
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1.

INTRODUCTION

1.1

Nestrans is the Regional Transport Partnership for Aberdeen City and Shire, and is one
of seven statutory Scottish transport partnerships constituted under the Transport
(Scotland) Act 2005. Its purpose is to develop and deliver a long-term regional transport
strategy and take forward strategic transport improvements that support and improve the
economy, environment and quality of life across Aberdeen City and Shire. The current
strategy, originally developed in 2008 and refreshed in 2013, extends to 2035. A further
review is planned in 2019, with the aim of developing a new regional transport strategy to
2040 for Ministerial approval by the end of the year.

1.2

Nestrans, and revenue and capital projects in support of the strategy, are funded by
contributions from Aberdeenshire Council, Aberdeen City Council and the Scottish
Government. Each of these bodies has equal representation on the Nestrans Board, with
four Councillors from each of the Councils and four non-Councillor members appointed in
a personal capacity by the Minister for Transport.

1.3

In 2018/19, Aberdeenshire Council’s budgeted contribution was £1,294,175 and
Aberdeen City Council’s contribution was £1,702,175 towards the costs of running of
Nestrans and funding projects. Nestrans also received funding from the Scottish
Government of £782,000 and Sustrans of £100,000.

1.4

The 2018/19 budget set out an anticipated £1,123,850 revenue spend, and £3,035,500
new capital expenditure in addition to continuing projects funded through delayed
drawdown of previous years’ funding of £2,080,419.
Income
Aberdeen City Council
Aberdeenshire Council
Scottish Government
Sustrans 2018/19
Sustrans 2017/18 c/f
Delayed Drawdown
Virements

Capital
1,580,000
1,172,000

Revenue
122,175
122,175
782,000

100,000
93,500
2,080,419
90,000

187,500
- 90,000

1,702,175
1,294,175
782,000
100,000
93,500
2,267,919
-

Total

5,115,919

1,123,850

6,239,769

Expenditure
2018/19 Proposals
Delayed Drawdown

3,035,500
2,080,419

1,078,850
45,000

4,114,350
2,125,419

Total

5,115,919

1,123,850

6,239,769

1.5

The objective of this audit was to review and provide assurance over budget setting and
monitoring procedures.

1.6

The factual accuracy of this report and action to be taken with regard to the
recommendations made have been agreed with Rab Dickson, Acting Nestrans Director,
and Ruth Taylor, Principal Accountant - Aberdeenshire Council.

2
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2.

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

Budget Setting and Funding

2.1.1

Nestrans financial regulations state that a preliminary budget meeting shall be arranged
annually by the Partnership Director where Officers from both Aberdeenshire and
Aberdeen City Councils attend along with the Treasurer, to agree a list of proposed
projects to be included in the budget for the following financial year, and thereafter
estimates of income and expenditure shall be prepared by the Treasurer in conjunction
with the Partnership Director. These estimates shall be submitted to the Partnership
Board, and when approved shall constitute the Budget for the relevant financial year.

2.1.2

All projects put forward for approval should link back to the Regional Transport Strategy.
From this strategy, a number of action plans have been created to go into more detail
about the types of projects that should be worked on, covering active travel, rail, bus and
freight.

2.1.3

Although the Councils submit project proposals each year, which are considered by
Nestrans officers and the Board thereafter, the level of funding requested from Partners
does not typically vary to reflect planned strategic developments. Both Nestrans and
Partners have noted constraints on their ability to make forward plans given single year
budget settlements.

2.1.4

The budget is usually set at the February Nestrans Board meeting, however the budget
for 2018/19 was not finalised until the April meeting due to delays with Aberdeen City
Council’s submissions as a result of its transformation and restructuring programme. It
was noted in the February meeting that this delay was not expected to have any impact
on the implementation of any of the projects.

2.1.5

In February 2015 the Board approved development of a 5 year budget plan, however this
was not progressed, and budget setting remains an annual process, with cross-year
budget implications generally limited to delays in projects and draw-down of their
associated funding from one year to the next. Medium term financial planning would better
demonstrate alignment of the budget with strategy and assist the Partners in their financial
planning.

2.1.6

There is also no medium term plan for project delivery and the associated funding and
expenditure. The Nestrans budget is small relative to the scale of the projects required to
deliver the Strategy, and therefore only a proportion of projects are delivered from
Nestrans funding. There is a potential disconnect between single year budgets and
reports, and the Strategy which extends over 20 years. Longer term financial planning
could provide more assurance that projects are being scheduled, along with potential
funding options and delivery mechanisms, to meet the strategic objectives.
Recommendation
The Service should develop longer term financial plans.
Service Response / Action
Careful consideration has been given to the merits of developing a 5 year budget for the
Nestrans Board to consider. However, for the following reasons, it is felt that this would
not aid the organisation with longer term financial planning:
•

The current Regional Transport Strategy, which had a light refresh in 2013, is due
for a complete directional review and rewrite, which will extend the period of the
strategy up to 2040. The timing of delivery of this new strategy will be informed by
the publication of the National Transport Strategy, which is expected to be

3

Page 176

Report No. 1934

•

•
•

•

published at the end of 2019. In addition to this there are a key number of legislative
changes which will need to be considered as part of the RTS, for example the
Climate Change (Emissions, Reductions Targets) (Scotland) Bill and the Transport
(Scotland) Bill. This means that currently there is a high level of uncertainty as to
the direction that the new RTS will follow.
Nestrans is only one of many different organisations, both private and public bodies,
which will feed into and deliver the RTS. We can seek to lobby and influence
prioritisation towards achieving the strategy, but we have no way of solely
implementing the projects that will deliver the RTS. This means that we have no
way of knowing what level of involvement we will have, which would make any
future detailed financial planning impossible.
Similarly, funding availability and the priorities of local and national bodies change
regularly. Nestrans seeks to maximise the benefit to the area from available
resources, where these are aligned with the region’s strategic intentions.
There are constraints on the ability to plan spending in advance of one year.
Nestrans is unable to carry its own reserves. Current economic uncertainty, and
single year financial settlements from central government, impact on the local
authority partners’ planning, borne out by a reduction in capital funding for 2019/20.
Longer term financial planning would not result in assurance of the delivery of the
RTS, as funding levels allocated by the Local Authority partners and Scottish
Government are not certain. Nestrans role will include working with partners and
seeking prioritisation towards achieving the strategy, but it cannot guarantee
Partners’ spending profile.
Projects are subject to feasibility studies and options appraisals which once
concluded may result in a requirement to revise future plans and projects.

Any attempt at longer term financial planning would not be an accurate measure of
progress, however, an indication of the future level of funding available to Nestrans
overall could be included within the budget setting report, by providing details of the
future years funding levels included in the Partners’ budgets. This would indicate the
intended levels of funding, however, it would need to be made clear that this could be
changed at any time.
The Board receives assurance on progress towards delivery of the RTS through an
annual monitoring report, which provides information on KPI’s, which have been agreed
with the Board that will highlight any significant deviations from plan.
Action plans will be developed to highlight the key priorities underlining the revised RTS
once it has been published. There are plans to review progress monitoring and reporting
as part of implementation of the new RTS.
Internal Audit Position
Grading
Without longer term financial plans against which to Significant within audited
measure progress, it may be more difficult for the Board area
to maintain assurance that the Strategy and Delivery
Plans remain affordable and will achieve the anticipated
outcomes within the period set out in the Regional
Transport Strategy. The difficulties of setting such plans
due to uncertainty and change outlined in the Service
response are noted.
2.1.7

The Scottish Government granted £782,000 to Nestrans for 2018/19 revenue expenditure,
which is paid in monthly instalments. The annual grant offer letter sets out the terms and
conditions applicable, and the Director has signed acceptance of the agreement.
Following the end of the financial year, a statement of compliance must be submitted to
the Scottish Government.

4
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2.1.8

Sustrans agreed to provide £100,000 for 2018/19, and £93,500 was carried forward from
2017/18 to be spent by May 2018. £79,200 of the funding carried forward has been lost
due to cycle monitoring counters not being ordered for delivery prior to the May 2018
deadline. Whilst there is a net nil impact on the budget, planned project outcomes may
not be realised. The Service was unable to provide details of the application and grant
award letters in respect of this funding. Without supporting information, it is not clear
whether the grant is subject to restrictions of use or if evidence of spend to date and
current project progress must be provided to ensure continued payment.
Recommendation
The Service should ensure that grant funding conditions are retained and adhered to.
Service Response / Action
Agreed. Sustrans funding is considered and agreed on a project by project basis,
through email communication by an embedded member of staff and Sustrans. A request
will be made to obtain more formal grant terms.
Implementation Date
September 2019

Responsible Officer
Nestrans Director

Grading
Significant within audited
area

2.2

Budget Monitoring and Reporting

2.2.1

The Nestrans Board meets six times per annum. At each of these meetings, there is a
Budget Matters report issued for the current financial year which provides an update of
the budget against spend to date and the forecast spend for the remainder of the year.
This report will also detail if there are any variations to the forecast spend, budget
virements, or delays in draw-down of funding.

2.2.2

Budget monitoring data is collated and reviewed by Aberdeenshire Council Finance,
including expenditure and income information obtained from the financial system as well
as details of current spend and accruals from the Partners. These are then analysed,
compared with the budget, and the forecast spend for the rest of the year is reviewed
based on costs to date and anticipated changes.

2.2.3

Forecasts are typically on budget throughout the year, unless the Service specifically
advise of a variation, such as an over or underspend, in which case this figure will then be
manually adjusted. This includes a ‘contingency’ budget which is rarely used.

2.2.4

For 2017/18 year end variances included delays to projects, associated delays in funding
draw-down and the extent of income not being certain until it is received.

2.2.5

Each report is reviewed by the Principal Accountant and the Director prior to publication,
though forecasts are not formally signed off.

2.2.6

There is currently no budget monitoring procedure, and no threshold or standard for
variance reporting. In general, anticipated variances are adequately explained in the
Board reports, and there are consistent workings, however in the event of staff changes
there is a risk of inconsistent reporting.

5
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Recommendation
The Service should develop a budget monitoring procedure, including management
input to forecasts, and the thresholds and standards for variance reporting.
Service Response / Action
Agreed. A variance threshold will be set and subject to annual review of its suitability.
Implementation Date
September 2019

Responsible Officer
Aberdeenshire Council
Finance

Grading
Significant within audited
area

AUDITORS: D Hughes
C Harvey
R Brand
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Appendix 1 – Grading of Recommendations

GRADE

DEFINITION

Major at a Corporate Level

The absence of, or failure to comply with, an appropriate
internal control which could result in, for example, a material
financial loss, or loss of reputation, to the Council.

Major at a Service Level

The absence of, or failure to comply with, an appropriate
internal control which could result in, for example, a material
financial loss to the Service/area audited.
Financial Regulations have been consistently breached.

Significant within audited area Addressing this issue will enhance internal controls.
An element of control is missing or only partial in nature.
The existence of the weakness identified has an impact on
a system’s adequacy and effectiveness.
Financial Regulations have been breached.

Important within audited area

Although the element of internal control is satisfactory, a
control weakness was identified, the existence of the
weakness, taken independently or with other findings does
not impair the overall system of internal control.

7
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Agenda Item 8
NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 18 September 2019

8 Information Bulletin


Purpose of Report

The purpose of this report is to provide information and updates for the Board on a number of
matters not requiring decisions.


Getabout update

The Getabout partnership is continuing to have regular working group meetings and its
partners are involved in a number of local initiatives to promote sustainable travel both
internally within their organisations aimed at staff and visitors and externally through promotion
and events. Recent events include Clean Air Day on 20th of June and In Town Without My
Car Day. This event was organised primarily by Aberdeen City Council events team. It was
held on Sunday 15th of September in Aberdeen City Centre.
A wide range of free activities were available such as a Zip Wire, CLAN stunt show and
Carpool Karaoke. Free bus travel from Park and Ride Sites was also provided by operators
and encouraged by the partners.
Below is a link to the event for further information:
www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ITWMCD
Plans for a Festive Travel campaign are underway.


Railway Station Travel Plans

ScotRail have recently announced a Station Travel Plan Delivery Fund. This makes available
up to £100,000 from ScotRail, to deliver outputs from the Station Travel Plan programme.
Grants are likely to be in the region of £10,000-£25,000. The Fund is open for applications in
the coming weeks to stakeholders involved in the Station Travel Plan process, and any Fund
awards must be 50% match-funded. The deadline for applications is Friday 25th of October.
There were three station travel plans carried out in the Nestrans Region, at Inverurie, Dyce
and Stonehaven.
Below are links to the plans:
Inverurie:
https://www.scotrail.co.uk/sites/default/files/assets/download_ct/inverurie_station_travel_pla
n.pdf
Dyce;
https://www.scotrail.co.uk/sites/default/files/assets/download_ct/dyce_station_travel_plan.pdf
Stonehaven;
https://www.scotrail.co.uk/sites/default/files/assets/download_ct/stonehaven_station_travel_
plan.pdf
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The plans outline key issues and opportunities, particularly around accessibility of the stations
and parking. Nestrans will look at the Station Travel Plans and work with partners to pull
together potential bid(s) to ScotRail to implement some of the actions within the plans.
Nestrans will report to the next Board on the progress.



Press and Communications

A summary of Press Enquiries, Media Releases and coverage relevant to Nestrans is attached
as Appendix A to this report.



Recommendation

It is recommended that the Board note the contents of this report.

KW/RD/NM 8 Sept 2019
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Appendix A

Nestrans Communications Report
4th June – 10th September 2019


Nestrans Media Queries

Date
Media
26th June Details
2019
unavailable

Query
Questions in connection with
publication of June’s Board
papers

Response
Informal responses
provided.

26th June Evening
2019
Express

Request for document
referenced in a board report
(Aberdeen North West
Stations Review)

Link to document
provided.

26th June Evening
2019
Express

Comment sought on bus
network report and rail link
report in June Board papers

Supporting information
provided as requested.

1st
July Ellon
Times,
2019
Deeside Piper,
Mearns Leader,
Inverurie
Herald, Buchan
Observer,
Fraserburgh
Herald
5th
STV
September
2019

Images sought to support
feature piece in six north-east
weekly publications. Story
prompted by report to
Nestrans Board

Illustrative images
provided as requested.

Comment sought on Inverurie
Transport Interchange
meeting (release of land)

Response provided by
Aberdeenshire Council
outlining plans for further
discussions.



Nestrans and partner Press Releases

Date

Details

24th June Nestrans welcomes the news that Stagecoach JET service 727 will now be
2019
running 24 hours a day.
3rd
July Nestrans has strengthened its Board by appointing a new non-councillor Board
2019
Member (Mr Colin Allanach)
3rd
July Nestrans have submitted a bid for funding to study the potential for a new station
2019
sites in the south of Aberdeenshire.
22nd July Online survey seeks bikers’ views about safety initiatives (news release from
2019
Road Safety North East Scotland)
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16th
August
2019
22nd
August
2019
4th
September
2019



Can you help influence the long-term vision for transport in the North East
(Regional Transport Strategy consultation)
Nestrans to Receive Funding for Transport Approsal (Local Rail Development
Fund)
Around seventy local cyclists attended an interesting and informative event at
Robert Gordon University . . . ‘Cycling in the North East – Collisions,
Compensation & Civil Law’

Nestrans News Coverage

Date
6th June
2019

15th June
2019
15th June
2019

17th June
2019
3rd July
2019
6th July
2019
6th July
2019

9th July
2019

Media
Inverurie Herald

Headline
Firm awarded Kintore
station contract

Details
Network Rail has appointed
BAM Nuttall as the main
contractor for the
construction of the new
Kintore station.
Evening Express
Fears for north-east bus
Longer bus journey times
travel as passengers
have been identified in a new
face longer travel times
report as a major problem for
the north-east bus network.
Evening Express
Rising costs may end rail Ambitious plans for a multilink plan between airport million-pound rail link
and new arena in
between Aberdeen
Aberdeen
International Airport and the
new exhibition centre look
set to be abandoned.
Mearns Leader
Move to open new
North-east transport body
stations gathers pace
Nestrans is seeking funding
to assess plans for new train
stations south of Aberdeen.
Press and Journal Nestrans submit bid for
Nestrans have submitted a
funding to investigate
bid for funding to study the
new station sites for
potential for new station sites
south of Aberdeen
in the south of Aberdeen.
Press and Journal Aberdeen MSP backs
An Aberdeen MSP has
south of city rail stations
backed plans for new railway
call
stations in the south of the
city.
Evening Express
Aberdeen MSP gets An Aberdeen MSP has lent
behind rail plan
her support to a bid to study
the potential for creating new
train stations in the south of
the city.
Rail Business
Nestrans submit bid for Nestrans have submitted a
Daily
funding to investigate bid for funding to study the
new station sites
potential for new station sites
in the south of Aberdeen.
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July
(various
dates)

August
2019

23rd
August
2019

23rd
August
2019

24th
August
2019

Ellon Times,
Deeside Piper,
Mearns Leader,
Inverurie Herald,
Buchan Observer,
Fraserburgh
Herald
RGU

Indicators show things
are on the right track,
say Nestrans

Feature piece outlining
progress on various northeast transportation
objectives – based on 11th
annual monitoring report.

RGU
working
with Researchers from RGU are
NESTRANS to improve working with NESTRANS,
cycling in the North-east
the Aberdeen City and Shire
Transport Partnership, in a
bid to improve the
experience for cyclists in the
North-east.
Rail Technology
Transport
Scotland Cabinet secretary for
Magazine
announces £817k Local transport, infrastructure and
Rail Development Fund
connectivity, Michael
Matheson, has announced
eight communities across
Scotland are set to benefit
from a share of £817,000
through the Local Rail
Development Fund (LRDF).
Global Railway
Scottish Government
Eight communities across
Review
announces funding for
Scotland are set to benefit
local rail developments
from a share of the Local
Rail Development Fund
(LRDF) which is thought to
be worth £817,000 .
Press and Journal ‘Absolute
delight’
at Aberdeen politicians have
funding to explore new expressed delight at the
train stations in the south announcement of Scottish
of Aberdeen
Government funding for a
study into the creation of
new train stations in the
south of the city.
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Agenda Item 9
NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 18 September 2019

9 Conferences and Presentations



Recent and Forthcoming Conferences of Interest to Nestrans

Date

Location

Title

Organiser

Conf
Cost
(Excl.
Vat)

Nestrans
Attendees

nil

Kirsty Chalmers

Wednesday
21st August
2019

Stirling

Transport in
Scotland

Department of
Work and
Pensions

Wednesday
28th August
2019

Glasgow

Developing
Scotland's National
Transport Strategy

Scotland
Policy
Conferences

Monday 9th
September
2019

Aberdeen

Meet the Politician
– Richard Leonard

SCDI

nil

No

Tuesday 1st
October 2019

Edinburgh

Climate
Emergency, Net
Zero Ready

SSN
(Sustainable
Scotland
Network)

nil

Kelly Wiltshire

Thursday 3rd
October 2019

Edinburgh

CIHT Young
Professional
Network debate on
‘People Prioritised
Streets’

Chartered
Institution of
Highways and
Transportation

nil

Nicola Laird

Thursday 10th
October

Glasgow

CIHT Annual
Awards Dinner

Chartered
Institution of
Highways and
Transportation

nil

Nicola Laird

Thursday 17th
October

London

CIHT Regional
Officers
Conference

Chartered
Institution of
Highways and
Transportation

nil

Nicola Laird

Thursday 14th
November

Manchester

CIHT Young
Professionals
Conference

Chartered
Institution of
Highways and
Transportation

nil

Nicola Laird
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£230

Rab Dickson



Other Training

Date



Title

Organiser

Cost
(excl.
VAT)

Attendees

Presentation Title

Organisation
and Audience

Press
Involve
ment

Presenters

Location

Presentations by Nestrans
Date

Location

Cllr Sandra
Macdonald

Wednesday
28th August
2019

Glasgow

Delivering key
infrastructure
projects

National
Transport
Strategy Policy
Conference

?

Wed 2nd –
Friday 4th
October 2019

Graz,
Austria

Freight and
Logistics cooperation platform:
Aberdeen’s role in
Civitas Portis

Civitas Forum

No

Rab Dickson

Monday 14th
October 2019

Aberdeen

Annual Transport
Debate

University of
Aberdeen,
Geography
Students

No

Rab Dickson

RD/29 August 2019
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NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 18 September 2019

10 Pending Business and Reports for Future Meetings


Purpose of Report
The purpose of this report is to advise of progress on pending business requested by the
Board and major reports scheduled for forthcoming Board meetings, and to provide the
opportunity for the Board to add to or amend this scheduling.



Background
It has been agreed that this be a standing item on the Board's agenda, listing progress
on major areas of work which are not yet in final form to report to the Board with reasons
for any delays explained, together with a provisional list of major reports for future Board
meetings.



Pending Business
Reports highlighted previously as pending or which the Board has requested reports on,
which are included in this agenda are:
o National Transport Strategy (item 3b);
o NTS Roles and Responsibilities (item 3c);
o Regional Transport Strategy outcomes from workshop (item 3d);
o Strategic Transport Appraisal progress (was presented to workshop in August).



Major Reports for Future Meetings
It is intended to bring reports on the following items to future meetings of the Board:
o



City Centre Masterplan progress (autumn).

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board note the report on pending business and agree the
provisional scheduling of major reports to future Board meetings.

RD/10 September 2019

10 Pending Business.doc
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